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          2                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Good afternoon.

          3  I'm Council Member Philip Reed, Chair of Consumer

          4  Affairs.  Welcome to City Hall and our second

          5  hearing on Intro 621, a proposal to replace

          6  Sub-Chapter 27 of Title 20 of the Administrative

          7  Code.  This bill would also -- this bill will, seeks

          8  to simplify the issue of vending in the City of New

          9  York.

         10                 At our last hearing on April 18, we

         11  heard from a variety of vendors and vendor advocacy

         12  groups, crafts people, business organizations,

         13  etcetera.

         14                 Unfortunately, many witnesses who

         15  came to offer their comments were unable to testify

         16  due to time constraints.  Many of those witnesses

         17  are here again today and we look forward to hearing

         18  from them as well as from other parties who are

         19  joining us for the first time today, especially the

         20  Administration.

         21                 I recognize that this proposal is

         22  comprehensive and that there are a lot of -- there

         23  is a lot of information to process.  There is also a

         24  lot of mis- information out in the street about the

         25  bill.  Hopefully, we will get clarification.  Today
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          2  we are looking for comments and suggestions that

          3  will serve to improve and strengthen the bill.

          4  Therefore, I ask that all witnesses please be

          5  prepared to offer solutions to any problems that you

          6  feel need to be addressed in the proposed bill.  We

          7  have had many, many hearings about the problems with

          8  vendors so in the, for the sake of time, if people

          9  begin to wander in their testimony about the

         10  universal problem of vendors, we're really going to

         11  have to ask you to limit your comments to issues

         12  specific to the legislation that we have today.

         13                 Once again, the Committee has invited

         14  the Administration, City agencies, business

         15  organizations, advocacy groups and we know that we

         16  will be hearing first from the Administration but

         17  before we do that, we have some important

         18  housekeeping -- we have some significant

         19  housekeeping that we want to attend to.  We have

         20  five pieces of legislation on issues that this

         21  Committee has looked into.  One is the issue of

         22  identity theft.  We have several bills that relates

         23  to that and also to the issue of internet cafes and

         24  licensing them that I know that Council Member Liu

         25  has been actively participating in.  I want to

                                                            7

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2  introduce my colleagues on the Committee,

          3  Councilwoman Carmen del Arroyo, Council Member

          4  Vincent Gentile, Council Member Liu, Council Member

          5  Addabbo, Council Member Barron.  Thank you all very

          6  much for being here.

          7                 As you all may recall, we have had

          8  several hearings on the issue of identity theft and

          9  have worked now through with the Administration, I

         10  think, to reach a very comprehensive legislation

         11  that will require businesses doing -- businesses

         12  that are licensed in the City of New York to notify

         13  their consumers, their customers if, in fact, their

         14  information has been breached.  This is

         15  groundbreaking legislation that is, in fact, other

         16  than in the State of California, we've not found any

         17  other legislative body that has taken as much of a

         18  proactive stance and a position around the issue of

         19  identity theft.  Those bills, Intro 139a, Intro 140a

         20  and Intro 141a.

         21                 Secondly, we have legislation as it

         22  relates to the internet cafes, Intro 65a and Intro

         23  number 78a and I want to call on Council Member John

         24  Liu has been the person that's really been driving

         25  much of the discussion around this issue.  I wanted
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          2  to give him an opportunity to make a few opening

          3  remarks.  Council Member Liu.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Thank you, Mr.

          5  Chairman for calling this hearing and for calling on

          6  a vote on these important bills.  Intro 65 and 78

          7  are a package of bills that will seek to address the

          8  growing problem of internet cafes, particularly

          9  truancy in internet cafes.  Now, it is a fact that

         10  more and more kids are hanging out for longer and

         11  longer periods of times in these internet cafes.

         12  Often times, skipping school all together for days

         13  and we have seen more documentation of this problem.

         14    We have had testimony from principles, teachers

         15  and parents in the many hearings that you have held,

         16  Mr. Chairman, and just a few weeks ago at the most

         17  recent hearing on this topic, we even had a few

         18  internet cafe owners and operators who testified

         19  here that there is a problem with some of the other

         20  internet cafes that they do not run where they know

         21  for sure that there are kids, school age kids, in

         22  these establishments during school hours.

         23                 We're not even talking about high

         24  school kids. We're talking about 12, 13 and 14 year

         25  olds who clearly belong in school during the day and
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          2  clearly do not belong in internet cafes at 10 or

          3  11:00 in the morning or 1 or 2:00 in the afternoon.

          4                 So this package of bills makes sense.

          5    It begins to regulate what we are now calling

          6  gaming cafes as so we can make a distinction between

          7  internet cafes that are used by professional and

          8  more mature people for professional purposes as

          9  opposed to gaming cafes, which have been internet

         10  cafes that have predominantly been populated by

         11  machines that are set up for gaming activities over

         12  the internet and that are most frequently used by

         13  the very young people in our communities.

         14                 So I urge that we pass this bill, Mr.

         15  Chairman, and I know that there's a great deal of

         16  public support for this package.  Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Thank you very

         18  much.  I see the clerk has arrived and if you would,

         19  when you get organized on this, we'd like to take a

         20  vote first on Intros 139a, 140a, and 141a, identity

         21  theft.  We'll do that all as one group and then

         22  we'll take a second vote on Intros 65a and 78a which

         23  is, as Council Member Liu has just referred to the

         24  internet cafes, if that's all right with you?  Mr.

         25  Martin.
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          2                 COUNCIL CLERK: Council Member Reed.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Aye on all.

          4                 COUNCIL CLERK: Addabbo.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Yes on all.

          6                 COUNCIL CLERK: Barron.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Aye on all.

          8                 COUNCIL CLERK: Liu.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Yes on all.

         10                 COUNCIL CLERK: Gentile.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Aye on all.

         12                 COUNCIL CLERK: Arroyo.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO: Yes on all.

         14                 COUNCIL CLERK: By a vote of six in

         15  the affirmative, zero in the negative and no

         16  abstentions, three items are adopted. Proposed Intro

         17  65-A and proposed Intro 78-A. Council Member Reed.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Aye on all.

         19                 COUNCIL CLERK: Addabbo.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Yes on all.

         21                 COUNCIL CLERK: Barron.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Aye on all.

         23                 COUNCIL CLERK: Liu.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Yes on both.

         25                 COUNCIL CLERK: Gentile.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Mr. Chairman,

          3  if I may be excused to explain my vote a minute?

          4  Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Please.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: I want to

          7  congratulate Councilman Liu and Councilman Joya for

          8  these two pieces of legislation.  Internet cafes

          9  have played a problem, have been a problem in my

         10  neighborhood in Bay Ridge, Bensonhurst, Decker

         11  Heights and part of the surrounding areas,

         12  particularly in Sunset Park and the great thing

         13  about this legislation is by defining gaming cafes,

         14  you differentiate between those that are there for a

         15  purpose that is not causing a problem as opposed to

         16  those who draw some of the bad crowd to those cafes.

         17     So I want to thank them for putting this forward

         18  and I probably vote aye on both.

         19                 COUNCIL CLERK: Arroyo.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO: Yes on both.

         21                 COUNCIL CLERK: By a vote of six in

         22  the affirmative, zero in the negative and no

         23  abstentions, both items are adopted. Excuse me.

         24  Council Member Koppel.  Council Member Koppel,

         25  Intros 139, 140 and 141, how do you vote?
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPEL: Yes.

          3                 COUNCIL CLERK: All items are adopted

          4  by a vote of seven in the affirmative, zero in the

          5  negative and no abstentions.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Thank you very

          7  much.  We will now ask the Administration to come

          8  forward.  We've been joined, as I think you see, by

          9  Council Member Oliver Koppell from the Bronx. Thank

         10  you and we've also been joined, I'm sorry, by

         11  Council Member Alan Gerson from Manhattan.  Not a

         12  member of the Committee but someone who is

         13  interested in the issue of vending.  Welcome.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Thank you very

         15  much.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON REED: I apologize,

         17  there's been an oversight in the announcement.  It

         18  was listed in the calendar and I neglected to

         19  mention it in my opening remarks and I'm not

         20  particularly happy that that happened.  My apologies

         21  to Council Member Barron.  Thank you for bringing it

         22  to my attention.  Council Member Barron has a bill

         23  related to vending which I am very much in support

         24  of and I think all of our colleagues are, 491?

         25  Council Member Barron, did you want to speak to that
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          2  bill because it's been listed as something that

          3  we've invited comment about today? Please.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Thank you, Mr.

          5  Chair.  I sure appreciate that.  I just wanted to

          6  bring this Committee's attention to 491.  Executive

          7  Order 41 from the Mayor's Office forbids City

          8  agencies to ask the immigration status of anyone

          9  seeking a permit or seeking City services and that

         10  is not strong enough so this intro would make it a

         11  law and anyone seeking a licensing process whether

         12  it's general, food vending license should not have

         13  to give up information to the Department of Consumer

         14  Affairs or Department of Health on their immigration

         15  status.

         16                 I think that's something that we need

         17  to make a law because the enforcement of Executive

         18  Order 41 is not as been as strong as what the law

         19  can be (sic).  Thank you very much.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Thank you, Council

         21  member and again I apologize that I didn't reference

         22  it in my opening remarks. In trying to prepare for

         23  all these votes, it got past me.

         24                 The Administration is here and

         25  perhaps before you start, you all want to identify
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          2  yourselves and then whichever order you've chosen

          3  would be terrific.

          4                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: I'm

          5  Assistant Commissioner Susan Petito of the Police

          6  Department.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Commissioner, you

          8  need to bring it a little closer, I can't hear you.

          9                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO:

         10  Assistant Commissioner Susan Petito of the Police

         11  Department.

         12                 LIEUTENANT ALBANO: Lieutenant Dan

         13  Albano of the Police Department.

         14                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE:

         15  Assistant Commissioner Pauline Toole from the City's

         16  Department of Consumer Affairs.

         17                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER MARCUS:

         18  Associate Commissioner Elliott Marcus, Department of

         19  Health and Mental Hygiene.

         20                 MR. EILER: Director of Legislation,

         21  Consumer Affairs Department.  Andy Eiler.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Thank you.  Ms.

         23  Toole, are you starting off?  Ms. Petito is starting

         24  off?

         25                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: I'll
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          2  start, thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Okay, thank you.

          4                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: Good

          5  afternoon, Mr. Chairman and members of the Council.

          6  I'm Susan Petito, Assistant Commissioner for

          7  Intergovernmental Affairs of the New York City

          8  Police Department.  I am accompanied by Lieutenant

          9  Daniel Albano, Managing Attorney of the NYPD Legal

         10  Bureau, Criminal Section and on behalf of Police

         11  Commissioner Raymond Kelly and Deputy Commissioner

         12  of Legal Matters, Andrew Schaffer, we are pleased to

         13  be here today to discuss Intro 621, comprehensively

         14  revising the regulations pertaining to vending in

         15  New York City.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Ms. Petito, I'm

         17  sorry, I think partly because of the air

         18  conditioning but also if the sound technician could

         19  help us, I think, it's difficult for people to hear

         20  you outside so maybe you could pull that a little

         21  closer and the sound technician could assist you.

         22  Thank you.

         23                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: Okay.

         24  We would first like to commend you, Mr. Chairman,

         25  for confronting the complex and highly charged issue
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          2  before you today.  The myriad of laws and

          3  regulations affecting vending, at both the state and

          4  local levels, as well as the holdings of several

          5  relevant court decisions, present vendors and

          6  enforcement personnel alike with daily challenges in

          7  keeping the streets and sidewalks of our City safe

          8  while allowing vendors a reasonable opportunity to

          9  lawfully sell food and other merchandise to willing

         10  customers.

         11                 Intro 61, 621 represents a creative

         12  attempt to simplify and make internally consistent

         13  the laws affecting vending, while acknowledging the

         14  applicability of State law governing disabled

         15  veteran vendors as well as taking into account court

         16  decisions regarding the rights of First Amendment

         17  vendors. However, we must oppose the regulatory

         18  scheme contemplated in the bill, which would open

         19  virtually every street in the City to vending but

         20  require that only three vendors per block face be

         21  present at any given time.  In practical effect, up

         22  to a total of 24 vendors could be clustered around

         23  any given intersection.

         24                 We understand the appeal of the

         25  apparent simplicity of this concept but must oppose
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          2  it as unworkable.  In thinking through the proposal,

          3  we must consider the practical application of the

          4  law and evaluate whether it can reasonably be

          5  enforced.  The bill creates a limit of three vendors

          6  per block face and a priority system which attempts

          7  to make clear which type of vendor, from among food,

          8  general, First Amendment and specialized vendor

          9  types, is entitled to evict another vendor from a

         10  City block face.

         11                 The two major enforcement problems

         12  created by this scenario are the tremendous

         13  dispersion of vendors seeking profitable locations

         14  throughout the City, especially if accompanied by

         15  the contemplated increase in the cap on licenses,

         16  and the inevitable increase in disputes, possibly

         17  violent, as a chain reaction of vendors with better

         18  priority numbers seeking to displace vendors already

         19  on a block, spreads from block to block.           Vendors

         20  seek to locate themselves in the most heavily

         21  traveled areas of the City and as a vendor with a

         22  better priority number arrives, he or she will be

         23  entitled to demand that a vendor already present

         24  leave.  That vendor would then conceivably move on

         25  to the next block with perhaps a slightly less
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          2  desirable location but one already occupied by three

          3  vendors and the eviction process would continue.

          4  The entity which would, of course, be expected to

          5  resolve these contentious disputes is the Police

          6  Department and it would be unwise and

          7  counterproductive to create a regulatory scheme

          8  which we know would strain the already limited

          9  enforcement resources we have, to accommodate an

         10  entirely new set of disputes in every part of the

         11  City.  It is also apparent that many of these

         12  disputes and disruptions would occur on the most

         13  densely populated sidewalks in the City which would

         14  even further impede pedestrian traffic.

         15  Specifically, the priority system adds to the

         16  potential for disputes by making a distinction

         17  between incidents occurring between 5 a.m. and 11

         18  a.m. As opposed to between 11 a.m. and 5 a.m. and

         19  establishes that between 5 a.m. And 11 a.m., if two

         20  similar type vendors contend for the same space, the

         21  person who was there first, gets priority. We

         22  suggest that making the choice contingent on who was

         23  there first is unworkable since it will often be

         24  impossible for an officer to know who was there

         25  first.
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          2                 Inherent in the creation of the

          3  bill's regulatory scheme is the elimination of any

          4  street on which vending would be prohibited, except

          5  for Ground Zero and lower Broadway.  We submit that

          6  the consequences of such wholesale elimination of

          7  street restrictions are potentially chaotic,

          8  especially concerning the midtown core of Manhattan,

          9  arguably containing the most desirable vending

         10  locations in the City.  We observed a practical

         11  demonstration of these potential consequences, when

         12  the State Legislature allowed the General Business

         13  Law provision governing disabled veteran vendors to

         14  lapse for an entire year.  The tumultuous atmosphere

         15  created in midtown Manhattan, as First Amendment

         16  vendors were able to accompany disabled veteran

         17  vendors then entitled to vend within the midtown

         18  core, could be replicated if all restrictions on

         19  streets were to be removed.  For example, we remind

         20  you of the dozens of First Amendment vendors who

         21  saturated Times Square on streets that would have

         22  otherwise been restricted, during the hiatus of the

         23  General Business Law.  Again, the only way to

         24  control that possibility would be through constant

         25  and intense enforcement and it is submitted that at
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          2  a time when the Police Department needs to focus on

          3  counter- terrorism, on maintaining our extraordinary

          4  success in driving down major crime, and on

          5  addressing quality of life violations of every type,

          6  the devotion of extensive resources to implementing

          7  this bill, by monitoring the number of vendors on a

          8  block and adjudicating the inevitable disputes,

          9  would be counterproductive in the extreme.

         10                 Beyond the conceptual framework of

         11  the regulatory scheme contained in the bill, we

         12  would like to share some observations about some of

         13  it's specific provisions.  First, the bill amends

         14  the current provision regarding exigent

         15  circumstances, allowing enforcement personnel to

         16  require a vendor to move by now requiring that the

         17  officer give the vendor notice in writing detailing

         18  the exigent condition, with a copy maintained in the

         19  agency's records for a year.  We submit that by

         20  definition, under exigent circumstances, it is

         21  neither practical nor responsible for the law to

         22  require an officer to issue a memo with a carbon

         23  copy before asking a vendor to move.

         24                 Second, the bill includes a new

         25  notice requirement upon seizure of a vendor's
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          2  property requiring written notice of the location of

          3  the property.  Currently, the vendor is provided a

          4  copy of the Property Clerk Voucher, prepared when

          5  property is seized, which includes information about

          6  how to claim the property but does not include a

          7  specific location for the property, especially since

          8  the location of the seized property may change.

          9  Accordingly, we would welcome further discussion of

         10  this provision.

         11                 Third, a perhaps unintended

         12  consequence of "unrestricting" all streets to

         13  vending is the effect of the bill on Administrative

         14  Code Section 19- 136 governing store merchants'

         15  sidewalk displays.  Such sidewalk obstructions are

         16  prohibited on any street where food or general

         17  vending is prohibited and the elimination of all

         18  such prohibitions in the bill would thereby

         19  similarly permit storefront displays on every street

         20  in the City except Ground Zero and lower Broadway.

         21  It is suggested that the effect of the bill to allow

         22  these structures everywhere be carefully considered

         23  and further discussed.

         24                 Finally, the bill includes a

         25  prohibition on the placement of external structures
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          2  or objects which have the effect of preventing

          3  vending unless the owner demonstrates a public

          4  safety need and authorization from the proper City

          5  agency.  It is unclear how this provision is meant

          6  to be construed in light of the Department of

          7  Transportation's authority and responsibility to

          8  issue franchises, revokable consents, permits and

          9  licenses whether for security related structures or

         10  other amenities and we suggest further discussion on

         11  this provision as well.

         12                 In conclusion, we would like to

         13  express our appreciation for your attention to the

         14  issue of vending and the care and thought that went

         15  into creating the bill.  Although we must oppose the

         16  central concept of the legislation, we agree that

         17  the current law can and should be improved as my

         18  colleagues will also discuss.

         19                 Thank you very much and we'll be

         20  pleased to answer your questions.

         21                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE: Good

         22  afternoon, Chairman Reed and members of the Consumer

         23  Affairs Committee.  My name is Pauline Toole and I'm

         24  an Assistant Commissioner for Policy at the

         25  Department of Consumer Affairs.  Commissioner
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          2  Dykstra asked me to thank you for this opportunity

          3  to comment on Intro 621 which would completely

          4  overhaul the City's street vendor management policy.

          5    She commends you for daring to tackle an issue

          6  that has vexed the City almost from it's inception.

          7                 Let me acknowledge at the outset that

          8  your proposal is far from a bolt out of the blue and

          9  note that Commissioner Dykstra, DCA staff and other

         10  City representatives have met with you, Chairman

         11  Reed, on several occasions to discuss the complex

         12  undertaking of creating a vendor policy that would

         13  include all vendors and be simple to understand and

         14  easy to enforce.  We explored with you a scheme that

         15  would limit the number of vendors to one from each

         16  category- essentially the three per block face. We

         17  discussed, at length, the impact of the State law on

         18  changing vending regulations in New York City and

         19  the fact that State lawmakers anticipated a local

         20  law to streamline vending regulations.

         21  Specifically, the General Business Law Section 35- a

         22  (7- a)(10) provides that the City could change it's

         23  street restrictions only if the rights of disabled

         24  veterans are not diminished.

         25                 The Administration, in fact, urged a
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          2  slower approach.  But we are viewing this proposal

          3  as the lever to put all concerns on the table in

          4  order to craft a transparent, enforceable city- wide

          5  approach.

          6                 Everyone agrees that we suffer from

          7  the current hodge-podge of sometimes conflicting,

          8  almost always complicated, exception-ridden and

          9  often confusing street vendor rules and laws. The

         10  City would like to replace the current system with a

         11  far reaching and completely new approach to managing

         12  vending on City streets.  However, while we praise

         13  you for setting forth one approach to such a plan,

         14  upon review of the details, we do not think it meets

         15  the stated goal.

         16                 The purpose and intentions of the

         17  proposal are clear and commendable.  You have heard

         18  from the New York City Police Department about the

         19  safety and enforcement issues the bill raises. These

         20  are critical issues that would need to be adequately

         21  resolved in any new system to regulate vending.

         22                 Let me review the major issues of

         23  concern to the Department of Consumer Affairs.

         24  These issues only hit the high points, there are

         25  also some technical drafting issues that don't
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          2  involve significant policy.  The New York City

          3  Police Department has commented on enforcement

          4  difficulties presented by opening all streets to

          5  vendors and limiting the number of vendors to three

          6  per block face.  We concur with their testimony.

          7                 On First Amendment Vendors.

          8                 The definitions for "general vendor"

          9  and "First Amendment vendor" are not clearly

         10  delineated because the definition for "general

         11  vendor" also includes anyone who is a "First

         12  Amendment vendor".  Merging these definitions leaves

         13  unclear whether the requirements applicable to

         14   "general vendors" also cover "First Amendment

         15  vendors."  To avoid the resulting ambiguity and

         16  confusion, the definition should clearly distinguish

         17  the two types of vendors by excluding First

         18  Amendment vendors from the general vendor definition

         19  as is done with food vendors.

         20                 Indeed, defining First Amendment

         21  vendors at all is quite difficult.  For example,

         22  paintings, graffiti hats and message bearing t-

         23  shirts have been all found by some courts to be

         24  protected speech while playing cards with pictures

         25  are not.
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          2                 Requiring First Amendment vendors to

          3  be licensed is unnecessarily burdensome and most

          4  likely unworkable.  Suspending or revoking a license

          5  is generally the most effective sanction for

          6  enforcing compliance with a licensing law.  That

          7  sanction is not as effective against First Amendment

          8  vendors since, by definition, it would bar them from

          9  exercising their First Amendment rights.  The

         10  licensing requirement is also unnecessary since the

         11  priority numbers for determining First Amendment

         12  vendor eligibility to vend at particular locations

         13  could be assigned without a license.  The priority

         14  rankings could be established based on date of

         15  issuance of the amendment's vendor tax ID number.

         16                 In lieu of licensing First Amendment

         17  vendors, the agency supports a registration process

         18  that would be used for identification and to ensure

         19  tax compliance.  This would give the City the

         20  opportunity to check the validity of the tax stamp

         21  at the time of registration, as well as any

         22  identification presented.

         23                 Since requiring the licensing of

         24  First Amendment vendors is unworkable for the

         25  reasons already noted, the application requirements
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          2  for First Amendment vendors should be revised to

          3  reflect only the information that would be needed

          4  for them to apply for priority numbers.

          5                 In addition, the proposal should

          6  affirm that registered First Amendment vendors are

          7  not permitted to sell general vending items.

          8                 Issuing Priority Numbers.

          9                 The proposed method and procedures

         10  for assigning priority numbers is also confusing.

         11  The bill would create an entirely separate priority

         12  numbering system for each of the three specified

         13  license types- specialized vendors, general vendors

         14  and First Amendment vendors- in addition to another

         15  numbering system for food vendors.

         16                 Using the license numbers to denote a

         17  licensee's priority status imposes an unnecessarily

         18  cumbersome and inflexible method for assigning

         19  priority numbers.  It would create entirely separate

         20  number sequences for each of the different types of

         21  vendors who would be issued licenses numbered

         22  according to entirely different numbering sequences.

         23    The priority numbers should, instead, be

         24  separately designated a sequence of consecutive

         25  numbers assigned in the order of ranking applicants.
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          2                 The issue of whether separate or

          3  unified priority numbers should be used for the

          4  different types of vendors and the methods for

          5  determining and assigning the priority numbers

          6  involves a host of both technical and policy matters

          7  that will need additional extensive exploration

          8  before it could be finalized.

          9                 Also on licensing, including in the

         10  same section, the grounds for approving and denying

         11  a license and the methods and procedures to be used

         12  for determining and assigning priority numbers

         13  combines two entirely separate functions and

         14  activities and confuses the purposes they serve and

         15  the standards prescribed.  The difference is that

         16  the Commissioner must exercise discretion when

         17  approving or denying licenses based on specific

         18  grounds, but the Commissioner is strictly obligated

         19  to assign a priority number based on the methods and

         20  procedures to be used.  This clear distinction would

         21  be best maintained by having the functions in two

         22  separate sections.

         23                 Fingerprinting.

         24                 Fingerprinting all applicants for

         25  vending licenses is intrusive and generally
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          2  unnecessary for vendors who operate on public

          3  streets.  They do not represent the potential threat

          4  to public safety for which a criminal background

          5  check using fingerprints would be warranted.  The

          6  Department supports the fingerprinting of vendors if

          7  they are arrested for violating the law.  But to

          8  begin to fingerprint the applicants of these small

          9  businesses cannot be justified on public safety

         10  grounds.

         11                 Multiple Licenses.

         12                 The ban on possessing more than one

         13  type of license leaves unclear whether a person can

         14  be issued more than one license but can use only one

         15  of them at a time or if a person can only be issued

         16  one license, period.  If it's meant as a limit on

         17  the number of licenses that could be issued, we need

         18  some additional clarification.

         19                 A Cap on Vendors and Veteran Vendors.

         20

         21                 Not a cap on veteran vendors but

         22  veteran vendors in the context of a cap.  In 1979,

         23  the Council created a cap of 853 on general vendor

         24  licenses.  This proposal would increase the number

         25  of general vendors to 12,050 in 2006 and 2,000 in
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          2  2007.  That would more than double the number of

          3  non- veteran general vendor licenses in a two year

          4  period.  The proposal excludes only specialized

          5  vending licensees, also known as disabled veterans,

          6  from the limitation on the number general vending

          7  licenses that can be issued.  However, all qualified

          8  veterans are excluded from the cap because Section

          9  32 of the General Business Law entitles any

         10  qualified veteran to have a vending license.  We

         11  estimate that there currently are 1,304 non-

         12  disabled veteran vendors who are vending with

         13  licenses and are not counted in the existing cap of

         14  853 licensed general vendors.

         15                 There also currently is a waiting

         16  list of 3,133 which was reduced over time from the

         17  5,347 people eager to become licensed vendors in

         18  1993 when the waiting list was established. Would

         19  these people have the first opportunity to obtain a

         20  general vendor license when the cap is removed?  The

         21  DCA agrees that increasing the number of licensed

         22  general vendors is sensible but only if it takes

         23  into account the waiting list, the number of

         24  licensed veterans and the capacity to accommodate

         25  additional vendors on the City's streets.
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          2                 Street and Site Restrictions on

          3  Vending.

          4                 The bill boldly repeals restrictions

          5  that entirely bar vending on particular streets or

          6  specific zoning districts except the World Trade

          7  Center site.  We commend you for continuing the

          8  prohibition on vending in the area people consider

          9  to be hallowed ground.

         10                 The bill would also terminate the

         11  Street Vendor Review Panel that is authorized to

         12  designate specific streets in which vending is

         13  prohibited during designated times because of

         14  congestion that threatens public safety.  It would

         15  instead limit to three the maximum number of vendors

         16  who could be present on any block face.

         17                 This provision would replace the

         18  current combination of all- or- nothing street

         19  restrictions and specific site restrictions that

         20  govern where vendors can be on the streets. Under

         21  the current system, when vending is allowed on a

         22  street, there is no further restriction on the

         23  number of vendors who can be present.

         24                 For the reasons cited by the New York

         25  City Police Department, this provision, as currently
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          2  envisioned, does not create the ease of enforcement

          3  the City desired.  Pedestrian safety may warrant a

          4  continuation of the ban on particular streets.  We

          5  are willing to work with you to consider what

          6  procedures should be used to appropriately prohibit

          7  vending.

          8                 Other options for accomplishing that

          9  management should be thoroughly explored.  Such

         10  options could include a combination of limited

         11  designated high congestion zones where vendors are

         12  prohibited, period, limiting vendors to a maximum

         13  number in less dense zones and eliminating the limit

         14  in uncongested zones, assigning specific locations

         15  to vendors or even retaining the current system.

         16                 On Sidewalk Displays.

         17                 An unintended by- product of these

         18  revisions would have a negative impact on many

         19  neighborhoods.  The authorization to place sales

         20  displays in front of buildings is keyed to whether

         21  or not vending is allowed on a particular street.

         22  The placement of such obstructions is regulated by

         23  Section 19- 136 of the Administrative Code.  The

         24  opening of all streets to vending would

         25  automatically allow the placement of sidewalk
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          2  displays in front of all store buildings.  We

          3  believe the question of whether to open all streets

          4  to sidewalk displays and what alternatives to vendor

          5  restrictions are available need further examination.

          6                 Written Notice of Exigent

          7  Circumstances.

          8                 With respect to the specific

          9  restrictions included in the bill, a major obstacle

         10  is the requirement that the Police Department give

         11  written notice detailing exigent circumstances

         12  requiring the removal of a vendor from a location.

         13  This requirement would be excessively burdensome and

         14  would essentially make ineffective the police

         15  authority to act in exigent circumstances.

         16                 Enforcement.

         17                 The requirements for determining

         18  eligibility to vend based on a vendor's priority

         19  status are also flawed.  The provision that would

         20  establish eligibility based on who arrived between

         21  the hours of 5:00 to 11:00 a.m. is completely

         22  unworkable since it would impossible for the police

         23  to determine who came first.  Dividing the day into

         24  two shifts apparently reflects a desire to give the

         25  coffee and hot dog vendors two bites at the apple
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          2  but we don't think it works in this scenario.

          3                 The procedures for determining

          4  eligibility in other cases are confusing and will

          5  require additional clarification.

          6                 The method for fixing the location

          7  where the maximum number of vendors per street

          8  location are allowed to vend also needs further

          9  review.  A block face may not be the most

         10  appropriate geographic base for fixing the number of

         11  vendors allowed on a street since it could

         12  technically permit a large number of vendors to

         13  congregate in a small area.  Alternatives for fixing

         14  the maximum number of vendors permitted there need

         15  to be explored, such as fixing a specific distance

         16  between vendors and the curb.

         17                 This section also mixes together two

         18  different requirements that are best and most

         19  clearly covered separately.

         20                 One requirement specifies the

         21  standards for determining who is eligible to vend at

         22  a particular location when more than the authorized

         23  number of vendors are present.  The other specifies

         24  how the rules are to be enforced, including the

         25  enforcement powers to be used and penalties imposed
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          2  to ensure compliance with the rules.

          3                 The provisions to effectuate the each

          4  requirement should be set separately to ensure that

          5  they are clear and comprehensible.

          6                 Licensing and Regulation of

          7  Distributors.

          8                 The provisions in this bill generally

          9  adapt existing language for licensing persons who

         10  distribute goods to general vendors.  This is an

         11  opportunity to make that existing law more

         12  effective.  The DCA suggests eliminating the

         13  provision that permits distributors to use

         14  detachable signs.  All too often this flexibility

         15  has been used to evade detection by unlicensed, of

         16  unlicensed distributors.  We also suggest that

         17  record keeping language be added.  This would help

         18  to track the customers of distributors to verify

         19  vendor compliance with the existing record keeping

         20  and tax paying requirements.

         21                 We also suggest consideration of

         22  language to hold distributors responsible for

         23  violations committed by their drivers.

         24                 Penalties.

         25                 The proposed fine schedule fixes the
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          2  specific amount of the fines to be imposed for the

          3  listed violations.  The schedule does not allow for

          4  discretion to impose a lesser penalty in any

          5  negotiated settlement.  By eliminating discretion in

          6  setting penalties, the schedule creates no incentive

          7  to settle violations thereby discouraging

          8  settlements and encouraging all violators to take

          9  their cases to a hearing.  At the least, the bill

         10  should allow for lesser penalties for settlements.

         11                 Adjudication.

         12                 The bill would switch the

         13  adjudication of general vendor law violations from

         14  the Environmental Control Board (ECB) to the DCA.

         15  Since this switch would add about 8,000 cases to

         16  DCA's annual caseload, it should be phased in over a

         17  period longer than the effective date of the bill in

         18  order to enable the Department of Consumer Affairs

         19  to cope with the increase.  Please be aware that the

         20  Environmental Control Board can also docket fines

         21  owed to the City.  DCA, by contrast, does not

         22  currently have that power and must go to court to

         23  docket judgement.

         24                 Prohibition of structures restricting

         25  vending.

                                                            37

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2                 These provisions would ban structures

          3  to restrict vending where it would otherwise be

          4  allowed unless structures are necessary for public

          5  safety and have been approved by the Department of

          6  Transportation.  As written, it appears to prohibit

          7  such non- safety structures as newsstands and bus

          8  shelters which likely is not the intent.

          9                 The DOT staff have relayed their

         10  serious concerns about this provision to us.

         11  Basically, the concern is that all non- safety

         12  structures city- wide would be barred.  This would

         13  include the placement of government sited structures

         14  such as parking meters and mail boxes.  Many non-

         15  safety structures are an important part of the

         16  City's street- scape and enhance the quality of

         17  life.  Limiting their placement is problematic and

         18  requires further examination.

         19                 The placement of many of these

         20  structures is properly subject to the jurisdiction

         21  of the Department of Transportation and that

         22  agency's jurisdiction should remain intact.

         23                 Finally, let me turn to Intro 491,

         24  which would eliminate the inquiry about an

         25  applicant's citizenship when filing a general vendor
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          2  application.  This is the only license category that

          3  DCA staff makes an inquiry about a applicant's

          4  citizenship because the local law requires it.  It

          5  is certainly time for you to pass a law that would

          6  change this and we wholeheartedly support

          7  eliminating the legal requirement.  Thank you.

          8                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER MARCUS: Good

          9  afternoon, Chairman Reed and members of the City

         10  Council Consumer Affairs Committee.  My name is

         11  Elliott Marcus.  I'm the Associate Commissioner for

         12  the Bureau of Food Safety and Community Sanitation

         13  at the New York City Department of Health and Mental

         14  Hygiene.  With me today is Joseph Caleb, the

         15  Director of the Bureau's Office of Mobile Food

         16  Vending Inspections and Steven Linden, Director of

         17  the Department's Licensing Office.  Thank you for

         18  giving the Department the opportunity to address

         19  this very important legislation today.

         20                 With respect to Intro 621 and mobile

         21  food vending, protecting the public health by

         22  reducing the risks of food- borne illness is the

         23  Health and Mental Health Department's primary role.

         24  The Bureau's greatest responsibility is assuring

         25  that the City's nearly 21,000 food service
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          2  establishments and currently an additional 4,386

          3  year- round, seasonal and restricted area mobile

          4  food vendor permitees are properly permitted.  It is

          5  a substantial undertaking, which the Bureau

          6  accomplishes by providing regular and periodic

          7  inspections to determine if food service

          8  establishments and mobile food vendors are complying

          9  with the health code.  Beyond enforcing the

         10  regulations to which food service establishment

         11  operations must adhere, Bureau inspections, Bureau

         12  inspectors spend a considerable amount of time

         13  educating operators of these establishments on food

         14  safety practices.  The thrust of our program is to

         15  emphasize food safety education.

         16                 To place our comments on Intro 621

         17  into context, I will describe how the Department

         18  regulates mobile food vending. The Department issues

         19  a mobile vending operator's license and a mobile

         20  food vending cart permit.  The permit is a decal

         21  that the Department affixes to the cart or truck

         22  upon it successfully passing a pre- permitting

         23  inspection.  With the exception of carts operating

         24  in parks and a few exclusive distributors, an

         25  individual may only possess one cart permit.
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          2  However, there may be, and often is, more than one

          3  licensed vendor operating a cart.  A license

          4  applicant must take and pass a mobile food vending

          5  food protection course in order to receive the

          6  license.  This consists of a photo ID badge, one by

          7  the mobile food vendor's vendor.

          8                 Although there is no current legal

          9  limit on the number of licenses the Department may

         10  issue, there is a current fixed limit of 4,100

         11  permits for mobile food vending.  Hence, there are

         12  waiting lists for permits.  When a permit becomes

         13  available because an existing permittee fails to

         14  renew the permit, for example, the Department

         15  notifies the next on the waiting list and they may

         16  apply.  Currently, there are approximately 9,000

         17  licensees, a number that fluctuates considerably.

         18                 The Citywide Licensing Center at

         19  Department of Consumer Affairs receives applications

         20  for licenses and permits. Applicants are required to

         21  submit to the Licensing Center identifying

         22  information and proof of a certificate to collect

         23  sales tax issues by the New York State Department of

         24  Taxation and Finance.  To renew an existing license

         25  or permit, vendors and cart owners must show that
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          2  they have no tax liabilities with New York State or

          3  New York City and no outstanding summonses issued to

          4  them for violations of the Health Code.  All license

          5  applicants are required to to show they have

          6  completed and passed the Food Protection Course

          7  offered by the Department's Health Academy. Permit

          8  applications must include proof that the applicant

          9  currently has, or is applying for, an operators

         10  license.

         11                 License applicants receive their

         12  photo ID badges in the mail three to four weeks

         13  after submitting a completed and satisfactory

         14  application.  An applicant for a new or renewed

         15  permit must schedule and pass a pre- permit

         16  inspection by the Department's Bureau for Food

         17  Safety and Community Sanitation before the permit

         18  will be issued.

         19                 The Department's primary concerns

         20  about Intro 621 are that some provisions of Title 17

         21  and Title 20 are inconsistent with one another,

         22  inconsistent with provisions of the City's Health

         23  Code and do not address the issue posing the

         24  greatest risk to public health, illegal vending.

         25  There also are several terms on which we would
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          2  appreciate greater clarity.

          3                 While the terms "general","first

          4  amendment" and "specialty" are defined, the term

          5  vendor is frequently used in the bill, which may

          6  lead to confusion.  For example, Section 20- 466(b)

          7  of the bill states that "no vendor shall occupy more

          8  than eight linear feet."  Section 89.09 of the

          9  Health Code, however, allows for carts up to ten

         10  feet long.  If, in fact, "vendor" in this section

         11  refers to all vendors then mobile food vendors would

         12  be required to shorten their carts unless they were

         13  specifically grandfathered into the bill.  Another

         14  example of where the use of the term "vendor" is

         15  confusing is in Section 20- 469(m) which states that

         16  no vendor shall use electricity, electrical

         17  generating equipment or gasoline or gasoline powered

         18  equipment, devices or machinery of any kind.  Mobile

         19  food vending processing carts must use some of this

         20  type of equipment to cook food and heat hot water.

         21  The Department respectfully urges the Council to

         22  specify the type of vendor to which it refers

         23  wherever the term "vendor" is used.

         24                 Sections 20- 466(d), (e) and (n) and

         25  Section 17 317(k)(2), which define restrictions on
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          2  the placement of carts presents several

          3  inconsistencies and deserve and better clarity. We

          4  would be happy to discuss the technical concerns or

          5  the inconsistencies in greater detail at a future

          6  date.  17- 315 seems to reduce the allowable

          7  distance by half between a food vendor and bus

          8  shelters, newsstands, subway entrances, and building

          9  entrances and exits.  The Department frequently

         10  receives complaints specific to the proximity of

         11  carts to bus shelters, newsstands etcetera and is

         12  concerned that decreasing the distance will result

         13  in more complaints and greater risk to pedestrians

         14  particularly with regard to placement near subway

         15  exits and entrances and residential buildings.  We

         16  also think that Section 40- 466 should prohibit the

         17  use of an awning that protrudes from the set width

         18  and length of a cart as it may pose a hazard to

         19  pedestrians.

         20                 Section 20- 471 addresses the seizure

         21  of perishable goods and charges the Commissioner of

         22  Health and Mental Hygiene with accepting a delivery

         23  of any perishable items or food products that cannot

         24  be retained in custody without such items or food

         25  products becoming unwholesome, putrid, decomposed,
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          2  or unfit in any way to be changed.  As our

          3  Department does not have capacity to dispose of food

          4  that has been seized, it recommends that such food

          5  be delivered to the Department of Sanitation for

          6  disposal.

          7                 Section 17- 307(b) places a limit on

          8  the number of food vendor licenses on whatever the

          9  active number is as of September 1st, 2005.  The

         10  Department does not believe there is a need to limit

         11  the number of licenses, since there are a fixed

         12  number of carts and frequently there are multiple

         13  vendors working a cart.  Additionally, the bill

         14  effectively doubles the number of borough- specific

         15  permits by adding 50 each to Brooklyn, Queens, the

         16  Bronx and Staten Island.  The Department is

         17  concerned that limiting the number of licenses will

         18  lead to more illegal mobile food vendors.  Since

         19  licensed mobile food vendors must take and pass a

         20  food protection course, we would prefer that all

         21  those that wish to earn a living vending food have

         22  the opportunity to learn about food safety.

         23                 Section 17- 307(d) prohibits the

         24  simultaneous possession of more than one of any of

         25  the vending licenses referred to in the legislation.
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          2    The Department does not believe that the bill

          3  should limit an individual's opportunities to earn a

          4  living by restricting the number of types of

          5  licenses one may possess and it is unclear what this

          6  provision would accomplish.

          7                 Section 17- 309(d) would require

          8  fingerprinting for applicants for licenses.  The

          9  Department supports the position of the Department

         10  of Consumer Affairs and believes the requirement to

         11  be unnecessary in the absence of some articulated

         12  reason for it. Additionally, the bill does not state

         13  what should be done with the fingerprints.

         14  Complying with this provision would require a

         15  Memorandum of Understanding with the Department of

         16  Investigation or result in the Department conducting

         17  the fingerprinting.  Either case would require

         18  significant new funding needs.

         19                 The enforcement specifications in

         20  Section 17- 321, which allows for only one

         21   "general", "First Amendment" and "food" vendor on a

         22  block face would be difficult to enforce and would

         23  reduce the efficiency of inspectors.  Having them

         24  make a finding as to who came to a block first

         25  between 5 and 11 a.m. would be difficult, if not
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          2  impossible.  As it is, inspectors must frequently

          3  call on the assistance of the police, of a police

          4  officer to assist in gaining compliance with cart

          5  placement provisions of the current law.  Enforcing

          6  this regulation will increase arguments and the

          7  frequency with which Department inspectors much call

          8  on the police and therefore reduce the number of

          9  inspections they are able to perform in a day.

         10  Department inspectors, assigned to different areas

         11  of the City each week in an attempt to inspect all

         12  operating mobile food carts, are far to few in

         13  number to effectively enforce this provision and as

         14  this issue is addressed in Article 20, the

         15  Department believes it would be more effective to

         16  leave this enforcement to the police.

         17                 Finally, there are several pedestrian

         18  malls throughout the City, primarily in business

         19  districts, where it is now common to see multiple

         20  mobile food vendors as well as other vendors.

         21  Applying this subsection to those sites would

         22  disrupt long term practices and inconvenience the

         23  public's desire for quick and convenient food.

         24  These groups of vendors also are more easily

         25  regulated as they tend to set up in the same spot
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          2  everyday and are easier to find.  In fact, in the

          3  Council's deliberations, the issue of requiring some

          4  vendors to limit their location of vending to one of

          5  several specific locations might be considered.

          6                 The Department thanks the City

          7  Council for it's efforts to address the multiple

          8  vending problems that exist. However, the

          9  legislation, as it is currently drafted, is unclear

         10  and poses greater enforcement challenges for the

         11  Department without a concurrent benefit.  Thank you

         12  for inviting the Department to comment on this

         13  legislation.  We'd be happy to work with Council on

         14  clarifications, as well as on how City agencies

         15  might work together to deal with large public health

         16  issues presented by illegal vending.  I am pleased

         17  to answer any questions you may have.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Well, thank you

         19  very much all of you for your testimony.  Excuse me.

         20    There's a lot of, and unfortunately, I think some

         21  of the testimony itself is ambiguous but we will

         22  certainly ask our legal counsel to go through much

         23  of it.  In terms of, is it Dr. or Mr. Marcus?  Mr.

         24  Marcus.  I'm just struck and I was speaking to our

         25  attorney.  A lot of the most ambiguous parts that
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          2  you referred to are things that we've lifted out of

          3  the Administrative Code.  So we didn't really change

          4  very much as it relates, we didn't change anything

          5  that I know of, in terms of your abilities to

          6  inspect the carts or the size of the carts or how

          7  things are identified.

          8                 Really the only application we had

          9  was in the sense of you have to have five to 11, now

         10  we're going to get rid of that but the number of

         11  vendors.  So if there's ambiguity, it exists in the

         12  Code now.  We'd be happy to help you with it but

         13  there may be other things you might want to re-read

         14  in that Code and see if there's some clarity that we

         15  need to get in that.  I think the main concern that

         16  I have about, the two main concerns that I have

         17  about the testimony from the Administration, and I

         18  wrap that all together, is the issue of, well one,

         19  is the lack of enforceability.

         20                 This is a major concern that I have

         21  because in the four hearings that we've had here in

         22  the City Council and in the 15 or 20, maybe more,

         23  meetings that I've had formal and informal, in my

         24  office, the number one problem that is brought to

         25  our attention is the lack of enforcement of the
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          2  existing vending laws as they are now.  The vendors

          3  don't think that the law's enforced.  The shop

          4  keepers don't think the laws are enforced.  There

          5  has been suggestion that there's organized crime

          6  involved in the vending business, that there is

          7  leasing of licenses which is prohibited. It's

          8  wholesale.  I could write a book on what I have

          9  heard is the lack of enforceability and, in fact,

         10  the Police Department has come and testified that

         11  they don't enforce the laws.  They've said they're

         12  unenforceable.  So I'm not sure, Ms. Petito and

         13  Lieutenant Albano, why this structure is any worse

         14  than the one that exists now.

         15                 In fact, what I'd like to do is take

         16  a moment for, if you'd like to Lieutenant Albano, to

         17  tell us what it is you think that the Police

         18  Department is doing in terms of effective

         19  enforcement now.

         20                 LIEUTENANT ALBANO: I don't have

         21  specific figures, sir, but I am aware that -- I

         22  don't have specific figures for you but I believe up

         23  until last week, we have one unit in southern

         24  Manhattan, the Patrol Borough of Manhattan South

         25  Peddler Task Force, that made as many as 900
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          2  arrests, virtually all of them for unlicensed

          3  general vending.  We do issues summonses for

          4  violation of size and placement restrictions.  We do

          5  seize property.  I don't have those figures but that

          6  900 figure is the best figure I can get you and

          7  that's from a small group of officers, over 900

          8  arrests in a four month period so there is some

          9  enforcement.  There's a lot of enforcement.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON REED: You're talking

         11  about unlicensed vendors.

         12                 LIEUTENANT ALBANO: Yes, sir.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON REED: And we all think

         14  that we need to try to reduce the number of

         15  unlicensed vendors on the street.  In fact, some of

         16  this, I think, is trying to address that issue.  But

         17  that's not a problem that's going to go away by any

         18  new scheme that we have in terms of vending, unless

         19  I'm mistaken, that if you've got people with illegal

         20  activity, legislation, to sort of clarify what is

         21  legal, doesn't change that, unless I'm wrong.

         22                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: Mr.

         23  Chairman, I think the issue is one of resources and

         24  I agree with you that the illegal vending is

         25  something that we pay tremendous attention to and we
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          2  need to do that.  The problem with instituting the

          3  new regulatory scheme of the three per block face is

          4  that, that adds a new type of enforcement basically

          5  for the people who are already enforcing the illegal

          6  vending.  It would be the same people doing that and

          7  so it would be very difficult to try to use those

          8  same resources for a completely new purpose as well

          9  as paying attention to the illegal vending.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON REED: It's not a new

         11  purpose, Ms. Petito, the purpose that the police are

         12  out there now are to enforce the laws and to oversee

         13  the regulation of those folks who have legal

         14  licenses.  It may be a different system but we're

         15  not adding anything to it.  I'm not hearing you or

         16  Lieutenant Albano say that there's really any

         17  enforcement of the existing laws as relates to

         18  licensed vendors so I don't understand -- yes, I

         19  understand that there is potentially a scarcity of

         20  resources.  I understand that.  I serve on the

         21  Public Safety Committee.  I'm mindful that we are

         22  under a circumstance here in terms of terrorism

         23  where we're trying to put a lot of effort there.

         24                 We're not getting money from

         25  Washington or Albany, for that matter, two
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          2  governments that our Mayor supports, the two

          3  Administrations by the way, but that hasn't got

          4  anything to do with enforcing the laws whether

          5  they're new or existing about vending and so I just

          6  don't, I don't find your argument to hold a lot of

          7  weight.

          8                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: Well,

          9  maybe I can explain it better.  What I mean is that

         10  this new way of regulating vending adds a completely

         11  new set of problems that add an enforcement burden

         12  to what the Police Department would have to do. We

         13  have a current scheme which people are familiar

         14  with.  We also have a tremendous focus on illegal

         15  vending but --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON REED: We have a current

         17  scheme that you and everybody else has said is

         18  chaotic and unenforceable and not workable.  That's

         19  what we have.  But you folks are able to police it

         20  somehow.

         21                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: We do

         22  the best we can with the system that we have but

         23  what I'm concerned about and what the Police

         24  Department is concerned about is the new system

         25  envisioned under the bill adds a completely new
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          2  level of required enforcement to make sure that that

          3  system works correctly because it presumes the

          4  continuing presence of a police officer in many,

          5  many places where you have the leapfrogging take

          6  place from one block to the other and you have the

          7  requirement that someone watch how many vendors are

          8  on a particular street at a particular time. That

          9  additional new requirement is problematic for us.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON REED: We are certainly

         11  willing to sit down with the Police Department and

         12  review this.  It seems to me, that in my discussions

         13  with the Criminal Justice Coordinator, that the

         14  plan, the scheme that was put in place, absent

         15  perhaps the 5 a.m. to 11, let's get rid of that in

         16  this conversation, that it's not difficult to

         17  enforce a law that says there's only three people on

         18  a block.  We all can count how many people are on a

         19  block.

         20                 What you've said over and over again

         21  is that we don't have regulation on the number of

         22  vendors on a block now. This new proposal would give

         23  us that.  It's also not difficult to figure out if

         24  Council Member Liu is a general vendor and I'm a

         25  general vendor, in this scheme if his number 19 and
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          2  mine is 26, he gets the spot.  How complicated is

          3  that?

          4                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: Mr.

          5  Chairman, it's not complicated if there is a police

          6  officer there to make that determination.  The

          7  problem is that this regulatory plan puts us in a

          8  position of having every street in the City,

          9  virtually, subject to this plan where the disputes

         10  would have to be adjudicated. Somebody would need to

         11  show up from an enforcement capacity --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Isn't every police

         13  officer, by virtue of their job, in an enforcement

         14  capacity?

         15                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: --

         16  Absolutely but the problem is that they are not on

         17  every street at every moment of the day.  They have

         18  responses to individual incidents.  They have on

         19  going activities that they monitor but this is the

         20  kind of situation where it sets up a requirement

         21  that somebody pay attention on every street in the

         22  City to make sure that only three vendors are there.

         23    It doesn't work --

         24                 CHAIRPERSON REED: So what you're

         25  saying is that none of the vendors are going to
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          2  behave in a manner to recognize the system.  It's

          3  interesting because the vendors --

          4                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: Mr.

          5  Chairman, I'm really not saying that.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON REED: -- Well, it sounds

          7  like that's what you've just said.  You said they're

          8  going to be bumping one -- what we have in the

          9  system now is chaotic, difficult as it is, people

         10  have worked out their positions and their places and

         11  I'm told, at least, by many of the licensed,

         12  particularly the veterans, but by the licensed

         13  vendor community that they respect one another in

         14  terms of the place and who -- we have a priority

         15  system right now.  We have a priority system that

         16  says the disabled veteran vendors have the highest

         17  priority wherever they go.  Is that right?

         18                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: Yes.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON REED: We have a system

         20  right now that says that the disabled veteran

         21  vendors in the Midtown Corridor have priority.  Is

         22  that right?

         23                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: Well,

         24  they are the only --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON REED: That's not
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          2  complicated, is it?

          3                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: --

          4  People.

          5                 LIEUTENANT ALBANO: There's several

          6  dozen what we refer to as blues.  They have a blue

          7  disabled veteran vendor license.  The figure was I

          8  think --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON REED: No, no, no, the

         10  question is simple.

         11                 LIEUTENANT ALBANO: I'm sorry.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Do they have the

         13  highest priority in terms of location on the

         14  streets?

         15                 LIEUTENANT ALBANO: I wouldn't put it

         16  as a priority. They can't bump anybody under the

         17  current system.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON REED: They don't have

         19  their own numbering system.  The disabled veterans

         20  have a numbering system based on --

         21                 LIEUTENANT ALBANO: Within the handful

         22  of, virtually a handful, of disabled veteran vendors

         23   --

         24                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Exactly.

         25                 LIEUTENANT ALBANO: -- With blue
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          2  licenses.  Yes, sir, they do.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Exactly.  So, at

          4  least, as I recall in the conversation I had with

          5  the Police Department or at least as represented the

          6  Criminal Justice Coordinator, there is a

          7  hierarchical system that exists now that's

          8  recognized by the vendors and is recognized by the

          9  police.  Is that true?

         10                 LIEUTENANT ALBANO: Only in the

         11  context of the blue vendors, sir.  The blue disabled

         12  veteran vendors --

         13                 CHAIRPERSON REED: So that makes it

         14  pretty simple to figure out whose got what number

         15  which is higher than the other guy.  Right?

         16                 LIEUTENANT ALBANO: Amongst 65 or 70

         17  people and spread out across the midtown core area,

         18  I guess that could be said to be true.  Yes.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON REED: So I'm trying to

         20  distill down the real concern that the Police

         21  Department has, if we get rid of everything else

         22  here, is that your concern is that you will have to

         23  expend additional effort and perhaps that may be

         24  true, at least initially, in if this proposal were

         25  to become law, you would have to expend some
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          2  additional energy to regulate and enforce this as it

          3  begins to take place and settle in to a system that

          4  people understand.

          5                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: I

          6  think our concern is that it is impossible to expend

          7  enough energy to make the system work the way you

          8  would like it to work because it's literally City

          9  wide and there are places all through the City where

         10  vendors would want to be and perhaps would seek to

         11  exceed the three vendor per block face limit and

         12  those disputes would have to be adjudicated and the

         13  problem is that the police officer cannot always be

         14  there and you also have --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON REED: A police officer

         16  can't always be on a corner when somebody tries to

         17  steal my wallet either but we still have laws

         18  against it and we have the Police Department so I'm

         19  not sure I understand.  First of all, I would

         20  disagree with you that there's going to be enormous

         21  new sections of the City other than those that have

         22  been arbitrarily restricted based on the influence

         23  that a significant amount of business community

         24  people have had to restrict streets.  But beyond

         25  those areas, I'm not sure that there's going to be

                                                            59

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2  an excessive amount of vending in new neighborhoods.

          3    The marketplace is really going to fix that

          4  problem.

          5                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: I

          6  don't know that and I don't know that we all can

          7  really know that depending on whether or not the cap

          8  is raised as well that additional new vendors would

          9  be looking for other places where perhaps vending

         10  has not been popular so far.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Well, let me

         12  understand this. Right now, the Midtown Corridor on

         13  many of the side streets has anywhere from four,

         14  five, six, seven vendors on the side streets.      LIEUTENANT

         15  ALBANO: Or more, yes.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Or more and that's

         17  problematic.

         18                 LIEUTENANT ALBANO: To a certain

         19  extent, yes.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON REED: And there's -- you

         21  can't limit the number of people that are vending on

         22  those side streets now?

         23                 LIEUTENANT ALBANO: No, we cannot,

         24  other than by some size and placement issue.

         25  There's only so many spots on any given block that
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          2  are going to be legal and not violate, say for

          3  example, twenty feet of a doorway or ten feet of a

          4  subway or crosswalk.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON REED: So how is putting a

          6  system in place that clearly delineates and maybe

          7  there's some language that needs to be clarified

          8  about what's a general vendor, who's a First

          9  Amendment vendor.  I understand all those concerns

         10  but that's not the essence, the core of what we're

         11  working on.  How is having a clearly delineated

         12  system where you can have three people on a block

         13  more complicated to enforce than the one now where

         14  you've got four, five, six and sometimes, in your

         15  own testimony, more than that on a single block?

         16  That's what I don't understand.

         17                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: It may

         18  not be more complicated but it might be more

         19  difficult because, again, it presumes the fact that

         20  the vendors will self- regulate to three per block

         21  and we don't know that that will be the case and if

         22  it's not the case then police officers would have to

         23  literally walk the blocks and count them.  Some of

         24  the blocks, especially in Midtown, are very long.

         25  It would be very difficult to see how many vendors
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          2  are on one block face stretching, for example, from

          3  Fifth to Sixth Avenue.  It presents operational

          4  obstacles that we don't currently face.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Okay, I know,

          6  several of my colleagues have questions.  I have a

          7  lot more for the Administration but I think just in

          8  order of who was recognized first, Council Member

          9  Barron and then Council Member Liu.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Thank you very

         11  much, Mr. Chairman.  You know, I just want to the

         12  Police Department first and to some of the cheering

         13  that goes on in the audience, you all need to

         14  understand that they -- you're not talking about --

         15  you would be opposed to even opening up all of the

         16  streets to the vendors. Isn't that correct?

         17                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: Well,

         18  we're opposed to the wholesale elimination in the

         19  bill.  Absolutely, we think it needs to be much more

         20  carefully considered.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Right, so when

         22  you all are cheering because you're against the

         23  three on a block, they don't want you on any blocks

         24  so you need to be clear about that.  Not any blocks,

         25  that's an exaggeration, but it's not like they have
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          2  a big problem with three on a block, in my opinion,

          3  and I think we need to work on that and work on the

          4  First Amendment rights to that.  I got (sic) serious

          5  concerns about the bill but you all need to

          6  understand that this is not like they're in favor of

          7  you vending on the blocks that we feel that you

          8  should vend on and this is more so that when it

          9  seems like you have a partner in something, be

         10  cautious about how much you cheer the Police

         11  Department.

         12                 So having said that, having said that

         13  and then you'll get a chance to respond in your

         14  testimonies but do you favor, since you have

         15  difficulties determining who was here first, if we

         16  had a bill that said that they can freely vendor

         17  maybe has no restrictions except for the Ground Zero

         18  and then maybe had several vendors on the block so

         19  you didn't have to figure who was first, who was

         20  second but open it up to more vendors?

         21                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: Well,

         22  I think we would have to look at what the plan would

         23  be.  I know Commissioner Toole mentioned some

         24  options in her testimony.  We are reacting to the

         25  bill so --
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: I understand

          3  but I'm saying I'm trying --

          4                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: -- But

          5  we would certainly be part of the discussions.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: So you would

          7  lean more favorable so that you wouldn't have to

          8  count if we said that, you know, any number of

          9  vendors can vendor on the block as long as we adhere

         10  to some of the other restrictions and you wouldn't

         11  have to worry about three and others could vendor

         12  and we'd open it up even more and you won't have to

         13  worry about unlicensed vendors because we can raise

         14  the cap more so maybe those who don't have licenses

         15  now can have licenses.  Would you be more favorable

         16  for something like that?

         17                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: I

         18  think that we would certainly participate in a

         19  discussion on the plan that there are absolutely

         20  valid ways, as I said, Commissioner Toole pointed

         21  out that we could facilitate increased vending in a

         22  safe manner, but we would still probably need to

         23  restrict streets depending on what the pedestrian

         24  traffic would be.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: I see.  What
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          2  if not restricting streets could help us better to

          3  manage vendoring and give greater opportunities for

          4  those who need licenses to do some vendoring and

          5  earn a decent living.

          6                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: We

          7  would certainly look at it.  We would have to study

          8  it together.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: So you would

         10  be open for more of that?

         11                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: What

         12  we would have to do is talk about it and we would

         13  certainly be open to talking about it.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Well, it seems

         15  like you met with the Chairman several times.  You

         16  all talked a lot and when you get here, it's like a

         17  whole bunch of stuff that you didn't -- I'm just

         18  amazed -- what did you all say at these meetings?

         19                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: I'm

         20  sorry.  We didn't participate in those meetings.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Oh okay,

         22  that's the Administration.

         23                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: Sorry.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Let me move to

         25  the Administration.  Assistant Commissioner Toole.

                                                            65

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Can I -- excuse me

          3  just for one second?  I don't mean to be

          4  disrespectful but this is the problem that I don't

          5  think I'm the only chair of a committee that has.

          6  We reach out to the Administration to talk candidly

          7  about issues. When we, at least in this capacity,

          8  say we'd like to hear from the Police Department,

          9  we're told that we should meet with the Criminal

         10  Justice Coordinator.  Fine, that's the

         11  Administration's choice.

         12                 We meet with the Criminal Justice

         13  Coordinator, not once, not twice but I think three

         14  times, have long conversations. We have a hearing on

         15  this bill that now is five weeks since it's been

         16  introduced, four weeks maybe, had conversations,

         17  have the expectations that the very person that we

         18  had this dialog with is going to be at this hearing.

         19    Shock, the man is not here.  You're here.

         20                 You have done terrific job in my

         21  experience as the last four years of representing

         22  the Police Department and you, understandably, say

         23  you weren't a part of those conversations.  Why is

         24  the Administration sending somebody who was not a

         25  part of those conversations about the Police
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          2  Department when they know that that's exactly what

          3  we're going to talk about?

          4                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: Well,

          5  I think the idea was to have the three major

          6  agencies in charge of enforcing the subject matter

          7  of the bill.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Yes, but Ms.

          9  Petito, you weren't- they didn't invite you or have

         10  your participation in the conversation about the

         11  Police Department's role in vending.

         12                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: I

         13  cannot speak to that.  Unfortunately, I don't know

         14  why.  Perhaps it was an oversight and we certainly

         15  would have appreciated participating in those

         16  discussions.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON REED: I see.  Council

         18  Member Barron.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: I share your

         20  frustration because no matter what we feel about

         21  this bill, a lot of work was put into this bill and

         22  I think it would be more respectful to the Chair and

         23  this Committee to have the appropriate people here

         24  to talk about the issues that were raised at the

         25  meeting because you would think that there were no
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          2  meetings that took place.  All of the stuff that you

          3  have outlined of what was said at the meetings and

          4  half of this stuff could have been worked out at the

          5  meetings but for all of this stuff to come up now, I

          6  think we need to have a more serious and disciplined

          7  approach toward resolving this issue here but let me

          8  just go to the Administration and I'll stop, Mr.

          9  Chair.

         10                 First of all, I want to thank you for

         11  supporting our Intro, 491.  I think it's long

         12  overdue and thank you for the support there.  But

         13  would you support, what is their solution, opening

         14  up the streets, more vendors to be on the blocks

         15  instead of three and not violate the First Amendment

         16  rights?  Do you want more vendors?  Do you want

         17  streets closed?  Do you want a limited less streets

         18  open to vendors?  What part of it, what are you

         19  saying here today?

         20                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE: I think

         21  what I said in my somewhat lengthy testimony was

         22  that the Commissioner of the Department met with the

         23  Chair on several occasions as well as testified

         24  before this Committee and they staked out, she

         25  staked out some approaches, some of which are in
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          2  this proposal but not as the Commissioner said to

          3  the Chair, moving what we thought was quickly, was

          4  problematic because there are issues that haven't

          5  been resolved.  The disabled veteran vendor issue

          6  the enforcement issue in terms of actually having

          7  the Police Department, the people who have to be on

          8  the --

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Excuse me,

         10  Commissioner --

         11                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE: -- Let

         12  me just finish the one sentence --

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: -- No, because

         14  I don't want to --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Council member,

         16  please let her finish her sentence.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: I will, Mr.

         18  Chair but I read the, I heard the testimony.  She's

         19  basically repeating what we've already read and

         20  heard.  I was asking another question.

         21                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE: Oh, I'm

         22  sorry.  I didn't understand.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Did you, would

         24  you support opening up more vendors?  What is your

         25  proposed solution, not more discussion, just would
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          2  you, are you saying that, should we have more

          3  vendors on a block instead of three?  Less streets,

          4  some streets closed, not all of them?

          5                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE: The

          6  Administration's point of view is that we are open

          7  to consider a system that would be clearer, that

          8  would have more vending, that would have street

          9  restrictions and would do it fairly.  We don't think

         10  with all the work that's gone into this that this is

         11  quite it and we would need to go back and have the

         12  Police Department involved and figure out what is

         13  the most appropriate way to do that and I don't

         14  think this is the venue to complete that.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: I think I'm

         16  clear on the criticism.  I just haven't heard any

         17  concrete solutions.  I mean, after all the meetings

         18  and talk, I would appreciate it, a more specific

         19  concrete solutions (sic) and I'm sure we'll have

         20  more discussions and more talk so that's what

         21  hearings are for but, I mean, concrete solutions and

         22  specific suggestions work better for me but thank

         23  you very much, Mr. Chair.

         24                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE: Let me

         25  just note the City has been grappling with this very
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          2  problem for more than a century.  If it was simple

          3  to do, it would have been done a long time ago.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: I didn't say

          5  it was simple.

          6                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE: I'm not

          7  saying it's simple either but we don't have a

          8  perfect solution we can put out for you.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: I didn't ask

         10  for perfect and I didn't ask for simple.  I asked

         11  for something.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Council Member Liu.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Thank you, Mr.

         14  Chairman.  I would have to concur with all the

         15  comments made by Council Member Barron including

         16  thanking you for your support of Intro 491.  I guess

         17  I would direct this first to Associate Commissioner

         18  Marcus. Mr. Marcus, has your department had any

         19  conversations with the NYPD or the Department of

         20  Consumer Affairs on the issue of fixing the vending

         21  rules in New York City?

         22                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER MARCUS: Only

         23  with regard to commenting on this intro.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: So just in

         25  response to our legislation?
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          2                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER MARCUS: That's

          3  correct.  In the past, we've been part of committees

          4  where we've discussed some of the issues of illegal

          5  vending and mobile food vending.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: But you just said

          7  you haven't talked with either the Department of

          8  Consumer Affairs or the NYPD except in formulating a

          9  response for the purposes of today's hearing?

         10  That's basically what you said.

         11                 Assistant Commissioner Toole, can I

         12  ask you if the Department of Consumer Affairs has

         13  had substantive discussions with the NYPD on the

         14  current vending rules in New York City and how they

         15  work well or how poorly they work?

         16                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE:

         17  Commissioner Dykstra had meetings with the NYPD,

         18  with the Criminal Justice Coordinator, with a number

         19  of other agencies on how the vending laws do or

         20  don't work in New York City.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: And have you had

         22  any discussions with the Department of Health?

         23                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE: I don't

         24  know.  I wasn't at those meetings but I don't

         25  believe that they were there. I don't know though.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Okay.

          3                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE: I stand

          4  corrected.  We believe there were representatives

          5  there.  We can get a definitive answer for you but

          6  there are a lot of agencies represented.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Assistant

          8  Commissioner Petito. Have you been involved in any

          9  discussions with the Department of Consumer Affairs

         10  or the Department of Health and Mental Health?

         11                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE: Yes,

         12  both Lieutenant Albano and I were involved along

         13  with other people from the Police Department

         14  discussing at great length, with the Department of

         15  Consumer Affairs and Criminal Justice Coordinator,

         16  these issues going back about a year ago, I guess.

         17  Between a year and two years ago, we had significant

         18  discussions about this.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Between a year

         20  and two years ago, in terms of enforcement?

         21                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE: We have

         22  ongoing contact all the time in terms of enforcement

         23  but I thought you meant specifically about changing

         24  the way vendor regulation is done in New York City

         25  but we have tremendous on- going discussion of
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          2  current issues.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Well, I guess

          4  I'm- I feel a little better that at least there have

          5  been discussions between the Department of Consumer

          6  Affairs and the NYPD.  I think with regard to the

          7  Department of Health, it is difficult because we're

          8  trying to grapple with different, distinct types of

          9  vendors and the rules associated with these vendors

         10  and so perhaps the Department of Health is a little

         11  bit out of the loop with regard to some of the other

         12  vending issues.  But obviously, when it comes to

         13  food vending, the Department of Health needs to be

         14  engaged in helping us come up with some kind of

         15  framework to improve the situation we have

         16  currently.

         17                 Would all of you agree that the

         18  current rules don't work?  They don't work for the

         19  vendors.  They don't work for the small businesses.

         20  They don't work for the public at large.  Or would

         21  you say that they generally work well, we need to

         22  tweak it a little but in general they work well?

         23                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: I

         24  would never say that they work well.  I think that

         25  they work somewhat and that certainly enforcement
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          2  plays a big part in that but they need to be

          3  improved.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: The current rules

          5  need to be improved?

          6                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: Yes.

          7                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE: I would

          8  agree that they need to be improved and that could

          9  include revision.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Could you repeat

         11  that last part for Council Member Gerson?

         12                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE: I said

         13  the improvements could include revision, not just

         14  improving what exists but changing.

         15                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER MARCUS: Again,

         16  I guess our primary concerns relate to public health

         17  issues which are not as formally addressed in this

         18  bill as we might have hoped.  Our chief difficulty

         19  in enforcing mobile food vending regulations are

         20  finding all of the vendors that have permits and so

         21  anything that would aid us in that task would be

         22  much appreciated.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Well, it sounds

         24  like you don't think that the current set of rules

         25  are adequate either.
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          2                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER MARCUS: Not

          3  with regard to finding all the vendors that are out

          4  on streets vending.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: So the three

          6  departments, the NYPD, the Department of Consumer

          7  Affairs and the Department of Health as represented

          8  at the hearing today, you all basically agree that

          9  the current rules don't work well and they need to

         10  be changed. But your testimony, and it has been very

         11  lengthy testimony, I appreciate the detail of the

         12  testimony but all you do is point out what's wrong

         13  with what we proposed and you don't come up with any

         14  ideas on your own or any ideas as to how we can

         15  change the legislation even though, as you say, Ms.

         16  Petito, you've been talking about it for a year to

         17  two years already and that our Committee under the

         18  leadership of our Chairman, we've been in touch with

         19  the Administration on this problem trying to fix

         20  rules, vending rules that don't work well for

         21  vendors, don't work well for small businesses and

         22  don't work well for the general public at large.

         23                 And so, it's just very disappointing

         24  that we have yet another hearing and while your

         25  testimony is good in that it's detailed, it's just
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          2  simply saying that you don't like what we've come up

          3  with but without offering any kinds of changes and

          4  at the same time, conceding the fact that the

          5  current rules don't work well and they need to be

          6  changed.  So it puts us in a -- you see, Mr.

          7  Chairman, I feel like in this Committee, we've been

          8  trying to do the right thing in terms of being

          9  proactive and changing a system, a set of rules that

         10  don't work well.

         11                 The Administration agrees that they

         12  don't work well but instead of working with us or

         13  trying to come up with a solution that will help

         14  vendors, that will help the general public at large,

         15  that will protect our small businesses, the

         16  Administration, not represented by these three very

         17  distinguished representatives here, but the

         18  Administration as a whole has been laying low on

         19  this very important issue.  They've laid low for

         20  many years now and they refuse to do something at

         21  this point.  So if it means that our Committee and

         22  our Council needs take a heat for doing something

         23  right then I will stand with you and the Committee,

         24  Mr. Chairman, but at least we're trying to do

         25  something about a system that is clearly broken.
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          2                 The Administration agrees that the

          3  system is broken. I think almost everybody in the

          4  public agrees that the system is broken.  At least,

          5  we are trying to do something about it. Clearly, the

          6  Administration is just trying to lay low.

          7                 I do have one question though, Mr.

          8  Chairman, and it's directed to the Department of

          9  Consumer Affairs which, again, I do appreciate the

         10  lengthy and detailed testimony but I find several

         11  parts of it quite perplexing and I'll point out one

         12  area that has to do with sidewalk displays.  The

         13  point about sidewalk displays is that you're opposed

         14  to what we're trying to do here because it could

         15  potentially adversely affect neighborhoods because

         16  all of a sudden businesses would be able to display

         17  their goods outside their stores, on sidewalks,

         18  where currently they're not allowed to do so because

         19  the, vending is prohibited on those streets.

         20                 But yet, the Department of Consumer

         21  Affairs regularly and routinely grants permits for

         22  just such displays in areas that vending is

         23  prohibited.  Now, how do you reconcile that

         24  position?  In your testimony, you've referred

         25  sidewalk displays, sales displays in the permitting
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          2  that your department engages in you call them

          3   "stoopline stands"  For the general public, they're

          4  exactly the same thing.

          5                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE: Well,

          6  that may well be, Council member, but the reality is

          7  the law distinguishes between the two and the law

          8  creates the local law, something the Council could

          9  change, creates a category of license called the

         10   "stoop line stand" so any business that sells

         11  fruits, vegetables, candy products can have a stoop

         12  line immediately outside their business within size

         13  and restrictions set by the law.  The sidewalk

         14  displays are actually different.

         15                 They're for other kinds of

         16  merchandise, clothing or, you know, childrens' toys

         17  or hardware or whatever and those are regulated by

         18  the Department of Transportation Sidewalk Displays

         19  Law which says that you can have the display in

         20  front of a business up to, I think, it is four feet

         21  unless the street is closed to vending in which case

         22  you cannot have them at all.  So those are two local

         23  laws applied by two different agencies.  It is not

         24  as if we woke up and said well we are going to evade

         25  the vending laws.  We're just following the laws.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Well, in your

          3  opinion, is there any kind of distinction between

          4  technically a "stoopline stand" and one of these

          5  displays?

          6                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE: It's

          7  not my opinion. The law sets up a distinction

          8  between the two.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: So is it your

         10  position then that it's just sales displays that,

         11  sales displays excluding stoopline stands, that

         12  would have a negative, adverse impact, a negative

         13  impact in many neighborhoods?

         14                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE: Yes,

         15  because some streets are closed to vending but the

         16  goal is, of the Council members who had those

         17  streets closed in the local law or through the

         18  process, was to, sort of, prohibit displays.  So it

         19  worked as a way to protect different kinds of

         20  businesses.  By opening up all of the streets to

         21  vending, all of those restrictions that are in

         22  localities and local streets to street displays,

         23  would be removed so anyone could have their

         24  merchandise in front of the store.

         25                 But stoopline stands are a different
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          2  category and they can exist even on streets that are

          3  currently closed to vending.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON REED: I know that Council

          6  Member Liu, and rightfully so, I have visited his

          7  district and he has very significant concerns about

          8  stoopline stands and I think the distinction that

          9  while I recognize that there is a distinction in the

         10  law, I don't think the people who live in the City

         11  of New York or the Council Members that represent

         12  them, when we walk down the streets and see these

         13  obstacles in the street, can really distinguish

         14  between whether they're selling hardware, and that's

         15  okay because DOT said so, or they're selling fruit

         16  and you said it wasn't so because you're the

         17  Department of Consumer Affairs.  This is the sort of

         18  thing that drives regular people in the City crazy.

         19                 So I think this is a secondary issue

         20  that we certainly should try to address.  I'm

         21  mindful that our new legislation may open up streets

         22  and so therefore that is a problem as it relates to

         23  stoopline stands, etcetera, etcetera.  But the

         24  essence, the core of the legislation that we're

         25  trying to get to is really, I think, what I would
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          2  like to see us addressing are concerns too so I'm

          3  not going to entertain much more dialog about all

          4  these, sort of things that sort of swim around it

          5  because if we've got a fundamental structure in

          6  place, we can solve all the other problems.  If we

          7  decide to fool around with the draperies, the room

          8  is going to fall down in the mean time.  Council

          9  Member Gerson.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Thank you, Mr.

         11  Chair and thank you, my colleagues who are members

         12  of this Committee for allowing me to participate as

         13  a guest of the Committee, mindful that I am as a

         14  guest and we have many more witnesses, I'll be very

         15  brief and confined a few questions to what you

         16  described as the core structure of the bill.

         17                 But, Mr. Chair, I can't help myself

         18  but observing that I have never, in my service on

         19  the Council and before hand in civic endeavors,

         20  heard so much negativity expressed in between

         21  statements of praise and appreciation for you and

         22  the Committee. I could imagine only if you came up

         23  with something which they'd like, the kind of

         24  testimonial you and the Committee would receive but,

         25  and I'm disappointed that we couldn't have more
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          2  positive, constructive proposals.

          3                 But to try and extrapolate that from

          4  what was presented, let me first ask briefly to Ms.

          5  Petito or Lieutenant Albano, it's good to see you

          6  again Ms. Petito.  I just want to get -- your

          7  problem with the structure as proposed, is it the

          8  number limit or is it the priority bumping issue?

          9  In other words, is it the number per block or is it

         10  the fact that, you know, you have a priority system

         11  which bumps people or is it both?

         12                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: It is

         13  both.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: It is both?

         15                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: It is

         16  both.  It's two aspects of a comprehensive plan,

         17  both are necessary.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Well, I mean,

         19  I'm just trying to understand.  I mean, maybe yes.

         20  I've met with your, members of your Department at

         21  the precinct level and quite frankly, what they tell

         22  me is complicated and what they find difficult,

         23  given limited resources, is a occur and screen

         24  (phonetic) which requires them to carry tape

         25  measures and other measuring equipment and they have
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          2  to measure twenty feet from here and twelve feet

          3  from there and where the entrance way is and that's

          4  what the time consuming aspect is.           So,

          5  they've told is they would find it easier if there

          6  were caps on the numbers of the blocks.  So again,

          7  I'm trying to understand the apparent gap between

          8  the grass roots level of the Department and the

          9  higher up in the hierarchy, why we seem to have

         10  different perspectives.  So could you imagine a

         11  scheme that limited, whatever the number is for now,

         12  the number per block face without priority bumping

         13  if that would work and would that be enforceable to

         14  your department?

         15                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: Well,

         16  I think the problem is that without the priority

         17  scheme, you cannot --

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Okay.

         19                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: --

         20  Enforce a number of per block face because on,

         21  especially on, --

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Well, except

         23   --

         24                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: --

         25  Desirable streets.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: -- In the way

          3  you were refer to us in your testimony on either

          4  assignment of spots or first come, first serve and

          5  you seem to dismiss that as well as difficult.

          6                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: Well,

          7  the first come, first serve, yes but I think

          8  Commissioner Toole mentioned the assignment of

          9  spots.  I don't know whether that is feasible or

         10  could work but --

         11                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Excuse me, let me

         12  ask a question. Council member, excuse me.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Please, go

         14  ahead.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Did you say that

         16  the Police Department would support a priority

         17  system?

         18                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: What

         19  I'm saying is that it's part and parcel of the

         20  proposal that you have that if you limit the number

         21  of people on a block face, then you, then necessity

         22  requires that you have a priority system to know who

         23  is supposed to be there --

         24                 CHAIRPERSON REED: And did you see

         25  that the Police Department would support a priority
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          2  system because that would make it simple for you to

          3  figure out who is supposed to be there and who

          4  isn't?

          5                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: No, I

          6  didn't say that.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Oh, okay.

          8                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: Sorry.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Must have been

         10  dreaming.

         11                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: What I

         12  said is that-

         13                 CHAIRPERSON REED: -- Find something

         14   --

         15                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: --

         16  They're both necessary to the central concept of the

         17  bill because --

         18                 CHAIRPERSON REED: So they're

         19  necessary to the concept of the bill but that

         20  doesn't clarify for you.  You said it's complicated

         21  to figure out who was there first.  Alright, let's

         22  get rid of that.  Let's have a numbering system that

         23  has a priority.  Does that make it less complicated?

         24                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: Well,

         25  we assume that that would be the case in the bill
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          2  but the bill has other problems that it doesn't --

          3  it's not a question --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON REED: But if we have a

          5  clear priority system that was understandable, even

          6  by the police, I'm sorry, that's disrespectful, that

          7  was understandable and comprehensible by everybody.

          8  Would that be a system that you think you could

          9  support and be favorable to?

         10                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: It

         11  would depend on what the system would look like but

         12  right now, I cannot say that we would support that

         13  because it would still require police officers to

         14  know what the priority is about.  In other words, it

         15  would still relate to --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Priority is the guy

         17  with the lowest number gets the spot.  That's what

         18  it is.  That is really not complicated.

         19                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: I

         20  understand that but what's complicated is how many

         21  spots can there be?

         22                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Three.

         23                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: And

         24  that is --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON REED: One, two, three.
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          2                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: And we

          3  find that to be a problem.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON REED: I see. I'm sorry,

          5  Council Member Gerson.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: No, no, no.  I

          7  think, Mr. Chair, I appreciate your pursuing this

          8  and I really must commend you for your leadership.

          9  I think this bill has brought, this proposal has

         10  brought us a major step forward in tackling with the

         11  question and quite frankly, I think this Committee

         12  has done some of the work which I would have

         13  expected the Administration to have undertaken in

         14  the years in which it has been in office in terms of

         15  coming up with a proposal that serves everybody of

         16  the City but let's try and move forward in a way

         17  that we reach the optimum outcome.

         18                 So, just to finish up this part of

         19  the questioning, I understand in response to the

         20  questions by the Chair, you don't oppose, per se,

         21  the concept of some sort of priority system in and

         22  of itself if we could sit down with you and work out

         23  some of the details vis- a- vis the different

         24  categories, vis- a- vis some of the other

         25  complexities and we come up with a simple, fair
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          2  system.  You would not oppose, you would not rule

          3  out, at this point, any and all kind of priority

          4  system.  Is that a fair statement?

          5                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: That's

          6  right.  We would not rule out --

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Okay.

          8                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: -- Any

          9  proposal that we could jointly come to together --

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: No, no, no.

         11  Come, on.  No, no, no.  That's --

         12                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: I

         13  can't see --

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: You're very

         15  good, Ms. Petito and I know that from past

         16  experience but I, I'm not asking about any and all

         17  kind of system.  I'm asking City with the Police

         18  Department find objectionable any and all priority

         19  system period because it's a priority system.  Do

         20  you object to prioritization in any way?

         21                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: No,

         22  not as a concept. No.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Okay, that's

         24  fine.

         25                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: Not as
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          2  a concept.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Asked and

          4  answered as we say in a court of law.  Thank you.

          5  That maybe brought us a little bit. Let me ask, let

          6  me just turn to DCA for one second and page four of

          7  your testimony.  Again, I'm trying to get, extract

          8  some positive, positivism from the sea of negativism

          9  and on page four, the second to last paragraph or

         10  the last full paragraph right before you get into

         11  sidewalk displays, you seem to throw at us a menu of

         12  concepts. You mentioned high congestion zones,

         13  maximum number and less than zones, eliminating the

         14  limit on congestion zones, assigning specific

         15  locations to vendors.

         16                 The last one I'm not going to read

         17  because it's mind boggling to me with all the

         18  testimony we've heard that you would even raise the

         19  possibility of retaining the current system.  I

         20  mean, -- Commissioner in a different committee

         21  hearing of the Veterans Committee on which I sit,

         22  when I asked her how many more resources, how much

         23  more resources would you like to have additional

         24  inspectors to enforce current rules and regulations

         25  and your Commissioner said, she's not even going to
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          2  answer that question because she wouldn't accept any

          3  additional resources because the current scheme is

          4  so unenforceable that throwing any more inspectors

          5  would just be a waste of resources and that comes

          6  from the Commissioner and we could give the

          7  transcript if necessary.

          8                 So, given that, to even raise the

          9  idea of retaining the current system, I'm just going

         10  to view as a slip of the pen and not ignore that, I

         11  mean not pay attention to that.  But which of the

         12  other suggestions do you think are most promising?

         13  Which would you like us to pursue first in relation

         14  to tweaking this bill or adjusting it?

         15                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE: Well,

         16  we think if you adopt any of these, that would be

         17  more than just tweaking this bill.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Never mind

         19  that.  Which --

         20                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE: Now,

         21  let me answer the question, if you don't mind.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: I'll withdraw

         23  the question and rephrase it.  Which of these

         24  suggestions would you have presented in your

         25  testimony, do you view as -- give us a
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          2  prioritization of your suggestions as to which you

          3  feel are the most promising in dealing with the

          4  issue at hand?

          5                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE: We

          6  can't give you a prioritization and I'm not going to

          7  be bullied into doing that.  We gave them all to you

          8  as options.  All of them would have to be modeled in

          9  order to understand what the implications would be

         10  on the number of vendors in the City to interplan

         11  the kinds of vendors and effective enforcement so

         12  they're all worthy of consideration. They could be

         13  done sometimes in conjunction with other methods and

         14  sometimes not and as to the Commissioner's comments,

         15  I believe that there was some misunderstanding

         16  because, in fact, the New York City Police

         17  Department enforces the vending laws in New York

         18  City, not the DCA inspectors.  So to give additional

         19  resources to DCA for something we don't do would

         20  naturally be too productive.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: I believe DCA

         22  inspectors have the right and the prerogative of

         23  issuing summonses for certain violations, which we

         24  were discussing at the time, and certainly if the

         25  Commissioner felt that additional police resources
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          2  were the answer, she would have stated that at the

          3  hearing rather than state unequivocally that the

          4  current regime was unenforceable and you could check

          5  the transcript for those were her words virtually

          6  verbatim.

          7                 Quite frankly, I'm not bullying you

          8  or anyone else and I've asked questions respectfully

          9  and I would appreciate answers in kind.  I think

         10  that what is upsetting is when I have communities

         11  both vendors and I view the vendors in my community

         12  as community members and we're trying to come up

         13  with win, win, win situations and we've been doing

         14  this, not just for one and half and two years but

         15  for three years, more than three years with the

         16  Administration and then to hear just criticisms

         17  without some more concrete positive suggestions,

         18  that is bullying not my request to you for your

         19  input as the Department responsible for this area to

         20  come up with solutions.

         21                 I would like to work together with

         22  you and that's what this is all about.  So let me

         23  just -- you mentioned limiting designated high

         24  congestion -- you referred to designated high

         25  congestion zones where vendors are prohibited.
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          2  Could you just elaborate on that, what you have in

          3  mind?  What is a high congestion zone or how would

          4  it be determined and what kind of streets do you

          5  have in mind?

          6                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE: Well, I

          7  think that's something that would require additional

          8  dialog but one example that might come to mind would

          9  be the immediate intersection at 42nd Street and

         10  Broadway.  You might say that the area right around

         11  there, maybe there shouldn't be vending because it's

         12  too congested. I think you'd want to stop and look

         13  at how that if you did that, what else would be

         14  impacted.  Certainly members of the business

         15  community who are here will tell you why the areas

         16  that currently are restricted should still be

         17  restricted and what we're saying is that we had to

         18  look at those, not just eliminate them all

         19  necessarily but figure out what makes sense to

         20  continue and then how you would scope out a problem

         21  using other means to ensure that it was enforceable

         22  and simple.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Well, this is

         24  helpful.  See you're referring to heavily trafficked

         25  commercial areas, most especially in Midtown, is
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          2  that?

          3                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE: Well, I

          4  think that they could be in different places. --

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Okay.

          6                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE: High

          7  congestion zones and you know, you could get into a

          8  definitional battle but something that has a lot of

          9  pedestrian traffic, a lot of businesses.  I think

         10  high congestion.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Now, let me,

         12  and I'm going to wrap this up in just one moment,

         13  let me just jump into the last of your suggestions.

         14  Assigning specific locations to vendors.  How --

         15  could you elaborate on that a little bit?  Where,

         16  how would that work?  How -- I mean, by raising this

         17  in your testimony, are you suggesting that your

         18  Department is prepared to undertake a regulatory

         19  scheme which would, which would give out assignments

         20  to vendors?  Just elaborate a little bit on what you

         21  have in mind.

         22                 Again, I'm trying to, not bully, but

         23  I'm trying to work with you to get some constructive

         24  sense of where you'd like us to go.

         25                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE: You
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          2  could have a system that through some prioritization

          3  or lottery or other means, assign vendors spots.

          4  You'd want to do that fairly so that people were not

          5  all on top of each other or on top of a business.

          6  You'd want to have adequate clearance for

          7  pedestrians.  I think there are a number of

          8  mechanisms that could be used but I certainly can't

          9  spell them out here and just our last suggestion was

         10  retaining the current system because sometimes the

         11  cure is worse than the cold.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Well, okay.

         13  Again, that's inconsistent with previous testimony.

         14  Certainly with the, with the context and the

         15  ramifications of previous testimony which your

         16  Department provided but --.  Okay, my very last

         17  question, I think it's helpful to get these

         18  constructive points from all of you, just assigning

         19  the specific locations, what type of streets would

         20  that work well on in this City?  Would that work

         21  well, I mean, in your opinion, do you have any sense

         22  of where?  You gave a good example before what you

         23  meant by a congested area?  Could you give us an

         24  example of where and how assigning specific

         25  locations might work?
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          2                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE: You

          3  would assign a location based on a street that you

          4  hadn't otherwise precluded from vending by declaring

          5  it was highly congested or for whatever other safety

          6  reason there might be.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: And you would

          8  designate specific areas on that street?  Paint

          9  them.

         10                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE: You

         11  could.  You could just do it different ways.  What

         12  we say, this something that needs to be explored and

         13  modeled on the streets of the City and not, sort of,

         14  just sort of, haphazardly put down in the hope that

         15  it works. We think that a combination of these

         16  things could end up being good.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Okay and my

         18  last question, have you begun -- has your Department

         19  done or in the process of coming up with any such

         20  modeling which we could expect to see anytime in the

         21  near future?

         22                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE: Not at

         23  the moment.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Okay.  Thank

         25  you very much, Mr. Chair and thank you all for
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          2  testimony and I really do hope we can work

          3  constructively as we go forward.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Thank you, Council

          5  Member Gerson. I allocated two hours for the

          6  Administration today and that time has come and gone

          7  and I have some other questions but I'm going to

          8  hold them off because I would like to hear from the

          9  public and we invited them back a second time.  I am

         10  disappointed frankly that it seems to me that

         11  there's a backing away of a lot of things that were

         12  discussed that were conceptually made perfect sense

         13  and the testimony seems to be giving itself cover by

         14  saying that there are all these other issues out

         15  here.

         16                 There are other issues out here that

         17  I would suggest to you, I put this forward as a

         18  proposal.  A proposal means that we want to hear

         19  dialog about it and I say that to everybody here in

         20  the room and I appreciate that you've acknowledged,

         21  in your testimony, the work of this Committee, of a

         22  problem that you said has vexed the City for over a

         23  hundred years.  But there are core issues here that

         24  we talked about and frankly I feel like the

         25  Administration's backing away from some general
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          2  assumptions and understandings that we had put

          3  forward and worried about whether it's four feet

          4  away from a curb today or it's something else or

          5  it's five to eleven does not resolve the problems

          6  and I don't know how else except in this public

          7  forum to put, if it's put to more notice, I don't

          8  know.

          9                 But to make it clear to the

         10  Administration, if it isn't clear now, that this

         11  Committee and this Chair wants to come forward with

         12  a workable solution to the problem of vending in the

         13  City of New York and I intend to do it in a timely

         14  fashion.  So the next time I call a meeting and ask

         15  for a meeting, please don't make me have to call

         16  everybody in the Green Book in the Consumer Affairs,

         17  Department of Health and the Police Department.

         18  Bring the relevant people to the table and let's

         19  have a relevant and significant conversation.

         20                 If Mr. Marcus is the person that's

         21  supposed to be there, that is fine and I may reach

         22  out to you independently so we could just, or have

         23  our attorney reach out to you about the things that,

         24  frankly, are in the code as I suggested earlier that

         25  I think maybe your testimony is not completely

                                                            99

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2  correct in terms of what it is that this proposal

          3  does that's different from what's in the code, be

          4  that as it may.

          5                 From the Police Department

          6  perspective, I, again, appreciate that we have

          7  limited resources.  But, you're doing a lousy job of

          8  enforcing the code as it is right now.  Everybody's

          9  very, very, very upset about it and in a democracy,

         10  we make laws as representatives of the public.

         11  We're elected to look, evaluate and make laws and

         12  legislation and it is not up to the Police

         13  Department to decide which ones they're going to

         14  enforce.  The law is on the book.  The expectation

         15  of the people of the City of New York, the

         16  expectation of the vendors of the City of New York,

         17  the expectation of shop owners in the City of New

         18  York is the police are going to enforce them.

         19                 We want to have a dialog with you

         20  about how to make that job less onerous or

         21  problematic but when it's all said and done, there's

         22  a law on the book, there's an expectation that it

         23  would be enforced and I will repeat what I said

         24  earlier, I am really troubled, and I will go into

         25  this conversation with you privately, about the
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          2  level of involvement of criminality in the vending

          3  business that a lot of poor guys on the street are

          4  really just trying to make a living.  They're being

          5  physically bullied, psychologically intimidated.

          6  They're being asked for payoffs. They've got vending

          7  distributing trucks that are coming in there and

          8  telling them where and when they're going to be

          9  there.

         10                 They manage to do it, maybe the

         11  police can't do it but it seems that these other

         12  people can do it and I've suggested to the Criminal

         13  Justice Coordinator that, in fact, what we may want

         14  to think about doing is having the Business

         15  Integrity Commission take a look at what the

         16  problems are.  They seem to have done a relatively

         17  good job in cleaning up the Fulton Fish Market and

         18  this seems to me to be coming a problem that is

         19  dangerously close to the Police Department turning a

         20  blind eye to, because of all the other issues that

         21  we have, that have serious impact on the quality of

         22  life in the City of New York.  I think we ought to

         23  be serious about addressing them and that's

         24  particularly true as I'm beginning to hear when it

         25  relates to food vending and when it relates to who
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          2  it is that gets to do food vending.  So, I want us

          3  to also have a serious conversation about that.

          4                 Now, it's my understanding that

          5  you're not allowed to lease carts.  You're supposed

          6  to have your own cart.  Is that right?

          7                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER MARCUS: You

          8  can't transfer ownership of a cart --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Can you lease one?

         10                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER MARCUS: It

         11  doesn't speak specifically to leasing.  It's

         12  ambiguous.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON REED: What is your sense

         14  of it?  Is it going on?

         15                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER: My sense is

         16  the intent was to prohibit leasing.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Is it going on?

         18                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER MARCUS: I

         19  suspect that it does go on.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Is it problematic?

         21                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER MARCUS: When

         22  we find a vendor operating a cart that's not his and

         23  we discover that there's a lease arrangement and

         24  there's a problem, we pursue it.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON REED: So it's

                                                            102

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2  problematic?

          3                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER MARCUS: Yes.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON REED: And it's something

          5  we ought to be addressing?

          6                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER MARCUS: I

          7  believe so.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Well, then it would

          9  have been great if we had heard you say that in your

         10  testimony because you addressed a whole lot of

         11  superficial things in a code that could easily be

         12  fixed and I'm not even sure, as I said before, that

         13  what you said is true but that is one of the

         14  fundamental issues that I am hearing in here and if

         15  I'm a public servant, if I'm -- raised my hand and

         16  sworn to protect, defend, support all the laws of

         17  the City and State of New York, I'm sure you were

         18  asked to do the same thing and to just say, "Well,

         19  this is problematic and we're not going to address

         20  systemic issues in vending", is really unacceptable

         21  to this Committee.

         22                 So, I'm going to direct my staff to

         23  talk to you, Ms. Toole, about when we're going to

         24  have our next meeting and I would expect the

         25  Administration because the Administration sends
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          2  somebody to listen to this conversation from the

          3  Office of Legislative Affairs so we ought to be able

          4  to have all the relevant people at the table and the

          5  very same people should then be able to come and

          6  testify at the hearing.  So, if Ms. Petito is not

          7  invited to the conversation as it relates to the

          8  Police Department or Lieutenant Albano is not

          9  invited to that meeting, with all due respect to

         10  them, don't bring them to the hearing.

         11                 So then, the public can get a better

         12  sense of what it was that happened actually, in

         13  reality, in a private dialog. Okay?  I want to thank

         14  you all very much.  I know it took a lot of time to

         15  read through this and presenting your testimony.  I

         16  look forward to working with you.  Thank you very

         17  much.

         18                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: Thank

         19  you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON REED: If we had promised

         21  those people who had testified, who had come to

         22  testify and not had a chance to do that, that we

         23  would let them speak first and I'm going to now try

         24  in some random order to begin that process.  Pei Son

         25  Lau, Kurt Brokaw, give it to the Sergeant at Arms
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          2  sir, Vincent Pipitone, is it?  Is that person here?

          3  Is that you, sir?  And now I'm not going to try T-

          4  H- U- X Thux P- H- U- N- G, is it?  Yes?  Okay, oh

          5  yes, how are you?  I'm sorry.  And to try to respect

          6  the opportunity for as many people as possible to

          7  speak, we are going to try to respect, to allow as

          8  many people as possible to testify, we're going to

          9  have a two minute time on people's testimonies so

         10  also to be able to ask questions.

         11                 Please, please speak directly to the

         12  legislation. We know what the problem is.  Please

         13  speak to the legislation.  Pro or con, whatever it

         14  is, direct your remarks to the legislation. Who's

         15  first?  Yes, sir.  Please begin.  The mike needs to

         16  be off.

         17                 MR. LAU: (Difficult to discern due to

         18  dialect in language.) My name is Pei Son Lau.  My

         19  wife and I are handicapped. I was born with cerebral

         20  palsy and she lose her arm by accident (sic).  I

         21  have worked for UPS for eight years and here I have

         22  back pain.  Since then I cannot --.  My family is on

         23  welfare now.  If I have a vendor's license, my wife

         24  and I can sell small merchandise and earn our

         25  living.  I feel it's unfair to depend on welfare.  I
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          2  hope the City Council would give me a license to

          3  work to earn a living.  Thank you very much.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Thank you very

          5  much.

          6                 MS. PHUNG: (Difficult to discern due

          7  to dialect in language.) Good afternoon, Mr.

          8  Chairman.  My name is Thux Phung and I'm a

          9  Vietnamese.  I came to this country 25 years ago.

         10  I'm barely escaped from the communists.  I came to

         11  America to give me a better life and I came to New

         12  York City to give me a license to vend on the street

         13  to support my family.  For many years working on the

         14  street, I see the problem by the police not

         15  enforcing the law by many ways.  I don't think the

         16  current law is complicated.  The police doing the

         17  right job and I would like to see the current law

         18  enforced or training the police to do the right

         19  things then we will solve a lot of problems.

         20                 Why don't we try to do that first

         21  then before we change anythings (sic)?  And in the

         22  rule you -- you destroy my vending community for

         23  many years I been (sic) building to the neighborhood

         24  and to friends around where I'm working.  There's a

         25   -- idea -- three per blocks is -- when you changing
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          2  the law (sic) you put the limit on the legal

          3  vendors.  It doesn't help and it hurt us and you

          4  create for the police more, more difficult to work

          5  on that. Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Thank you.

          7                 MR. BROKAW: Good afternoon, Mr. Reed.

          8    My name is Kurt Brokaw.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Excuse me, Mr.

         10  Brokaw.

         11                 MR. BROKAW: And I teach literature

         12  and mass communications at New School University and

         13  the 92nd Street "Y" and on occasion, when I have the

         14  strength, I can still do a 12 hour day at my table

         15  as a part time vendor of written matter.  I have

         16  read all 37 pages of your proposal as, indeed, I

         17  have read most of the proposals that have come out

         18  of Consumer Affairs to the City Council over the

         19  last 30 years and I must say, as we discovering in

         20  the hearing two weeks ago and today, that this is

         21  the most ill considered, as Consumer Affairs and the

         22  executives from the Business Improvement Districts

         23  testified two weeks ago.

         24                 This is the most unenforceable as we

         25  have heard from Consumer Affairs and the Police
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          2  Department and I also, I'm afraid this is the most

          3  dangerous as the New York Daily News concluded in

          4  it's editorial on April 19th, when it said that your

          5  proposal should be sent without delay to the

          6  shredder of any proposal in 30 years.  I have one

          7  minute to make, I'm afraid, just one point of many I

          8  could make and would be happy to make with you and

          9  that is this.  As a First Amendment vendor, you know

         10  and I know when you specify one first First

         11  Amendment vendor per block, that is not going to be

         12  the case.

         13                 At the present time, there is the

         14  newsstand dealer on the corner who is a vendor of

         15  written matter and an exemption will be made for

         16  that individual.  There is the guy on the other end

         17  of the corner who is a representative of the New

         18  York Times who wears and apron and sells newspapers

         19  off of three mailboxes and little carts and he will

         20  get an exemption as a vendor of written matter.

         21  There are the vending machines piled along the block

         22  from the New York Times and the Post and the Daily

         23  News and the Observer and the Sun and the Jewish

         24  News and the Wall Street Journal and they all will

         25  get an exemption.
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          2                 Barnes and Noble will get an

          3  exemption when they put their little stoop- law

          4  table out in front of their table.  The only guy

          5  who's going to get endangered here is, in effect,

          6  the individual vendor of written matter and I am

          7  here to tell you that, in effect, I believe my

          8  rights as an individual are just as good as any

          9  publisher and any corporation in this country.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Next.

         11                 MR. PIPITONE: My name is Vincent

         12  Pipitone.  I'm a licensed general vendor and my

         13  problem with your law is that it seems --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Mr. Pipitone, pick

         15  the microphone a little closer to your mouth.

         16                 MR. PIPITONE: Okay.  My problem with

         17  the law is that it has an ideal of one type of each

         18  vendor per block face, if I understand correctly.

         19  One general vendor, one First Amendment vendor, one

         20  food vendor, okay and in my opinion, that violates

         21  the basic concept of business placement.  If you

         22  travel around the City, you'll notice that similar

         23  businesses congregate, very often, on the same

         24  streets.  47th Street's the gold and diamond

         25  district, okay?  If you go to 6th Street on the
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          2  Lower East Side is Indian restaurants end on end.

          3  8th Street is shoe stores, end on end.

          4                 Vendors operate by the same type of,

          5  the same rules basically.  You go to 4th Street, 4th

          6  Street's a used book market, okay?  Prince Street in

          7  Soho is known for handcrafted items.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON REED: I got the point.  I

          9  got the point.

         10                 MR. PIPITONE: If you do away with the

         11  concept of vendors being able to congregate and

         12  force them to spread themselves out over an area,

         13  you hurt the basic vending --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON REED: I'm sorry.  Go

         15  ahead.

         16                 MR. PIPITONE: -- You hurt the

         17  formation of markets or markets forming.  If

         18  somebody wants to go, let's say if I wanted to go

         19  buy a used book, as a consumer, I know I can go to

         20  4th Street and if one vendor isn't out selling

         21  books, I can go any of several others and buy books,

         22  okay?  It helps the consumer.  It also helps the

         23  vendor who wants to go into a specific business.  If

         24  I, using the same example, if I wanted to sell used

         25  books, I know I can go on or near 4th Street --

                                                            110

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Tell me what you

          3  think would be relevant to the bill, sir.  I

          4  understand that.  I asked you to speak specifically

          5   -- you said you don't think that's fair in the

          6  bill.

          7                 MR. PIPITONE: Yes.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Do you have a

          9  suggestion, an alternative?

         10                 MR. PIPITONE: Yes, I do.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Tell me.

         12                 MR. PIPITONE: You should be allowed

         13   -- if the limit is three vendors per block, then it

         14  should be, they shouldn't be able to displace based

         15  on type.  In other words, if a peanut vendor wants

         16  to come and displace a general vendor from the

         17  block, that shouldn't be allowed, okay?  You should

         18  be able to congregate by type.  If three food

         19  vendors want to go to a specific area, that should

         20  be allowed.  If three general vendors want to go to

         21  a certain block, that should be allowed.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON REED: So you'd agree to

         23  having three per block limit but you think we should

         24  just allow the free flow of whoever gets there?

         25                 MR. PIPITONE: If I was designing the
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          2  law, I wouldn't limit it to three because some

          3  blocks are simply enormous but I think that's

          4  liveable, okay?  Another problem I have with the law

          5  is the concept of displacement.  There's a priority

          6  system but it's based on specific vendor types,

          7  okay?  I may have priority or somebody may have

          8  priority over me based on vendor type, okay?

          9                 For instance, let's say you have

         10  three handcraftsmen who've been on a street for 20

         11  years, 21 years, 22 years, on a specific spot in the

         12  Village somewhere and you have a peanut guy who got

         13  his license two weeks ago.  He can displace the

         14  person with least seniority.  The guy who's been

         15  there for 20 years or he's been in the neighborhood

         16  for 20 years.  Similarly or conversely, if you have

         17  three food vendors who've been in the neighborhood

         18  for 20 years, 21 years, 22 years, you can have a guy

         19  who got a license yesterday sign --

         20                 CHAIRPERSON REED: I got your point.

         21  I got your point.

         22                 MR. PIPITONE: Okay, that's what I

         23  feel is the major problems with this bill.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Well, I think those

         25  are interesting and I understand it.  You know, the
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          2  reason the rationale for the system to be put in

          3  place is to try to address the concern that many

          4  people in their respective communities have as well

          5  as the police is that there has to be some way to

          6  regulate the number of people on a block.

          7                 MR. PIPITONE: Okay.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Their quality level

          9  of life, level of enforcement is such that we really

         10  need to regulate the number of people.  The majority

         11  of people -- if you want to testify or comment, you

         12  could sign up, you can't comment just from the back

         13  row --  the majority of people don't care what kind

         14  of vending, they care about the number of vendors on

         15  a street.

         16                 Unfortunately, given the constraints

         17  as well as the liberty that our constitution gives

         18  us in terms of first amendment but then the

         19  constraints in terms of constructing something that

         20  would allow us to regiment how many people are on a

         21  block, one of the few ways that have been presented

         22  that's doable is to segment what types of vending

         23  happens so that if you don't say there's one of this

         24  and one of that and one of these then you open the

         25  street up and you have to allow any number
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          2  especially, of first amendment vendors to come.  So

          3  that's the, do you understand what I'm saying?

          4                 MR. PIPITONE: Honestly, no, I don't.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Okay.  Well, I'm

          6  trying --

          7                 MR. PIPITONE: I mean I don't

          8  understand the constraints.  I understand you say

          9  the constraints --

         10                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Well, you're

         11  understanding that we need to try and have some

         12  control over the number of vendors on any given

         13  block.

         14                 MR. PIPITONE: That I understand, yes.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Okay and what I'm

         16  saying is that given the existing laws that are in

         17  place, one of the few ways to do that is, in terms

         18  of segmenting what kind of vendors there are by

         19  calling one a general vendor, so that's fairly

         20  common terminology --

         21                 MR. PIPITONE: Yes.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON REED: -- A food vendor

         23  and a First Amendment vendor and the way the laws

         24  are written now, if you, in fact, allow each one of

         25  those groups fairly to be represented on a block,

                                                            114

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2  you can control the number of people on a block.

          3  Now, the law, the proposed law, does not say that

          4  you can't have three general vendors or First

          5  Amendment vendors on a block.  You can have those

          6  three on a block.

          7                 What it says is that if a food vendor

          8  comes and wants to vend on that block, one of those

          9  slots has to be for the food vendor.  My experience,

         10  in terms of travelling through the City and looking

         11  at vending, is that vendors, in fact, do respect one

         12  another.  Now, it's interesting, you know, the

         13  police say that there's chaos.  You guys say there's

         14  no chaos.  There either is or there isn't.  There

         15  either is respect amongst your groups or there

         16  isn't.  Now there's always some bad apple in a group

         17   --

         18                 MR. PIPITONE: Exactly.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON REED: -- But for the most

         20  part, what I've seen and what I've been told is that

         21  in certain communities these are the artists over

         22  here, these are the general vendors over here.  If

         23  you go to some part of 6th Avenue, it's all food

         24  during this period of time.  The law does not

         25  prohibit that from happening.  What happens in terms
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          2  of this one general vendor, one food vendor,

          3  etcetera, that's only triggered when more than three

          4  people try to show up on a block.

          5                 So if you have a block where three

          6  people are selling scarves, fine so, do you

          7  understand what I'm saying?  There is, in fact,

          8  flexibility in terms of how many people are on a

          9  block.  I think it also tries to address the issue

         10  of First Amendment.

         11                 MR. BROKAW: Well, Mr. Reed, part of

         12  the public perception of and part of the retailer

         13  perception is due to the fact that number one, there

         14  is a huge amount of counterfeit merchandise laying

         15  around the sidewalks of New York City.  There is

         16  also a fair amount of really, outrageous scams that

         17  are going on, on the streets of New York, night and

         18  day.  If I bring a wire cage out onto the sidewalk

         19  and put a half starved cat into that wire cage and

         20  put a sign on the table that says, "Animal Rights",

         21  I will guarantee you I will gather in more $20 bills

         22  in one afternoon than most vendors in this room will

         23  make in a year.

         24                 This kind of conduct is not being

         25  enforced and it's not being taken care of.  The
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          2  proof of it is what the Lieutenant said about what

          3  he's been doing.  That he's, in effect, done 900

          4  arrests on illegal vendors.  The problem, really, is

          5  not coming primarily from legal vendors of food,

          6  general merchandise or written matter.  It is not

          7  and opening up the streets of this City, in effect,

          8  will do two things.  Number one, it will bring in

          9  every illegal vendor in the northeast corridor into

         10  New York City, who will instantly assume that they

         11  can blend in because the police will never get to

         12  them in the chaos that will ensue.  And number two,

         13  the public perception being what it is, many New

         14  Yorkers will assume, "Gee, I can get out and do a

         15  sidewalk sale on all this stuff that's sitting

         16  around the apartment" and then you will have even a

         17  more gigantic problem than you ever dreamed of.

         18                 You know, I listen to you here over

         19  these two meetings and you seem like a sincere and

         20  principled public servant. I'm sure you are.  I

         21  suspect that you regard this legislation, perhaps,

         22  as being the cornerstone of your career since you're

         23  going to be retiring from Consumer Affairs.  I am

         24  here to tell you that what you are going to drag

         25  into the City Council is the biggest albatross of
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          2  your life.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Well, thank you.

          4  You know, we do respect opinions, opposing opinions.

          5    Some of what you've said makes remarkable sense.

          6  I understand the risks in this but most of us don't

          7  see ourselves getting elected and then saying we're

          8  not supposed to take a risk in trying to solve a

          9  problem.  That's what I'm trying to do.  I may have

         10  taken a wrong turn or two.  I think the fundamental

         11  substance of this the correct approach to it but I'm

         12  certainly happy to hear all of your testimony.  I

         13  want to thank you all very much.  If you have more

         14  that you'd like to tell us, I think everybody by now

         15  knows if you call my office, we'll try to establish

         16  some times when we can speak to you.  Thank you all

         17  very much.

         18                 Okay, Richard Lipsky, Martin, Mortin

         19  Sloan, Marilynn Garfinkel, I know, Estelle Levy,

         20  Gerard -- okay, okay, Gerard, you can apologize when

         21  you're at the table, and Paul Schubert.  And now,

         22  I'm not going to be quite so vexed by this machine,

         23  if the Sergeant at Arms would help me understand

         24  what it is I'm doing wrong with this timing device.

         25  The other people aren't here? Okay.
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          2                 MS. GARFINKEL: Do I press a button or

          3   --?

          4                 CHAIRPERSON REED: It sounds like it's

          5  on.  Please begin.

          6                 MS. GARFINKEL: Okay.  My name is

          7  Marilynn Garfinkle. I've been working as a licensed

          8  vendor for over 20 years and my only income is from

          9  street vending so the proposed changes will affect

         10  me directly.  There are three issues contained in

         11  Section 20- 469 of bill number 621 that I would like

         12  to address here today. The first issue which is part

         13  a and b concerns the requirement that there shall be

         14  no more than three vendors permitted to vend on any

         15  single city block.  The vending scheme of the three

         16  vendors will ideally consist of one general, one

         17  First Amendment and one food vendor.

         18                 To begin with, First Amendment

         19  vendors may not be restricted according to the First

         20  Amendment, as this bill requires. So that leaves

         21  only two vendor categories per City block.  The

         22  problem with an absolute vendor limit per City block

         23  is that it does not reflect the actual layout of

         24  City blocks in terms of compliance with vending

         25  regulations.  That is, some City blocks allow many
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          2  more than three vendors per block, whereas other

          3  City blocks may only allow one vendor or possibly no

          4  vendors per block due to the vending regulations.

          5                 In reality, the distribution of

          6  vendors per block can only be determined by the

          7  availability of space on each individual block and

          8  not by stipulation by abstract regulations. It's the

          9  marketplace that determines the distribution and the

         10  type of vendor.  In addition, the desired vending

         11  scheme of separate vendors on each block does not

         12  reflect the reality of day to day vending.  In

         13  Midtown, for example, we discussed there can be

         14  groups of maybe five food vendors in a row, lined up

         15  to serve the needs of tourists and office workers.

         16                 It's inconceivable that only one food

         17  vendor would be working on a street or avenue in

         18  Midtown.  On Mulberry Street near Canal coming here,

         19  I noticed there are like five vendors in a row

         20  selling fruit.  Each selling a different kind of

         21  fruit, working side by side on the side street.  Now

         22  near universities, you see tables of book vendors

         23  lined up in a row because that's the type of

         24  business that serves a particular community.

         25                 In other words, what is sometimes
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          2  required and what is sometimes the most useful to

          3  the community are multiples of the same type of

          4  vendor not necessarily one of each category.  These

          5  are issues that depend on the marketplace, not

          6  central control.

          7                 The second issue is that of priority

          8  given to the individual vendor who possesses the

          9  lower priority number.  I'm not even going to

         10  discuss disabled veterans because we know they get

         11  priority.  But the problem with this section is

         12  enforcement which was what they were discussing

         13  before.  As a female, I am at a major disadvantage

         14  if I have to instruct another vendor, a male, to

         15  pack up their stand and move along.  I'll require

         16  the services of a police officer to enforce this

         17  every single time, thus tying up law enforcement and

         18  distracting them from their important crime fighting

         19  responsibilities.

         20                 If there's only one legal space on a

         21  street, which one of the three vendor types is going

         22  to be assigned the space. Will it be the first come,

         23  first served?  Will it be a hierarchy of vendor

         24  category?  Will it depend on your license priority?

         25  Will this bill lead to vendors sleeping over night
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          2  in their vehicles again or hiring homeless people to

          3  guard their tables because they can't be there for

          4  so many hours?

          5                 The next issue is in --

          6                 CHAIRPERSON REED: You need to wrap

          7  up, ma'am.

          8                 MS. GARFINKEL: Okay, is when two or

          9  more spaces are occupied by similarly licensed

         10  vendors.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON REED: If you have this as

         12  written testimony and you'd like us to copy it, we

         13  will do that.

         14                 MS. GARFINKEL: Yeah, I'm going to

         15  give you a copy as well but I'd like the people to

         16  hear because I think this is relevant to so many

         17  people sitting here.

         18                 When the spaces are occupied by

         19  similarly licensed vendors, the vendor with the

         20  license of a class not already occupying the space

         21  shall be given priority.  Running a general vendor

         22  business is not as simple or as easy as one might

         23  think. For example, for me, setting up sometimes

         24  takes an hour and breaking down that stand is also

         25  going to take an hour and during this, you're
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          2  obviously not making any money and I have to park a

          3  vehicle when I go to work.  You have to get to where

          4  you're going when you're going to work.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Just a minute.

          6  Just a minute.  I could really have this room

          7  cleared if it's necessary.  I don't want to do that,

          8  okay?  You need to wrap up.

          9                 MS. GARFINKEL: I am. The idea that my

         10  daily business will rely on the luck of some other

         11  vendor not coming to move me out of the space I'm

         12  already occupying is simply ridiculous.  No business

         13  operates on that basis.  What if a vendor who

         14  normally comes to work in a particular space decides

         15  not to work that day. How do you know where you're

         16  supposed to set up?  How many times in a day do I

         17  have to break up or set down and move to another

         18  place and then possibly someone --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Miss, I got your

         20  point.  You gotta wrap up.  I'm going to give you 30

         21  seconds to wrap up.

         22                 MS. GARFINKEL: Okay.  The idea of

         23  making all streets available to vending may sound

         24  generous but the reality is that not every street in

         25  New York City has the foot traffic so that we can
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          2  all earn a living.  Issuing more licenses sounds

          3  generous but the reality is that earning a decent

          4  living from vending is extremely hard at the best of

          5  times and at certain times of the year, it is not

          6  possible to make any money because of seasonal

          7  nature of street vending.  In the end, in spite of

          8  whatever good intentions --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Are you suggesting

         10  that we not have more licenses?

         11                 MS. GARFINKEL: Well, from what I

         12  heard, there is not a cap on vendors getting

         13  licenses who are veterans.  I heard --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON REED: But there's

         15  thousands of people who want to get a general

         16  vendors license who are not veterans.

         17                 MS. GARFINKEL: Yes.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON REED: We hear that every

         19  single day that the reason that people vend

         20  illegally is because they cannot get a license.

         21                 MS. GARFINKEL: Yes.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON REED: The reason that we

         23  hear people vend as First Amendment and went to

         24  court and therefore there's no limit on them, is

         25  because they cannot get a license.  So everybody who
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          2  has testified has said that there are not enough

          3  licenses. There is no cap, in this legislation or

          4  any place else, on veterans getting a license.

          5                 MS. GARFINKEL: Okay.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON REED: So, I'm asking you,

          7  do you think- am I hearing you say that there's too

          8  many licenses now?

          9                 MS. GARFINKEL: No, what I'm saying is

         10  that in your theory, opening up the streets sounds

         11  like a wonderful idea but technically if you go

         12  through the rules and regulations of the books that

         13  are already on the books, how many streets are we

         14  really allowed to work in front of?

         15                 CHAIRPERSON REED: That's not the

         16  question, I asked you but okay, --

         17                 MS. GARFINKEL: But it is the question

         18  because you can say we'll put another 2,000 people

         19  out on the street but you have to give them a place

         20  to operate and to work.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON REED: That's right and

         22  the complaint that we hear from legitimate vendors

         23  is that all the major, best streets to vend on have

         24  been restricted and the biggest problem people have

         25  with the Street Vendor Review Panel was the only
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          2  thing they ever heard was close the street.  They

          3  never entertained the argument of opening one.  So

          4  that's what we're trying to do is open streets but

          5  thank you very much for your testimony.  Yes, Ms.

          6  Levy.

          7                 MS. LEVY: I believe that First

          8  Amendment vendors and veteran vendors should be

          9  exempt from this proposal.  The fact is that when

         10  you create a plan like this, you don't know what the

         11  ramifications are going to be.  Ground Zero is

         12  already banning any and all vending and it is an

         13  area which, over time if you look to the future,

         14  will really need some vending because the most that

         15  they'll be building there will be high powered

         16  street stores where they're selling high priced

         17  goods and not everyone who will visit places like

         18  that will be the rich and when you have a proposal,

         19  that proposal is not just in your hands.  It's only

         20  in your hands now.

         21                 In the future, you do not know who

         22  will be looking at it, who will decide how to limit

         23  the number of vending licenses to issue, who will

         24  decide whether or not there are too many or too few

         25  and before time passes and it is beyond your
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          2  control, they will be limiting or doing away with or

          3  selling vending licenses so when you create --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Ms. Levy, you have

          5  38 seconds.  Do you have a proposal?

          6                 MS. LEVY: I have a proposal that you

          7  exempt First Amendment vendors and veteran vendors

          8  from the proposal of licenses --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Do you have an idea

         10  how it is that we can control the number of vendors

         11  on a street or don't you think we should?

         12                 MS. LEVY: I think, I think you need

         13  to let New York be New York.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Thank you.  Yes,

         15  sir.

         16                 MR. LEHMEN: Good afternoon, ladies

         17  and gentlemen of New York City and the City Council

         18  and Mr. Reed.  May I apologize to the City Council

         19  for, in the previous meeting I blew a fuse, it was

         20  rude?

         21                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Apology accepted.

         22                 MR. LEHMEN: I started showing my art

         23  work on 5th Avenue in 1978 after selling food.  I

         24  had a regular food vendors license selling hot apple

         25  cider and at that time, I saw a lot of artists and
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          2  were my best customers and I became a street artist

          3  and for the record, I apologize to former Rudolph

          4  Giuliani, Mayor of New York City, at that time,

          5  Robert Ledermen had many insulting portraits of the

          6  Mayor at that time and I apologized to him on

          7  October 24th of last year in front of Barney's

          8  Department Store and he shook my hand and I offered

          9  him a piece of art work.

         10                 Doing my art work and writing ideas

         11  in public places while showing my art work, like

         12  imagination, if you can imagine sailing in Central

         13  Park far, far away.  Title for an etching.  If it

         14  were read silently by exhausted visitors, Olympians,

         15  and Midtown secretaries, being original versus

         16  selling a pair of shoes.  621, New York, all aboard,

         17  take the first bold step.  Culture credit, it's like

         18  social security for artists who show on public

         19  property.

         20                 Whether we show or don't sell, we

         21  give culture to society.  Not just a pair of shoes

         22  like a general vendor.  Left, right, left, right

         23  spelled w- r- i- t.  Whether we show -- and the

         24  states collect taxes on gasoline to help pay for

         25  streets and parks. We deserve part of that.  If 621
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          2  will redefine the word vendor and include New York

          3  State sales tax rules, then it's about time, with

          4  technology as it is, that art sold has province,

          5  province, the history and tracking resales gives the

          6  artist an appreciation credit --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Sir, you need to

          8  wrap up.

          9                 MR. LEHMAN: -- When the art sells

         10  again and again and again, just as the State of New

         11  York gets paid money.  What about people who smoke

         12  cigarettes or cellular phone traffic?  A $50 million

         13  sale was made on --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Sir, I'm not sure

         15  you're speaking directly to the -- but your time is

         16  expired so if you want to take 30 seconds to wrap

         17  up, go ahead.

         18                 MR. LEHMAN: Well, you know, New York

         19  City is a wonderful place and you get lots of ideas

         20  to designate three people on a block with original

         21  ideas versus a pair of shoes or, you know, somebody

         22  supporting a family in another country, I guess you

         23  could do that too.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Thank you very

         25  much.
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          2                 MR. LEHMAN: God Bless New York.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Thank you.  Mr.

          4  Schubert.  Sir, you have to address your comments

          5  into the microphone.

          6                 MR. SCHUBERT: My name is Paul

          7  Schubert.  I have been a peddler for approximately

          8  18 years and I believe a peddler is not a vendor.  A

          9  peddler is a portable, enterprising, dedicated legal

         10  American retailer of art and merchandise.  A vendor

         11  is properly defined as one who sells food and I want

         12  to make that distinction because we're at two

         13  different categories.  I've also brought with me

         14  some visual aids which I wish to show because a

         15  picture is worth a thousand words, some ideas that

         16  I've had concerning how we can have more than three

         17  people on a block and yet not create an overcrowded

         18  situation and yet give the disabled veterans

         19  priority for their fine service and their sacrifice

         20  to our country and I brought a couple of visual

         21  aids.

         22                 I've been in contact with all the

         23  City Council members.  I've given them written

         24  material and I also gave a shrunk down version of my

         25  visual aids to the Sergeant at Arms asking him to

                                                            130

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2  please give it to Councilman Reed and I'm hoping

          3  this can be accomplished.  Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Thank you very

          5  much.  Thank you all for your testimony.  Thank you.

          6    I'm sorry, I've neglected to call on a colleague

          7  in government's representative Adam -- Adam from

          8  Assembly Member Jonathan Bing's office.  Sorry,

          9  Adam.  You're still here.  Elana Olitsky.  Iram,

         10  Aram Taqi, the New York Civil Liberties Union.

         11  Conde, is that Fletcher?  Is that person here? Is

         12  Conde Fletcher here?  Yes, sir.  Please come up and

         13  testify. You don't want to testify.  Okay.  Okay.

         14  You are?

         15                 MR. SZLACHETKA: Adam Szlachetka.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Please begin.

         17                 MR. SZLACHETKA: My name is Adam

         18  Szlachetka.  I'm here on behalf of Assemblyman, I'm

         19  sorry, please, I'm here on behalf of Assemblyman

         20  Jonathan Bing who represents the 73rd Assembly

         21  District in the East Side of Manhattan, who is in

         22  Albany right now.  I just want to express my

         23  concerns with Intro 621 and the impact that it could

         24  have on vendor activity and the quality of live

         25  within my district.
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          2                 I first want to thank Council Member

          3  Reed for his effort as Chair of the Consumer Affairs

          4  Committee of the City Council in making the issues a

          5  priority.  I agree that the rules regulating street

          6  vendors do need to be standardized and I commend the

          7  Chairman and the Committee for addressing this

          8  matter in a comprehensive manner, matter in a

          9  comprehensive manner and I do hope to see an overall

         10  strategy put into place.  The result could only lead

         11  to a better enforcement, less congested streets and

         12  a fairer business environment and this is a goal

         13  that should not be abandoned.

         14                 There are flaws in Intro 621,

         15  however, that would outweigh the increased benefits

         16  of streamlining regulations.

         17                 I am opposed to the proposal to open

         18  up nearly the entire city to vending activity due to

         19  my concern of the impact that these rule changes

         20  would have on my district.  I do not feel that

         21  restrictions should be relaxed in the name of

         22  standardization.

         23                 There is significant illegal and

         24  legal vendor activity throughout my district.  In

         25  East Midtown and other areas of my district that are
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          2  located in the "midtown core" as defined by state

          3  laws concerning street vending, I'm sorry, the

          4  presence of illegal vendors can lead to difficult

          5  congestion for pedestrian traffic and poses a

          6  potential threat to legitimate, taxpaying local

          7  businesses.  I was a co- sponsor of legislation that

          8  was passed by the Legislature that was signed by the

          9  Governor that enacted further restrictions on

         10  vending in Midtown and other congested areas while

         11  respecting special exemptions for disabled veteran

         12  vendors.  To further strengthen these protections, I

         13  have authored legislation that would strengthen

         14  penalties for impersonating a veteran vendor.  I

         15  feel that these changes in the law were needed,

         16  however, I feel that Intro 621 would reduce the

         17  effectiveness of state restrictions against vending.

         18                 In the other areas of my district

         19  that are not located in the midtown core, the

         20  problem still requires addressing. East 86th Street,

         21  for example, has already seen a decline in the

         22  number of small, locally owned businesses.  The

         23  large increase in vendor activity that would result

         24  from this legislation could result in greater

         25  competition for these rent paying businesses owners
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          2  and lead to an even greater decline in small

          3  business activity.

          4                 Finally, Intro 621 would also

          5  eliminate the Street Vendor Review Panel.  While I

          6  understand that this panel has not met recently in

          7  light of proposals to change vendor rules,

          8  eliminating this body would be unwise.  The ability

          9  to close certain streets to vending activity where

         10  it is deemed appropriate is an important option for

         11  the City.  There are instances where it is necessary

         12  to do so and eliminating this body would be an

         13  unfortunate loss to the City's ability to keep

         14  vending regulations current and relevant.

         15                 I am proud to have worked with local

         16  community organizations in my district such as the

         17  86th Street Merchants and Residents Association, the

         18  East 62nd Street Association and the East Midtown

         19  BID and further, the 17th and 19th Police Precincts

         20  have done a great job of enforcing the rules that

         21  are in place. While this proposed plan would

         22  standardize regulations for our police officers and

         23  our community leaders, I fear that such a dramatic

         24  increase in vending licenses would result in an

         25  unmanageable number of illegal and legal vendors on
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          2  our streets.

          3                 I hope that the City Council

          4  continues the discussion of simplifying the rules on

          5  street vendor activity but not in a manner that

          6  could intensify the problem.  I urge the Committee

          7  not to adopt this legislation in it's current form

          8  but instead to continue to work with community

          9  representatives, business owners and disabled

         10  veteran organizations to come up with a proposal

         11  that is fair to all.  Thank you for your

         12  consideration.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Thank you for your

         14  testimony.  I appreciate that the Assembly member is

         15  concerned particularly in his area.  It should be

         16  noted that he and I have met a couple of times.

         17                 MR. SZLACHETKA: Definitely.  We

         18  appreciate that.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON REED: One of the many

         20  people I've met with.  I would only comment on his

         21  testimony since he's not here to say that I don't

         22  think that the loss of small businesses along 86th

         23  Street has anything to do with vending, legal or

         24  illegal.  What I see happening along 86th Street are

         25  these national chains taking over all the leases.
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          2                 MR. SZLACHETKA: That's agreed.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON REED: So, to blame it on

          4  vendors, I think, doesn't address the real issue

          5  that we might need to look at in terms of commercial

          6  rent control, allowing businesses to have a fair

          7  hearing in terms of rent increases, etcetera,

          8  etcetera but the problem is not solely the poor

          9  vendor outside of the shop.  So I would like to have

         10  that conversation at another time.

         11                 MR. SZLACHETKA: Okay.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Thank you very

         13  much.

         14                 MR. SZLACHETKA: I understand.  I did

         15  not mean for it come across solely to blame for

         16  vendors.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Fair enough.  Yes.

         18                 MS. OLITSKY: Hi, my name is Elana

         19  Olitsky and I'm a third year law student at NYU

         20  School of Law in the Immigrants Rights Clinic.  The

         21  Clinic has been representing immigrant street

         22  vendors for two years now and I have had the

         23  pleasure of working, since September, with Street

         24  Vendors for Justice, a multi- ethnic coalition of

         25  immigrant street vendor groups with over 500
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          2  members. While we are gratified that the Council is

          3  considering and seems in support of Intro 491 which

          4  removes the antiquated and discriminatory work

          5  authorization licensing requirement from the vending

          6  code, we are disappointed that Intro 621 has been

          7  written in such a way that the removal of this

          8  requirement will have little to no impact on our

          9  vendors.

         10                 In my time working with the vendors,

         11  I have seen how they want to be licensed.  They want

         12  to pay fees to the City.  They want to contribute to

         13  the City's economy as small entrepreneurs but have

         14  not been able to for two reasons.  First, as

         15  immigrants, they could not apply for a license

         16  unless they had proof of work authorization and

         17  second, like all unlicensed vendors, they could not

         18  get a permit because of decades old caps on general

         19  merchandise license and food cart permits.

         20                 Now, the Council is considering

         21  removing the work authorization requirement to bring

         22  New York into conformity with other cities.  This

         23  measure deserves your support -- it removes the

         24  anti- immigrant sentiment from the Code and brings

         25  City Council legislation in line with the Mayor's
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          2  Executive Order 41, which recognizes that city

          3  agencies should not ask about immigration status.

          4                 I am disappointed, however, that

          5  after years of fighting to change the law, most of

          6  the vendors we represent will still not be able to

          7  become licensed because Intro 621 does not make the

          8  changes essential to updating the vendor code.  It

          9  does not allow any more food vending carts on the

         10  streets.  It allows only small raises to those

         11  permitted to vend general merchandise and it adds

         12  new caps on food vendors' individual permits.

         13  Individual permits are currently uncapped and they

         14  have been since the City voided a similar cap in the

         15  1980s due to questions about it's constitutionality.

         16                 Our clinic has been working with the

         17  vendors for over two years in their struggle to get

         18  licenses.  They have met with Council member after

         19  Council member including many of the Council members

         20  that sit on this Committee.  Nearly everyone of the

         21  almost twenty Council members with whom they met,

         22  supported removing the work authorization

         23  requirement.  But now the vendors efforts to become

         24  licensed and make an honest living for themselves

         25  and their families have been hampered by the
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          2  introduction of the current bill, Intro 621.  If

          3  both bills pass, at the same time that the vendors

          4  we represent are being told that the City will not

          5  continue it's discriminatory practice of inquiring

          6  into immigration status on vending applications, the

          7  door is again closed in their face as there are no

          8  new licenses to be found.

          9                 This situation is unacceptable.

         10  Vendors are trying to make a living to support their

         11  families --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Wrap up.

         13                 MS. OLITSKY: -- I'm doing it.  And

         14  many of them came into vending when they lost their

         15  jobs after 9/11.  We would urge you to modify Intro

         16  621 in the following ways.  We would like the

         17  general merchandise cap to be increased to at least

         18  3,000.  We would like the cap on food cart permits

         19  to be increased to at least 9,300 to give every

         20  person with a food vendor license a permit with

         21  their carts or 15,000 which is more in accordance

         22  with the approximate 6,000 vendors currently

         23  operating without a license on the streets and we

         24  would support no restriction on the number of

         25  vendors allowed per block.  Existing place right
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          2  restrictions automatically regulate the number of

          3  legal vending spots on each block.  In the

          4  alternative, we may support a block restriction that

          5  allows for one vendor per twenty feet.  Thank you

          6  for your time.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON REED: So you're not

          8  willing to acknowledge that while it is incremental

          9  and obviously not what you want, you want just, you

         10  just want us to let everybody have a license, that

         11  the bill at least allows for some new licenses.

         12                 MS. OLITSKY: It doesn't allow for any

         13  new licenses for our vendors because --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON REED: I beg your pardon.

         15                 MS. OLITSKY: -- It doesn't allow for

         16  any new licenses for our vendors --

         17                 CHAIRPERSON REED: You represent only

         18  the food vendors?

         19                 MS. OLITSKY: We represent unlicensed

         20  immigrant vendors.  The cap on general merchandise

         21  is going up to 2,000 but someone testified earlier

         22  today that the waiting list is 3,000 people long.

         23  Our vendors --

         24                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Just because

         25  somebody testified to that you've signed on to it?
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          2  Do you know that for a fact?

          3                 MS. OLITSKY: That may not be true.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON REED: You're a law

          5  student, right?

          6                 MS. OLITSKY: Yes.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON REED: So don't just take

          8  random comments as the facts.

          9                 MS. OLITSKY: At any rate, there is a

         10  waiting list. Our vendors are currently not on it

         11  because they can't apply because of the work

         12  authorization requirement.  At the very least, there

         13  may be a few general vendors who will benefit from

         14  the bill but it seems unlikely and none of our food

         15  vendors are going to benefit at all because they

         16  will still be unable to get licenses.             CHAIRPERSON

         17  REED: The concern that has been raised by many

         18  people is that, particularly as it relates to the

         19  food licenses, that many of them are, in fact,

         20  fictional and that you have one person having any

         21  number, four, five, six different licenses and that

         22  this is part of the problem in terms of the

         23  counterfeiting of licenses, the duplication of one

         24  person actually having legitimate licenses but the

         25  fact is one person is holding multiple licenses.
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          2  Part of what we've tried to do in this legislation

          3  and have tried to do through rules is to tighten

          4  those restrictions so that it's more difficult for

          5  people to have multiple licenses so that even if you

          6  have a restrict -- if you actually had the real

          7  number of people having only one license, you might

          8  have a thousand licenses that you could give out to

          9  new people.

         10                 That is one of the problems, one of

         11  the many, that we're trying to deal with because

         12  everybody's got issues. Everybody's got issues.  So

         13  we're trying to find a way, I appreciate your

         14  testimony and the concerns that you've raised.  You

         15  represent a particular class or group of people with

         16  their concerns.  We are not going to allow 9,000

         17  food carts on the streets of New York, just not

         18  going to happen.  Not going to happen.

         19                 But I do think that we can re-

         20  examine the number of licenses across the board that

         21  you're talking about.  There are people who don't

         22  want any new licenses, as you heard.  There are

         23  those, as yourself, who want an unlimited number of

         24  them. Somewhere in the middle is usually what

         25  happens so I heard you say 3,000, maybe we'll try to
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          2  look towards that number and we'll re examine the

          3  issue as it relates to food vendors and we'll

          4  certainly talk more in a more informal setting.

          5  Thank you for your testimony.  Yes, ma'am.  If the

          6  light is off, it's a little strange, if the light's

          7  off, the microphone is on.

          8                 MS. TAQI: Good afternoon, Chairman

          9  Reed.  My name is Iram Taqi.  I'm Legislative

         10  Counsel at the New York Civil Liberties Union.  I'm

         11  joined by my colleague Beth Lewis who is an attorney

         12  at the NYCLU who has an extensive First Amendment

         13  practice and has represented vendors in various

         14  proceedings.

         15                 Despite the bill's important

         16  objectives including allowing a larger number of

         17  vendors greater access to City streets and

         18  minimizing congestion, Intro 621 raises serious

         19  constitutional and practical concerns.  I'd like to

         20  focus here on our First Amendment concerns though

         21  the bill also raises privacy and due process

         22  concerns which we can talk about.

         23                 First of all, imposing a licensing

         24  requirement on First Amendment vendors is

         25  presumptively unconstitutional.  There's a strong
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          2  presumption in the law that licensing First

          3  Amendment activity will restrict freedom of speech

          4  and expression because historically, licensing

          5  schemes have been used to do just that.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Because

          7  historically what?

          8                 MS. TAQI: Because historically,

          9  licensing schemes of First Amendment activity have

         10  been used to restrict speech and expression.

         11                 In contrast to licensing, the City is

         12  free to impose reasonable and narrowly designed

         13  regulations on First Amendment vendors for those who

         14  use tables and carts and similar devices, you know,

         15  in order to minimize congestion on City streets.  It

         16  doesn't appear, though, that the space allocation

         17  system and the priority system proposed by the bill

         18  fit this legal standard of reasonableness and being

         19  narrowly designed.

         20                 But in order for us to adequately

         21  assess whether these proposals are reasonable, we

         22  have several questions that are, have not been

         23  answered by the legislative record on Intro 621.

         24  For example, how many vendors are there in each

         25  category and where do they vend?  What's the current
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          2  concentration of food, general and First Amendment

          3  vendors by location?  Would three vendors per block

          4  face be too few in certain areas and maybe too many

          5  in other areas? In other words, does it make sense

          6  to allocate space in this way across the board?

          7                 These questions suggest to us that a

          8  land use analysis needs to be undertaken to

          9  determine whether the proposed regulations fairly

         10  and reasonably allocate space.  The study should

         11  take into account congestion and traffic patterns on

         12  particular streets as well as consumer demand for a

         13  particular type of vendor, in particular location

         14  and at particular times.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON REED: I'm going to stop

         16  you because your time is up but I think your

         17  comments are relevant but you know, I would

         18  encourage the NYCLU to draft their own legislation

         19  with all of those things in there.  Let's see if you

         20  can do it and, you know, I don't mean to be

         21  disrespectful about it but you've just told me about

         22  four or five variables that I would venture to say

         23  that some other civil liberties attorney would tell

         24  me were unconstitutional if we took that into

         25  consideration so I'm happy to work with you guys.
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          2  You know, I'm happy to hear it.

          3                 I think you're right that there are

          4  some streets that could have more and perhaps some

          5  that could have less but given the laws that we're

          6  working with now as it relates to, especially the

          7  Albany laws, related to veteran vendors etcetera,

          8  etcetera, you well understand that even on a

          9  restricted street right now, if a veteran disabled

         10  vendor comes and opens up the street to the quote

         11  and I say that because there's just some things that

         12  are hard to believe, the First Amendment, but that's

         13  the wonders of this country, are allowed to be on

         14  the street.

         15                 Now unless you're saying to me that

         16  the NYCLU's position is that we should allow as many

         17  vendors as can fit on a block, access to that block,

         18  you'd have to come up with a scheme for me that

         19  allows us to have some control over how many people

         20  are on a block to -- because really all that is

         21  about is about public safety and not overwhelming

         22  the small businesses and their rights to be there.

         23  So I look forward to talking with you privately

         24  about a scheme but you need to really think through

         25  all the, and it sounds like you're beginning to, but
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          2  then present me with the scheme that solves all

          3  those problems.  That I would appreciate.

          4                 MS. TAQI: With all due respect, we

          5  would be very willing to work with you and your

          6  Committee.  We have not, to date, been involved in

          7  the process.  We welcome the attention that's being

          8  paid to the panoply of laws that address vending in

          9  the City, governed by the State over --.  We believe

         10  that it would be productive for us to supply what is

         11  our expertise which are the constitutional

         12  parameters with respect to First Amendment activity,

         13  with respect to Fourth Amendment privacy rights and

         14  preferences that are being afforded to religious

         15  institutions by the State which the bill does

         16  provide.

         17                 We also believe that it would be

         18  prudent to bring in the Department of City Planning

         19  as well as the Department of Transportation.  We

         20  heard today from the Department of Consumer Affairs

         21  and the Police Department.  There are a variety of

         22  regulatory agencies who each have expertise that

         23  will be critical to informing the Council's very

         24  difficult task and we do look forward to working

         25  with all of you and with them.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Thank you very

          3  much.  Thank you all.  Okay, Gus Terezis, Joel

          4  Meyers, Sean Sweeney.  Sean Sweeney here?

          5                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Mr. Chair, he

          6  had to leave.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Joel Meyers.  Is

          8  Gus still around? Iman Abdul- Baki, is that person

          9  here?  James Kushner, is that person here?  He left?

         10    Okay guys, we've got to get moving.  Gus, you want

         11  to take a seat?  Have you flipped a coin?  Who's

         12  first? I've done all the talking but I'm letting you

         13  talk.  Who's first? You're going first?  Okay, let

         14  me remind you now, you have two minutes.  Don't tell

         15  me the problem of vending.  Tell me what you're

         16  concerns are about the bill, okay?  The light has to

         17  be off.

         18                 MR. TEREZIS (difficult to discern due

         19  to dialect in language): I'm very happy about this

         20  bill and I'm very happy for this Committee.  I

         21  believe something good has to happen but no like

         22  what it is right now (sic).  For example, I work 47

         23  and 5th.  I can't think 5th Avenue be open for

         24  vending (sic) because it happened before and we got

         25  rid of problem (sic), big problem so I believe --
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          2  person -- Councilman you gotta do something about

          3  5th Avenue especially from 46th, excuse me, to 61.

          4  It is a more congested area and I can prove that

          5  because the City --

          6                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Are you saying that

          7  between 46th and --

          8                 MR. TEREZIS: 46th to north --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON REED: -- And you're

         10  saying --

         11                 MR. TEREZIS: -- To 61 --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON REED: You're saying

         13  there's too many vendors?

         14                 MR. TEREZIS: No, vendors -- is closed

         15   -- this under control.  -- On the avenue, on the

         16  avenue, that's right and I can prove that because

         17  the Christmas time, that particular part the City

         18  except to close for vending (sic).  So I can't think

         19  people say on the avenue to vending.  It is

         20  something who nobody like (sic) especially the

         21  people, the tourists --

         22                 CHAIRPERSON REED: So you're saying

         23  that vendors don't want to vend on the avenues?

         24                 MR. TEREZIS: The vendors, of course,

         25  they're working in the City like me.  All the other
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          2  vendors don't like that.  They have a lot of -- who

          3  don't want that (sic) so also, we have people who

          4  propose me to do (sic) open the 57 between Madison

          5  to 5th, Madison to 6th Avenue because that, of

          6  course, is more expensive area of -- and --

          7  secondly, they has very expensive stores (sic) who

          8  some buildings in same time --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON REED:  The bill would

         10  open up 57th Street.  The bill would open up 57th

         11  Street.

         12                 MR. TEREZIS: Yeah, but 57 I believe

         13  they got a problem because some buildings --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON REED: I'm not sure I

         15  understand.  You asked me to open up 57th Street.

         16                 MR. TEREZIS: No, I asked you to close

         17  57.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Oh, you want it

         19  closed.

         20                 MR. TEREZIS: Yes.  Yes, because that

         21  happened before and -- more of the expensive areas

         22  and very --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON REED: So, in essence, you

         24  think that some streets should be open and some

         25  should be closed?
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          2                 MR. TEREZIS: No, no, no.  You can

          3  open anything you want except if it has legal

          4  complaints, legal reasons.  -- Especially because I

          5  know the problems with this particular area.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Is there anything

          7  else on the bill?  You want to go street by street.

          8  We're not going to go street by street today.

          9                 MR. TEREZIS: Okay.  Okay.  Also, I

         10  believe I have behind to me guys who working for

         11  many years before happened low-.  For example, years

         12  ago work one street, one vendor, one street and

         13  another working across but not the same line and we

         14  never have problem (sic) with that.  So now come in

         15  different people (sic) and make a lot of complaints

         16  and make the neighborhood complain.  The business

         17  people complain, the BIDs complain, they close the

         18  street.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Okay, Gus, you're

         20  going to have to wrap up.

         21                 MR. TEREZIS: Yes.  Now, I believe

         22  from that Committee something good can happen but I

         23  believe also, we have working together with vendors

         24  associations, with the BIDs and I believe something

         25  real good can happen --
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Okay.

          3                 MR. TEREZIS: -- And I want to say one

          4  more thing about the priority.  I believe it's a

          5  more fair and honest solution and to find very easy

          6  except the number of the license, vendors, food

          7  vendors and general vendors.  The artists, who to

          8  me, is not everybody's artist (sic).  Most of them

          9  buying and selling pictures so anyway, I can't

         10  accept these artists but they have to have sell

         11  certificate (sic).  That sell certificate has issue

         12  date so you can prove the priority very easy.  Also

         13   --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Okay, Gus, I

         15  appreciate your testimony.  Thank you.

         16                 MR. TEREZIS: Okay.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Just for the record

         18   --

         19                 MR. TEREZIS: One more thing.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON REED: -- I want people to

         21  know that I've met with you at least two times.

         22                 MR. TEREZIS: Yes, one more thing

         23  please.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Okay.

         25                 MR. TEREZIS: Somebody else can say
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          2  the numbers are different but --, yes but we can't

          3  get from the consumer first and health department

          4  that they who are --

          5                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Okay so you want to

          6  use the date that they got the license.  That's not

          7  a bad idea.  Okay.  Thank you very much.  Yes, sir.

          8                 MR. MEYERS: Yes, I think, I want to

          9  start off first of all by saying --

         10                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Sir, excuse me, you

         11  have to tell us your name.

         12                 MR. MEYERS: Oh, Joel Meyers.  Okay, I

         13  want to start out first of all by saying that the

         14  really most precious thing that this bill seems to

         15  go against is the constitutional rights of the First

         16  Amendment book vendors.  One area that I know of

         17  where there a lot of book vendors is on the Upper

         18  West Side for example where you have a few blocks in

         19  a row of table after table of books and guess what?

         20  There are many people crusted around those tables

         21  hungry for the kind of books that they can't get in

         22  the book stores anymore because you have Barnes &

         23  Nobles.  You've got Borders. You've got an entire

         24  monopoly of control over our minds in a way and a

         25  lot of the old books that used to really stimulate
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          2  thinking before the television era and before the

          3  Barnes & Noble and Borders type era that, you know,

          4  this is our book culture now of big business that

          5  made this invasion.

          6                 This is also related to the general

          7  vendors because what's really a threat to the

          8  general vendors are all of these chains that are

          9  moving in taking over everything and suffocating

         10  every really independent business.  There is no

         11  longer a free enterprise system and, by the way,

         12  with all due respect, I have to say I was very

         13  disappointed when you supported Home Depot coming in

         14  to your district over there which is one of the

         15  exempt laws of this invasion and we have to do

         16  everything that we can to foster all the real grass

         17  roots small business and medium business that is now

         18  subject to this gigantic monopolization that we see

         19  all over the place and I think that that's really

         20  what's behind the attacks on the vendors.

         21                 Whether it's coming from 5th Avenue

         22  real estate people or in a more general and a more

         23  sophisticated attack which I think this bill

         24  actually encapsulates whether intentionally or

         25  inadvertently.  I see it as something that is almost
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          2  designed to ruin vending and ruin the character of

          3  New York City and spearheaded by this attack on,

          4  it'll undoubtedly push the First Amendment people

          5  off the street.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Mr. Levy, you need

          7  to wrap up.

          8                 MR. MEYERS: Okay.  Now in the

          9  beginning you said that many people were coming to

         10  your office telling you to change the law and that

         11  this is why it was done, that nobody said keep the

         12  status quo but as you and I both know, people don't

         13  come to politician's offices demanding to keep the

         14  status quo unless there's a threat to it.  And now,

         15  that there is a threat to it, we see that there's a

         16  hearing over here and that everybody that's coming

         17  to this hearing is opposed to most of this bill.

         18  There is no --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Mr. Levy.

         20                 MR. MEYERS: -- Even institutionally

         21  or from the grass roots public, there is virtually

         22  nobody supporting this bill.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Mr. Levy --

         24                 MR. MEYERS: I think that the bill --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Mr. Levy, Mr. Levy,
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          2  I get your point.

          3                 MR. MEYERS: Mr. Meyers, sir.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON REED: I'm sorry.  I beg

          5  your pardon. I'm looking at the wrong sheet of

          6  paper.  Mr. Meyers.

          7                 MR. MEYERS: Right.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Your point is, all

          9  your points have been eloquently made.  We had, oh,

         10  two years ago, I don't remember, a year and a half,

         11  three hearings before any new legislation was

         12  proposed.  We had three extremely well attended

         13  hearings on the issue of vending.  Many of the

         14  people that are here today testified.  In fact, I

         15  wonder why they're here quite so often but we heard

         16  from them and everybody said the thing was broken so

         17  while I understand that you say most people don't

         18  want to change the status quo, the fact is that the

         19  three hearings that we had, everybody said the

         20  system was broke, please do something to fix it.

         21                 So, I appreciate your testimony about

         22  that.  I think that you're probably, you know,

         23  somewhat on the right track in terms of these large

         24  mega- stores and I value your criticism of the

         25  decision that I made as it relates to Home Depot.
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          2  Thank you very much for your testimony.

          3                 MR. MEYERS: Can I just --?

          4                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Yes, wrap up.

          5                 MR. MEYERS: Yes, okay.  Now, I want

          6  to say that the -- I am glad about one thing in the

          7  bill and that is removing the restrictions on, the

          8  blanket restrictions on streets which will -- the

          9  pressures of big real estate and big, big mega

         10  retail but I think that it has to be accompanied to

         11  be realistic, to really open the streets, of getting

         12  rid of the 20 foot rule because that obliterates

         13  almost all opportunities.  I think if that were

         14  reduced to a 10 foot rule, it would take some

         15  measure against congestion and would give some

         16  consideration to the established, rent paying

         17  businesses and would really allow the opening of the

         18  restricted streets to have some meaning so that more

         19  vendors would be able to service New York and that

         20  more customers would be able to enjoy those

         21  services.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Thank you very

         23  much.

         24                 MR. MEYERS: Thank you.

         25                 MR. ABDUL- BAKI: Thank you, Mr.
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          2  Chairman.  Mr. Reed. I'd like to say that I somewhat

          3  support the changes.  Although, I think there need

          4  to be some modifications and for the record, I would

          5  like to state the following.

          6                 It's ironic that now that the City

          7  wants to change the scripts.  When Jews, Italians

          8  and Irish merchants hustle the streets to make a

          9  living, it was alright.  They made their money. They

         10  opened their stores and they moved onto a better

         11  life but now that poor people, veterans and people

         12  from developing nations, Africa and Asia are moving

         13  along the same lines, they are encountering all

         14  kinds of obstacles, restrictions and harassment. It

         15  is not right.  In a nut shell, I would like to say

         16  there seems to be some indifference in the City

         17  bordering on racism.

         18                 It is an outright insult in the bill

         19  restricting vendors from 5 a.m. to 11 a.m. And

         20  fingerprinting vendors, making it difficult for them

         21  to feed their families.  These people work hard and

         22  they are not involved in crime.  They add to the

         23  City's wealth and provide a service to the public.

         24  Therefore, Intro 621 should be amended to change

         25  those things.  The above proposal is what I want to
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          2  make then Intro 621 would be fair, for it would open

          3  up the City and other areas, make other areas of the

          4  City accessible to vendors and increase the number

          5  of general peddlers' licenses in addition to

          6  assisting immigrants get on their feet.

          7                 It will allow poor people to advance

          8  economically and help our veterans who deserve more

          9  in order to make a decent living.  Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Now, we're going to

         11  call now, David Cohen, Mitchell Balmuth, Elizabeth

         12  Ashby, Jack Nesbitt.  All those people here?  What?

         13  Okay.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Don't get

         15  excited, I'm only here temporarily.  Mr. Katz,

         16  you're on.  Are you here?  Jack Katz. No.  Okay, Mr.

         17  Nesbitt, you're on.

         18                 MR. NESBITT: Yes.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Your mike.

         20                 MR. NESBITT: I guess when the light

         21  is on --

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: When the

         23  light's off, the mike's on.  That's how we do things

         24  in the City Council.

         25                 MR. NESBITT: Okay.  Good afternoon,
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          2  Chairman Reed and Council members.  My name is Jack

          3  Nesbitt.  I'm a member of A.R.T.I.S.T.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: So you're a

          5  member of who?

          6                 MR. NESBITT: A.R.T.I.S.T.  That's

          7  Artists' Response --

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: I know it

          9  well.  Trust me, I never could.  No, go ahead.  I'm

         10  sorry.

         11                 MR. NESBITT: This is an ideal forum

         12  for me to express my opinion on licensing free

         13  speech.  Imagine the scenario that what I voice in

         14  here needed a license anywhere but here.  For

         15  instance, outside on the sidewalk in front of City

         16  Hall.  The only thing I needed to do to express my

         17  opinion here was to show up. What an American idea.

         18                 Now you are proposing a bill that

         19  would allow me to speak out only if I get permission

         20  from the City.  Suppose I was an immigrant from out

         21  west, new to the City and I had an opinion about

         22  something I had read in the Times and I wanted to

         23  respond to it with a sign a leaflet or some of my

         24  art work.  This bill says that I would need

         25  permission from someone before I can do that.
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          2                 For example, during the Giuliani

          3  administration, when he was having cars impounded

          4  and having artists and protestors arrested, I came

          5  up with the idea of having a sign at our

          6  demonstrations that would say, "Impound Giuliani".

          7  I didn't immediately run up to the City Hall and

          8  search out Sonny Mendell. Giuliani --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Sir, you're going

         10  to have to speak specifically to this legislation

         11  and you've already run through your two minutes but

         12  I'm going to give you another minute.  Please speak

         13  directly to the testimony, to the legislation.

         14                 MR. NESBITT: Okay.  I displayed that

         15  sign and it was appropriate to do so in a timely

         16  manner.  If I had waited two or three days to do it,

         17  it wouldn't have addressed and had the impact that

         18  it did.  So, it's important that we have no

         19  restrictions on free speech.  In fact, I don't see

         20  that free speech is broken and needs fixing.  The

         21  artists with the help of Robert Lederman, our

         22  President, we have prevailed in seven courts against

         23  the attack --

         24                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Sir, I'm going to

         25  have to ask you to wrap up your testimony.
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          2                 MR. NESBITT: Okay, I have one thing

          3  left to say. Free speech doesn't need any licenses

          4  or any stinking badges. Forget about it.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Thank you.  Mr.

          6  Balmuth.

          7                 MR. BALMUTH: Okay, I'm going to read

          8  my testimony because I probably don't have any extra

          9  time to do anything else and you know I have a lot

         10  more to say.

         11                 Okay, my name is Mitchell Balmuth and

         12  my wife and I have been selling our paintings and

         13  prints --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Pull the microphone

         15  close to you, Mitchell.

         16                 MR. BALMUTH: Hello.  Hello.  Is that

         17  better?  Okay. I can't read my thing with this so

         18  close.  My name is Mitchell Balmuth and my wife and

         19  I have been selling our paintings and prints since

         20  1993.  We also sold political tee shirts and buttons

         21  during the Republican Convention and I will be

         22  selling anti Bloomberg buttons until New York City

         23  elects a Democratic mayor in November.  I speak here

         24  in front of the Consumer Affairs Committee in

         25  defense of free speech in New York City.  The
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          2  Committee under the leadership of Chairman Reed has

          3  introduced a bill, Intro 621. If passed, would be

          4  the first time in the history of New York City

          5  individual First Amendment activity would require a

          6  license.  This law is unprecedented and flies in the

          7  face of all previous council legislation and State

          8  Court and Federal Court rulings.

          9                 When you look at the report on Intro

         10  621, you can see that this law was carefully crafted

         11  to undo the 2nd Circuit Court decision in Bery.

         12  This law not only attempts to destroy Bery, but also

         13  obliterates Local Law 33 of 1982, which the New York

         14  Civil Liberty Union worked so hard to get in place,

         15  see testimony of Arthur Eisenburg, dated December

         16  7th, 1981, which I have a copy for you guys if you

         17  want.  In that testimony, Mr. Eisenberg eloquently

         18  shows the importance of not having licenses for

         19  written matter.  When Federal and State courts make

         20  liberal decisions such as Bery, one might expect

         21  conservative Republicans to look the decision and

         22  try to rewrite the laws so as to make the decision

         23  mute.  One would not expect a heavily controlled

         24  democratic council, in one of the most liberal

         25  cities in the world, to destroy free speech, by
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          2  requiring individuals expressing themselves in

          3  public space, to be licensed.

          4                 My position, which is identical to

          5  the A.R.T.I.S.T. Group, is that there are three non-

          6  negotiable points to this legislation.  No license,

          7  permit and what do they call, the City called it

          8  registration, I'm adding the etcetera, registration

          9  for free speech vending.  No priority system of any

         10  kind for First Amendment vendors.  No artificial

         11  limit on the number of First Amendment vendors on a

         12  block face.

         13                 All three of these points are

         14  unconstitutional and if needed, we will be back in

         15  court if any one of these requirements are left in

         16  the law.  If this bill passes with the licensing

         17  requirement, I will continue to sell first amendment

         18  protected material as an unlicensed vendor and urge

         19  all other first amendment vendors to do the same.

         20                 I know that the New York City

         21  business community believes this Intro to be vendor-

         22  friendly.  They claim that opening all the streets

         23  and increasing the cap on vending will destroy --

         24                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Mr. Balmuth, you

         25  have to wrap up.
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          2                 MR. BALMUTH: You're not going to let

          3  me finish one more page?

          4                 CHAIRPERSON REED: No, sir.

          5                 MR. BALMUTH: I mean, everybody --

          6                 CHAIRPERSON REED: You can summarize

          7  it.

          8                 MR. BALMUTH: I've sat through five

          9  hearings.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Mitchell, you've

         11  testified at everyone of the them except the last

         12  one.

         13                 MR. BALMUTH: I testified at one.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON REED: And you're taking

         15  up the time that I've given you.

         16                 MR. BALMUTH: Well, fine, you have it

         17  written.  I know when I'm being silenced.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Okay, thank you

         19  very much. Mitchell, I'm going to give you another

         20  30 seconds if you want to wrap up the rest of your

         21  comments.

         22                 MR. BALMUTH: If you want me to finish

         23  reading it, I'll finish reading it.  About a minute.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Mitchell, go ahead

         25  and read the thing, okay?  Finish reading it, go
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          2  ahead.

          3                 MR. BALMUTH: That's all I asked.  I

          4  know that the New York City business community

          5  believes this Intro to be vendor friendly.  They

          6  claim that opening all the streets and increasing

          7  the cap on vending will destroy small businesses.

          8  Chairman Reed needed to put this into the law to

          9  convince vendors that this law will help them.  In

         10  order to limit vending to only three vendors per

         11  block face, it was necessary to open up more

         12  streets.  Reed also knows the number of licensed

         13  vendors in order to make -- 0. Reed also needed to

         14  do this to increase the number of licensed vendors.

         15  In order to make this bill look friendly to vendors

         16  and get them to support this bill, he had to

         17  something to hook them in. But when you take a

         18  closer look at these two pro vendor points, we see a

         19  problem.

         20                 Section 20- 466n, subsections four

         21  and five, describes streets and zones that are

         22  already restricted.  After hearing from the BIDS at

         23  the last hearing, we can be sure to see this section

         24  grow.  And what happens next year when there's a new

         25  intro adding more streets to this section?  Any
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          2  vendor who has been vending here for any length of

          3  time knows that the Avenues in Times Square and 5th

          4  Avenue in Midtown will eventually be restricted.

          5  Vendors are not stupid.

          6                 As far as increasing the cap, this

          7  law increases it by 400 licenses the first year.

          8  But when there exists a waiting list of

          9  approximately 3,000 people and there will be

         10  thousands of new applicants, the 400 new licenses

         11  will surely not solve the problem of unlicensed

         12  vendors.  More licenses are going to be issued in

         13  the next two years.  However, with united opposition

         14  to this, the BIDS and other business groups will be

         15  trying to change that provision each year.  The

         16  opening of all the streets and increase in the cap

         17  is intended to bring in vendor support.

         18  Unfortunately, neither of these provisions will ever

         19  be in place for any length of time.  But it will be

         20  too late for vendors when more streets are

         21  restricted and the cap is closed at a later date and

         22  they are stuck with three vendors per block face.

         23                 As for fingerprinting licensed

         24  vendors, all I can say is fingerprint criminals, not

         25  hard working people. Fingerprinting is not necessary
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          2  to stop counterfeit licenses.

          3                 The most ridiculous part of this law

          4  is a priority system to make sure there are no more

          5  than three vendors on a block face.  If there is

          6  more than one of any type of any vendor, another

          7  type of vendor can remove one of those vendors

          8  already there until there is one of each type of

          9  vendor, general merchandise, First Amendment or food

         10  vendor.  A priority system has been used for

         11  Disabled Veterans since 1998, not without problems.

         12  However, since they are a very small group of about

         13  300 vendors, all with a strong common bond, they

         14  usually are able to handle their disputes.  Put this

         15  same system fighting from prime space among the

         16  existing 2,500 general vendors, approximately 1,000

         17  First Amendment vendors and now, I put unlimited but

         18  now I found that there's 9,000 --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Mitchell.

         20  Mitchell.  Mr. Balmuth --

         21                 MR. BALMUTH: Each group, the last

         22  sentence -- an unlimited number of food vendors,

         23  each group only having priority among their

         24  individual group, you have a recipe for disaster. I

         25  know I got the bum's rush --
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON REED: No, you haven't

          3  gotten the bum's rush.

          4                 MR. BALMUTH: -- And I know I spoke to

          5  you at length the other day but unfortunately,

          6  speaking to you does not qualify as testimony at

          7  this hearing which any City Council person could

          8  hear and you know I know a lot about vending if you

          9  have any questions, I'll feel free to answer them.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Thank you for your

         11  comments. They're always provocative.  We have met

         12  several times informally. I appreciate that this is

         13   --

         14                 MR. BALMUTH: One time before.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON REED: No, no, we've met

         16  before at my office a year and a half ago but that's

         17  alright, let's not have a debate about how many

         18  times you and I have intersected with each other.

         19  Just for the record, the Department of Consumer

         20  Affairs now requires fingerprinting.  Now, the law

         21  requires fingerprinting. Licenses for auctioneer,

         22  bingo commercial lessor, a booting company,

         23  electronic service, employment agency, home

         24  improvement contractor, home improvement sales

         25  person, locksmith, locksmith apprentice --
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          2                 MR. BALMUTH: Can I answer this

          3  question now?  You don't have to go --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON REED: I'm just reading

          5  this into the record, just because I want people to

          6  understand this is not the only thing that we've

          7  asked to have licensed with a fingerprint. I'm just

          8  letting Mitchell know.  You're not allowed to speak.

          9                 Motion picture operators, pawn

         10  brokers -- anytime -- process server, process server

         11  company, scrap metal processors, second hand auto

         12  dealer, second hand general dealer and a tow truck

         13  driver.  So, I'm just -- these, this may all be

         14  wrong, we shouldn't do that.  I just thought that

         15  it's important in the record for people to

         16  understand we didn't just say this the only group

         17  that should be fingerprinted.  These 15 out of 51

         18  already in the record. Thank you, Mr. Balmuth --

         19                 MR. BALMUTH: That's a lot of --

         20  there's a lot of cops to break the law.  Should all

         21  cops --

         22                 CHAIRPERSON REED: -- For your

         23  testimony.  Ma'am, you need to take a seat in the

         24  general audience and wait until you are called on.

         25  Ma'am, you need to sit over there and wait until you
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          2  are called on.  Okay.  We have nine more people who

          3  have not testified at this hearing or the others.

          4  We're going to give them all opportunity to testify

          5  because there is another activity going on here at

          6  5:00 and they've been very patient in terms of

          7  trying to set up for it.

          8                 So, Jeannot Yvon, is that person

          9  here?  Jill Stasium, Zoran, Zoran, did you testify

         10  the last time?  Okay. Natalia.  I'm sorry for using

         11  your first names but the last ones, I would just

         12  butcher it for you.  Mark, is it Nilsen?  How many

         13  do I have up there?  So two.  Lo Vander Valk.  Yes,

         14  sir.  Teri Slater. Where is that woman's form?

         15  Okay.  Nice to see you again.

         16                 MS. SLATER: Nice to be here.

         17                 MS. STASIUM: Good afternoon, Mr.

         18  Reed.  My name is Jill Stasium.  I'm a fine artist

         19  and one of the founding members of the Soho

         20  International Artists Co- Op and I've sold my

         21  paintings on the corner of West Broadway and Prince

         22  for over eight years. Through being able to display

         23  and sell my work on the street in this location I

         24  have been able to support myself and live in the

         25  heart of Soho and have established a solid and
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          2  growing clientele so I not only sell my work here

          3  but Soho is my home.

          4                 I live here.  I spend my money here

          5  and I vote here. Painting is my passion and my

          6  livelihood.  It is what has brought me to New York

          7  and to Soho in particular.  I'm getting a little

          8  myopic (phonetic) here, not addressing the broad

          9  issue but I think it overall, it fits.  New York is

         10  the image of being a cultural city.  People

         11  associate it with dance, music, theater and art.

         12  Over the years of being on the street, I have talked

         13  to thousands of people from many different parts of

         14  the world and I hear again and again from them how

         15  they are drawn here because of the art scene in New

         16  York.

         17                 They come here to see art and they

         18  stay to spend money eating in our restaurants and

         19  shopping.  These visitors tell me that the great

         20  richness and diversity found here reflects the value

         21  of culture that is associated with Europe.  The

         22  presence of art stimulates the local economies and

         23  in the end, the local businesses benefit.  Rather

         24  than being a liability, we are a value to the

         25  community both in terms of culture and commerce.
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          2                 In the past, my colleagues and I have

          3  gathered signatures from local businesses who

          4  support original artist's rights to display and sell

          5  on the streets.  Most people in business are open

          6  and embracing or at the very least, non- committal

          7  to our presence.  From my personal experience, the

          8  few groups of people that have objected to our

          9  presence over the years are small but vocal in a

         10  powerful minority.  I have been harassed and even

         11  physically attacked by certain members of the

         12  opposition over the years as have many other artists

         13  in my community.

         14                 While these people should be taken

         15  into consideration, they should not be able to

         16  override both our livelihood and the general

         17  acceptance we enjoy in our community nor should they

         18  be allowed to override our constitutional rights and

         19  attack us with impunity.

         20                 The reality is that those who oppose

         21  original public artists are far, far less in number

         22  than those that don't and yet somehow they control

         23  the conversation.  This negative process must end.

         24  The richness and the depth of Soho art scene should

         25  be considered to be a matter of neighborhood pride.
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          2  People come from all over the world to see the local

          3  art and speak to the artists of Soho as well as

          4  other areas of Manhattan such as MoMA and the

          5  Metropolitan Museum.  These visitors also shop in

          6  shops, restaurants, galleries and swell the local

          7  economy creating wealth for the community.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON REED: You have to wrap

          9  up.

         10                 MS. STASIUM: Okay.  Large metal

         11  planter boxes -- okay, never mind that.  I'm moved

         12  to New York City for a better life and then into

         13  Soho for quality of life that the presence of art

         14  provides.  This new proposed rule limiting the block

         15  face to only three vendors would serve only to

         16  destroy a vibrant community of artists, turn off the

         17  flow of sophisticated visitors and destroy the

         18  economy of the local businesses.  When only one or

         19  two artists are displaying their art work on the

         20  sidewalk, it destroys the essence of an art

         21  district.

         22                 Creating lone artists scenarios is

         23  actually dangerous for the artists, yet groups of

         24  artists create a viable scene and this draws people

         25  in.  Please don't break up the community of artists
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          2  that is a New York tradition.  Instead, we beseech

          3  you to create a system that creates a safe and

          4  vibrant environment for artists and legal vendors.

          5  To achieve this goal, it is necessary that you make

          6  sure artists and all legal vendors enjoy equal

          7  protection under the law and are respected --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON REED: You really have to

          9  wrap up.

         10                 MS. STASIUM:  -- My last sentence --

         11  and are respected for the contribution to the rich

         12  fabric of New York.  How can we create a climate of

         13  tolerance and acceptance of cultural diversity for

         14  if we allow the minority to win with their

         15  intolerance, it will not bode well for the

         16  community?

         17                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Thank you very

         18  much.  Please sir.

         19                 MR. VANDER VALK: Oh, sorry.  My name

         20  is Lo Vander Valk.  I'm President of Carnegie Hill

         21  Neighbors.  We represent a community that's quite

         22  large, four blocks by twelve blocks.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON REED: What blocks are

         24  those?

         25                 MR. VANDER VALK: From 86th to 98th.
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          2  From 5th Avenue to 3rd Avenue, not including 3rd.

          3  So we do include some of the 86th Street corridor

          4  which is somewhat contentious.

          5                 I just would like to commend you, Mr.

          6  Chairman, for the way you've been handling this

          7  hearing and this whole process. You're very

          8  deferential.  You're very fair and I also respect

          9  your seeking out specificity because that's the only

         10  way you're going to be able to find a resolution to

         11  these difficult problems and I appreciate your

         12  personal involvement.  You're sitting there

         13  listening to people.  You're asking questions.

         14                 With all respect, however, we take

         15  the view that Councilman Bing's representative has

         16  enunciated and we think it's better to try to fix

         17  the existing laws and to retain elements that are

         18  working rather than starting from scratch.  Although

         19  I do respect that you want to unearth the whole

         20  thing and go over it very carefully.  That you have

         21  achieved by proposing a new law, I think.

         22                 Finally, we are concerned about the

         23  quality of life issues in our community and a lot of

         24  congestion in residential areas of vendors proposes

         25  difficulties for people living there who are the
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          2  backbone or one of the backbones, not the only

          3  backbone, of what makes this a great city.  So we

          4  have to find a balance in all of this and I'm only

          5  reflecting the views of my residents that I hope

          6  you'll take into account.  Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON REED: You're timing is

          8  perfect.

          9                 MR. VANDER VALK: You have the clock

         10  there and I'm watching the clock.

         11                 MS. SLATER: Good afternoon, Chairman

         12  Reed, Commissioners.  I am Teri Slater.  I am co-

         13  chair of Lexington Neighbors which was established

         14  several years ago with the goal of revitalizing a

         15  heavily traveled stretch of Lexington Avenue in and

         16  around the 77th Street Subway Station.  Several

         17  years ago, along with neighboring block associations

         18  and civic groups, we appealed to the Vendor Review

         19  Panel and successfully got them to agree to ban

         20  vendors along 77th Street between 3rd and Park

         21  Avenues and along Lexington Avenue between 74th and

         22  79th Streets.  The reasons were very simple because

         23  of the narrow sidewalks, the number of vendors along

         24  the two streets created heavily congested conditions

         25  that compromised the public safety.  Pedestrians
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          2  were forced to step into the street to avoid

          3  obstructions created by vendors' carts.  There are

          4  in addition telephones, parking meters, mail boxes,

          5  subway grates and news boxes along Lexington Avenue.

          6    Adding more vendors to this mix is not in the

          7  public interest.  If the Vendor Review Panel is

          8  eliminated, what recourse would residents have in

          9  extremely congested areas like the transportation

         10  hubs around the 77th Street and 86th Street Subway

         11  Stations and similar places throughout the City?

         12                 In addition, the Zoning Resolution

         13  has historically and appropriately restricted

         14  commercial activity in areas zoned residential.  If

         15  residents and property owners may not conduct

         16  commercial activity in residential areas, would

         17  street vendors be given special dispensation?  This

         18  makes no sense.

         19                 Shouldn't Intro 621 trigger the

         20  environmental review process? The CEQR regulations

         21  describe actions that may have an adverse effect on

         22  the environment as requiring environmental review.

         23  These actions can include local laws and rules.  The

         24  adverse impacts may be economic, visual and social

         25  or effect neighborhood character.
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          2                 The merchants in our area are

          3  uniformly against any increase in the number of

          4  vendors.  Because of the very narrow sidewalks,

          5  their store fronts would be blocked from public

          6  view, creating a congested condition, which would

          7  not be conducive to shopping.

          8                 Finally, we are very concerned that

          9  Intro 621 is pro vendor at the expense of residents

         10  and merchants alike throughout New York City.  We

         11  respect your efforts and we really do respect your

         12  effort to craft effective legislation but we

         13  strongly urge you to go back and rethink this

         14  legislation to ensure that residential areas and

         15  local retail areas are protected.  The already

         16  congested areas throughout New York City should not

         17  be further compromised.

         18                 Public safety and the public interest

         19  must come first, not special interests.  Thank you

         20  very much.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Thank you.  Before

         22  you start, Mr. Nilsen, right?  Before you start.

         23  I'm very sympathetic, Ms. Slater, to the problems in

         24  that neighborhood.  The sidewalk issue, the

         25  narrowness of the sidewalk around the subway,
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          2  etcetera, etcetera.  Frankly, I try to avoid the

          3  neighborhood because of that so I understand the

          4  sympathy, am sympathetic to that and perhaps what we

          5  need to look at is, I don't know that sidewalk must

          6  be more than 12 feet wide because --

          7                 MS. SLATER: Less than 12 feet wide.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Well, then there's

          9  automatically a prohibition against vending in the

         10  legislation that we don't change that but that may

         11  be something that needs to be explored is whether or

         12  not it should be 15 feet.  I'm not making a

         13  recommendation today but I'm saying that in those

         14  neighborhoods. But if the sidewalk is less than 12

         15  feet wide, vending is prohibited and --

         16                 MS. SLATER: It's uneven in places

         17  along Lexington.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON REED: -- And we're not

         19  trying to change that.  I also think that you said

         20  there was a vending problem there.  You're probably

         21  right.  But in most residential neighborhoods as has

         22  been testified by the vendors, and I hope you find

         23  it at least half as humorous as I do, that you

         24  perceive this as pro vending, vendors but the

         25  vendors are not happy.

                                                            180

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2                 MS. SLATER: I do, indeed.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON REED: That usually means

          4  there's some good in this legislation.  That's a

          5  political calculation that we make.  If both sides

          6  think we're, you know, leaning towards the other,

          7  there must be some value in the middle.  The market

          8  place will address most of these issues.  If you

          9  can't make money on a corner, you're going to move.

         10  So while I think there's some fear and apprehension

         11  that we quote/unquote open it to all the streets in

         12  the City, the reality is there's not a great number

         13  of streets where you could have vending activity

         14  that are now restricted other than potentially these

         15  midtown areas and these commercial areas which is

         16  where vendors tend to want to go.

         17                 So that was sort of what we were

         18  trying to capture. I just want to give you an idea

         19  about that.  Mr. Valk, my --

         20                 MR. VANDER VALK: Vander Valk.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Vander Valk, excuse

         22  me.  86th Street is not regulated, is that right?

         23  That's what Council, Assembly Member Bing's people

         24  said.

         25                 MR. VANDER VALK: I think it's a
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          2  difficult issue. Sometimes it is and sometimes it

          3  isn't.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON REED: There you go.  But

          5  there are, I've traversed 86th Street many times.

          6  There's lots of vendors on that street.  So we have

          7  chaos on that street.  It's one of the main streets.

          8    Your block association has been to see me.  So I'm

          9  a little bit surprised that while I'm hearing what

         10  you're saying about other aspects of the

         11  neighborhood association or the area that you're

         12  there and my staff reminds me that you're involved

         13  with our Park Avenue Mall project on 96th, 97th, I

         14  think that's going to start any day now --

         15                 MR. VANDER VALK: Thank you very much

         16  for your support there.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON REED: You're welcome.  I

         18  was looking for that.  I'm just kidding.  But

         19  wouldn't you think that being able to have three

         20  people that were actually licensed is better than

         21  what's there now on 86th Street?

         22                 MR. VANDER VALK: I think I'd like to

         23  discuss that with people there.  I think that the

         24  number three, the magical number three does pose

         25  difficulties.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON REED: You've got four or

          3  five now on every block.

          4                 MR. VANDER VALK: It's true but can,

          5  may I permit you to say one other thing?  We had,

          6  last summer, on Madison Avenue in front of a very

          7  large building, where the sidewalk is more than 12

          8  feet wide, a fruit vendor and he stayed there, the

          9  market allowed him, the market mechanism allowed him

         10  to stay there many months and we received numerous

         11  complaints and we didn't have a ready answer for

         12  that one but he finally left, thank God.  But, I

         13  mean, do you want to harass every block in the City

         14  that is now, sort of, restricted by the market place

         15  or by other views and open it up to a potential

         16  vendor.  I think that creates chaos.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON REED: I don't know.  I

         18  would, we don't have a lot of time for -- go with

         19  Mr. Nilsen and the three other people but I might

         20  challenge their use of the language of harassment

         21  because the only reason that person stayed there

         22  were presumably, that's a residential neighborhood,

         23  the residents, many of them, shopped and bought what

         24  it was that he was vending.  So they were happy that

         25  he was there.  They found it convenient.  So I don't
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          2  think it's universal that people don't want someone.

          3

          4                 I could argue that better in a

          5  neighborhood where you have particularly transient

          6  populations but in that example that you gave, it

          7  seems to me that a fair amount of people, who

          8  actually live right around there, were happy that

          9  the man was there selling fruit, maybe Gristedes is

         10  overcharging.

         11                 MR. VANDER VALK: Well, there was a

         12  form of sympathy too and people are sympathetic and

         13  they want to help other people out so --.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Thank you very

         15  much.  Mr. Nilsen. Thank you for your patience.

         16                 MR. NILSEN: That's alright.  I'm

         17  honored to be here. I'd like to, just to help

         18  illustrate a unique point, I'd like to unfurl a

         19  piece of art right here.  This is a painting of a

         20  sewer cover and a subway grate.  I create my art on

         21  the street, okay?  I vehemently oppose any kind of

         22  permit for First Amendment speech, okay?  But I have

         23  a number of different ways that I can make money on

         24  this art.  I like selling on the street.  I like

         25  that I create it on the street and I like selling it
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          2  on the street.

          3                 I've got a number of commissions.

          4  I've sold a number to the State and the Department

          5  of Environmental Protection. But let's say I decided

          6  to do away with the, and I will, you know, get

          7  arrested if I have to, but let's say I don't want to

          8  sell on the street.  I still have to create this on

          9  the street, okay?  So if I'm out one night or one

         10  day painting it and then I bring an easel with me

         11  sometimes to hang it up while it's drying before I

         12  do the next layer.  It looks very much like I'm

         13  displaying my art for sale, okay?

         14                 A matter of fact, I get people coming

         15  up to me offering me to buy it from me, you know.

         16  If I have to have a permit to do that, you know,

         17  that's just totally going against the creation of

         18  the art.  Let's just say I'm not vending and that's

         19  the main problem I have in this particular instance

         20  with requiring me to have a permit for my right, I

         21  believe, to go out and create art in the streets of

         22  New York.

         23                 The other statement I have, in my

         24  last 17 seconds, is for the number three.  I'm not

         25  the only person who creates art outside.  There's a
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          2  number of schools that go out and they have groups

          3  of ten people and they sit around and they decide to

          4  paint the Flat Iron Building.  There's going to be

          5  ten people creating art on a little easel of the

          6  Flat Iron Building on one block and they're going to

          7  get a number of tourists coming up and possibly

          8  offering them to buy that piece of art, okay?

          9                 The number of three doesn't work

         10  there.  So those are my two concerns and I thank you

         11  very much for your time and I hope you see what

         12  point I'm trying to make.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Well, I do see your

         14  point and it's an interesting sort of how do you

         15  resolve the issue of people who are just artists

         16  painting on the street and those who are selling.

         17  And if I had bumped into you on the street, I might

         18  want to purchase this myself but --

         19                 MR. NILSEN: Now, you don't.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON REED: -- I didn't want to

         21  make that offer here because I might have other

         22  people who said, you know, you have to buy mine too

         23  so we'll talk about that privately.

         24                 MR. NILSEN: Right on.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON REED: I think that the
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          2  concern that you raised is legitimate.  The sense,

          3  the problem and now I'm going to really get into

          4  trouble saying this.  Many of the artists that we've

          5  spoken to are very upset about the liberty that the

          6  First Amendment allows for people to vend under when

          7  the fact is that they are violating copyrights,

          8  selling mass produced art.  They are not, in fact,

          9  the artist.  They are strictly the vendor.  There's

         10  nothing that's being protected in the sense of being

         11  able to make a statement about something.

         12                 I, myself, have been arrested more

         13  than a few times around the issue of peoples' rights

         14  and freedoms in this country. So I'm not unmindful

         15  of the comments that people make that relates to

         16  this bill and how this is going to infringe on it.

         17  I don't want that to be my legacy.  The issue is

         18  always how do we separate out who's a real artist

         19  and who isn't and that's really, you know, just

         20  because it's bad could mean you're not a real

         21  artist.

         22                 So it's hard to make that distinction

         23  and that is problematic.  It's also one of the

         24  reasons why, particularly, where there's a great, a

         25  significant amount of illegality based on
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          2  infringement, copyright.  All the various problems

          3  that are happening with vending on the street today,

          4  why I've suggested to the Police Department that the

          5  Business Integrity Commission get involved in

          6  enforcement.  That is one of the principle problems,

          7  why I'm a little bit disappointed because it'd be

          8  great if we didn't have to license anybody and I

          9  think the idea of perhaps of calling it a permit,

         10  permit to sell rather than to license would sound

         11  potentially less onerous to people --

         12                 MR. NILSEN: There's no difference

         13  between commercial free speech and non- commercial

         14  free speech but I don't want to get into that.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON REED: I understand that

         16  but I meant a permit to just be on the streets

         17  selling First Amendment.  I'm just pointing those

         18  out to you --

         19                 MR. NILSEN: No permits for First

         20  Amendments, please.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON REED: -- Okay, no matter

         22  what we call it.  I'm just simply trying to let you

         23  know what are the issues that we're in this umbrella

         24  trying to address and certainly the issues, I think

         25  you heard from the panelists about, and I think most
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          2  of us, if you're really, legitimately concerned,

          3  have to address the issue of pedestrian, just people

          4  being able to get back and forth to and from and not

          5  be overwhelmed on the streets of New York.  I mean,

          6  I think that really is paramount.  We want to

          7  protect that right as well as the others.  So, thank

          8  you all very much.

          9                 MR. NILSEN: No, no, sir.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Yes.

         11                 MR. NILSEN: I feel like you posed a

         12  question so I feel like --

         13                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Sure.

         14                 MR. NILSEN: -- I need to respond.

         15  First of all, dealing with copyright issues and also

         16  people selling stuff that quote/unquote isn't their

         17  art.  It's a very difficult kind of situation but

         18  let's say I wanted to go, and I'm not a very

         19  religious person but let's say I wanted to go, and

         20  read the Bible. I didn't write the Bible, okay?  You

         21  should be able to go out there and do that whether

         22  it's the Bible of Martin Luther King, Malcolm X or

         23  anybody.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Sir, this law

         25  doesn't prohibit you from standing there and reading
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          2  the Bible on the corner.

          3                 MR. NILSEN: You should not have any

          4   -- there are instances where somebody expresses the

          5  writings and the work of another artist and they

          6  should be able to do that because that's what

          7  freedom of speech --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON REED: This is, we're

          9  talking about selling it, sir.

         10                 MR. NILSEN: Okay.  That's right but

         11  like I said before, there's no difference between

         12  selling and commercial and non- commercial free

         13  speech.  Now the other instance --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON REED: We might disagree

         15  on that.

         16                 MR. NILSEN: -- Okay, that's true.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON REED: You want to give it

         18  away.  You want to tell it.  You want to sing it,

         19  that might be something completely different.

         20                 MR. NILSEN: Okay, you've -- I hope my

         21  testimony's been put into the record.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Thank you very

         23  much.

         24                 MR. NILSEN: Thank you.

         25                 MS. STASIUM: Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON REED: The last panel for

          3  the day.  Is it Lee Nitchum, Nitchen, okay?.  Joie

          4  Anderson, is that you, Ms. Anderson?  Thank you and

          5  Flora Bermudez.  Sure, I'm sorry I didn't see your

          6  name in there.  We're trying to get to the people

          7  who -- maybe because you spoke the last time.  Okay,

          8  what's your name?  I beg your pardon.  Michele

          9  Burnbaum.  Did you fill out a form? Okay.  I told

         10  you I need to be out of here at five.  We're going

         11  to do this again.  I'm sure I skipped over somebody

         12  I shouldn't skip over.  I'm just doing the best I

         13  can here.

         14                 MS. ANDERSON: Hi, thank you for

         15  having us.  I'm a 20 -- my name is Joie Anderson and

         16  I'm a 23 year resident of East 77th Street in

         17  Manhattan.  It is a residential side street but we

         18  were talking about sidewalk widths.  Some portions

         19  of East 77th Street between John Jay Park and Park

         20  Avenue are less than 4 feet wide.

         21                 One of the things that I have not

         22  heard all afternoon is the amount of sales tax

         23  generated by street vendors. Street, you know, when

         24  a street vendor sets up in front of a legitimate tax

         25  generating, tax collecting business, they regularly
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          2  decrease the number of customers that tax generating

          3  store has and therefore --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Do we have some

          5  empirical evidence of this?

          6                 MS. ANDERSON: I see street vendors

          7  blocking entrances to stores in my neighborhood.

          8  The other thing that I would like to address is that

          9  East 77th Street is a so- called ambulance route and

         10  a sidewalk cafe, a restaurant that wants to apply

         11  for a sidewalk cafe on East 77th Street is routinely

         12  denied. The reason I know that is because I

         13  participate in the Street Life Committee of

         14  Community Board 8.  But yet, there are street

         15  vendors on 77th Street.

         16                 Now a speeding ambulance going down

         17  77th Street is more likely to jump the curb and hit

         18  the street vendor than it is the people, the

         19  sidewalk cafe.

         20                 The other evidence that we have had

         21  over the years at 77th Street is the trash left by

         22  the street vendors.  The store owners, the building

         23  supers then get fines if their sidewalks aren't

         24  cleaned up.  This takes away from the time a

         25  legitimate store owner can, you know, spend on his
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          2  business.  I don't want my building super being

          3  fined because he has to clean up after a street

          4  vendor.

          5                 Lastly, one of the people that

          6  couldn't testify supplied me with some documentation

          7  of a 1906 hearing on street vendors.  If the word

          8  Mayor McClellan hadn't been in there, I wouldn't

          9  have known it was 1906.  It was like it was written

         10  yesterday.  Instead of the black vendors in Harlem

         11  feeling they're being harassed, it was the Jewish,

         12  Italian and Greek vendors.  It's absolutely

         13  fascinating so I call your attention to that.

         14                 My last concern is checkable

         15  documentation.  On identity theft and social

         16  security numbers being stolen, I think everyone

         17  should have checkable documentation in this

         18  unfortunate, horrible era of terrorism.  So thank

         19  you for your time.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Thank you. Give it

         21  to the Sergeant at Arms there, she'll copy it for

         22  us.  Go ahead.

         23                 MS. BERMUDEZ (Difficult to discern

         24  due to dialect in language): Good afternoon, my name

         25  is Flor Bermudez and I am a staff attorney at
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          2  Esperaza El Barrio (phonetic), a community based

          3  organization in East Harlem and my full time job is

          4  to be a criminal defense attorney to street vendors

          5  so I would like to give some insight.  I'm not going

          6  to go into detail about other stuff because other

          7  colleagues have already done so.

          8                 But I would like to just clarify, for

          9  the record, some of the statements that have been

         10  made here today.  In terms of the enforcement of

         11  police, NYPD enforcing street vending laws.  I think

         12  it is inaccurate to say that they don't enforce

         13  them.  Every day, I have at least three or four

         14  cases and the summons part of criminal court, all

         15  related to street vending.  Not just unlicensed

         16  vendors but the distance between a vendor and a

         17  subway, the distance between the vendor and an

         18  entrance.  These are routinely enforced by police

         19  and any vendor that's here today or was here today

         20  can tell you they have gotten summonses from police

         21  department, police officers all the time.

         22                 Some of my vendors come with 19

         23  summonses at a time so they are enforcing the law

         24  and if you need some numbers of the prior hearings

         25  of last year, the person from the Criminal Justice
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          2  System testified that in enforcement, the Police

          3  Department expends about $15 million enforcing

          4  street vendor regulations per year. They are arrest

          5  7,500 vendors during a year so the enforcement is

          6  happening.  I think the testimony wasn't clear who

          7  on the Police Department testified to that matter

          8  earlier.

          9                 The other thing I wanted to point out

         10  specifically to Section 10 of Intro 621 isn't

         11  consistent with current vending laws related to

         12  mobile food vending carts.  As you know, to vend in

         13  the City, you need both a personal license and a

         14  sticker or decal for a cart.  There is a limit of

         15  3,000 decals for the whole City.

         16                 However, Section 10, subsection E of

         17  this current proposal says that upon approval of an

         18  application of a street vendor for food, which you

         19  intend to realize is everybody, right, so currently

         20  there are 9,300 vendors who hold a food vending

         21  license.  They would have to come and be relicensed.

         22    The section on the law currently states that upon

         23  the approval of an application the Commissioner

         24  shall issue a license to the applicant for a license

         25  and a permit and plate to the applicant for a
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          2  vehicle or push cart permit.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON REED: You have to wrap

          4  up.

          5                 MS. BERMUDEZ: Okay, so basically this

          6  provision is inconsistent with the current cap of

          7  3,000 limit on the carts.  If this is supposed to

          8  license everyone who is in the street, the cap

          9  should be lifted at least for the number of food

         10  vending licenses that are available today.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Thank you.

         12                 MS. BURNBAUM: My name is Michele

         13  Burnbaum and I represent the East 85th, East 86th

         14  Street, Lex Park, Madison Block Association and I'm

         15  a Vice President of the East 86th Street Resident

         16  Merchants Association --

         17                 CHAIRPERSON REED: We've met before as

         18  well, haven't we?

         19                 MS. BURNBAUM: -- And we've met before

         20  and you and I, you were very gracious to have met

         21  with me on a prior occasion.  I look forward to

         22  meeting with you again because this is a major issue

         23  for us.  What I'd like to address today is maybe a

         24  possible solution, that's what you've asked for, for

         25  enforcement of the current vendor laws and any
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          2  vendor laws that might come out of this legislation.

          3                 I would like to propose a separate

          4  vendor force, enforcement force be organized for

          5  this City.  At the moment, yes it is being handled

          6  primarily by the precincts.  I, we have met

          7  frequently with the 19th Precinct.  I have no doubt

          8  that they're doing their best and that they're doing

          9  their job.  However, the report how many arrests or

         10  how many instances came before the court is

         11  irrelevant because we don't know how many

         12  infractions there were so we can't be impressed by

         13  that number.

         14                 They will readily admit that they are

         15  understaffed and undermanned to solve this problem.

         16  I know that if I park my car at a parking meter and

         17  I don't put coins in, I know, with certainty, that I

         18  will be ticketed because there are, there are, there

         19  is an enormous vendor force out there that is

         20  working to that end.

         21                 In addition, with the licensing that

         22  you offer in this bill, I would like to see along

         23  with a license being issued to an individual member,

         24  individual vendor, that along with that he get a

         25  standardized piece of street furniture, an
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          2  appropriate sized table.  He gets unified signage so

          3  that the patron of the vendor can identify a legal

          4  vendor versus an illegal vendor and I will even go

          5  as far as to say that it's not without merit that a

          6  person who is patronizing a knowingly, someone that

          7  they know is an illegal vendor, be penalized as

          8  well.

          9                 That happens with a lot of, there are

         10  a lot of things being sold and if you know that

         11  you're buying something illegal or you're buying

         12  from someone who is operating at an illegal fashion,

         13  you're liable for that and there many things on the

         14  books that speak to that so I don't think that

         15  that's a far reach for this kind of legislation.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON REED: You need to wrap

         17  up, ma'am.

         18                 MS. BURNBAUM: Okay.  I have in my

         19  hand some photographs of vending that's happening

         20  around the City that I would be very pleased to

         21  leave with you to show you they are both legal and

         22  illegal but yet those infractions are being, are not

         23  being attended to and lastly, I would like to say

         24  that I would like, that this legislation seems to be

         25  written with the intent of trying to find a way to
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          2  bring more street activity into this City, to try to

          3  alleviate the vendor problem or the vendor issue

          4  because there are people who want to be vendors.

          5  That is not the responsibility of the City.  The

          6  responsibility of the City, the vendor population is

          7  a very small segment of our eight million population

          8  and we have to address it in a way to say what is to

          9  the benefit of the citizens of the City as opposed

         10  to one small segment of the population?  I hope you

         11   --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Thank you.

         13                 MS. BURNBAUM: -- Will take all that

         14  into consideration.  I thank you very much for

         15  allowing me to speak.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Thank you.  I think

         17  both of the points that you made as relates to

         18  traffic enforcement agents which there seem to be

         19  plenty of those around.  Why they're not given

         20  enforcement power over the vending, I don't

         21  understand.  I think it might solve the problem

         22  there everywhere.

         23                 MS. BURNBAUM: And be revenue

         24  generating as well.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON REED: And be revenue --
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          2  well, it's supposed to be revenue neutral but I

          3  understand what you're saying and I also think that

          4  there was a point that you made, what was the other

          5  point?  Oh, about ticketing people who buy, clearly,

          6  illegal merchandise.  You're absolutely right.  They

          7  should be given a fine as well, in my opinion.

          8                 MS. BURNBAUM: Yes and to do that --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Okay, okay, let's

         10  not --

         11                 MS. BURNBAUM: I just want to say we

         12  need an enforcement force because we don't have the

         13  manpower at the moment.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON REED: -- I understand.

         15  Thank you.  Yes, sir.

         16                 MR. MC CARTHY: My name is Daniel

         17  McCarthy.  I'm a member of the Disabled Veteran

         18  Vendors Advisory Committee and the disabled veterans

         19  have been struggling with the City for a lot of

         20  years for the gains that we've finally achieved and

         21  what we got was protection from the State and the

         22  protection that we sought from the State was really

         23  to protect us from the City because the City wasn't

         24  allowing us to work on the streets of Manhattan.  So

         25  what happened was the State came along and not --
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON REED: You're spinning

          3  your time here now.  We know the law, okay?

          4                 MR. MC CARTHY: -- What I'm basically

          5  trying to say is we've fought for a long time to get

          6  to what we have and that this legislation, not only

          7  neutralizes any advantages that the State might have

          8  given us, remedies to allow us to work on the

          9  streets of New York --

         10                 CHAIRPERSON REED: How does it do

         11  that?

         12                 MR. MC CARTHY: -- It neutralizes, how

         13  does it neutralize us?  Well, outside of Midtown,

         14  we're allowed to work two per block face.  That's

         15  outside of the midtown core.  This legislation will

         16  basically restrict disabled veterans to one per

         17  block face now.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Okay.  Points well

         19  taken.

         20                 MR. MC CARTHY: Okay, now, in addition

         21  to that the City's version of the law will

         22  discriminate against the disabled veterans because

         23  not only will we not be able to have equal status

         24  with the rest of the vendor community but State law

         25  would forbid us to work certain streets that are
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          2  already restricted in Midtown.  I know that when we

          3  talked --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON REED: -- Just disagree

          5  with you about that.

          6                 MR. MC CARTHY: Well, I'm forbidden to

          7  work 5th Avenue from the State.  The State forbids

          8  me from working 5th Avenue.  If the City decides

          9  that they want to allow me to work 5th Avenue, I

         10  have to break State law in order to obey City law.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON REED: No, you don't, sir.

         12    We just disagree with you about that legality but

         13  you'd like work 5th Avenue, wouldn't you?

         14                 MR. MC CARTHY: No.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON REED: You don't want to

         16  be on 5th Avenue?

         17                 MR. MC CARTHY: No.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Okay.

         19                 MR. MC CARTHY: I'm fine with the way

         20  it is now. What I'd like to have and you know,

         21  actually, whether this law is defeated or not, is

         22  we'd like to use this as a platform to be able to go

         23  back to the State and see if the City would be

         24  willing to allow all the disabled veterans into

         25  Midtown now since it appears that there's so much
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          2  room in Midtown --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON REED: That's what this

          4  law is trying to do is to allow all of you into

          5  Midtown to the extent that we open up streets that

          6  are restricted.  You guys would get the first crack

          7  at being in Midtown.  That is -- why I don't

          8  understand why you're so opposed.

          9                 MR. MC CARTHY: Well, I'll explain it

         10  to you.  Number 2,000 thug is going to come and he's

         11  going to sit on number one disabled veteran spot.

         12  Disabled veteran, you know, disabled veteran.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON REED: And this thug is

         14  not a disabled veteran?

         15                 MR. MC CARTHY: No, no.  I'm talking

         16  about number 2,000, whoever this number is that's

         17  going to come in.  He will legally be able to come

         18  into Midtown.  He's forbidden to do so now.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Now, he's not going

         20  to be legal but --

         21                 MR. MC CARTHY: He'll sit on the spot.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON REED: -- If you have a

         23  priority system, you'll be able to throw him out.

         24                 MR. MC CARTHY: I'll explain the chain

         25  of events, if you'll allow me to speak.  The chain
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          2  of events and this is in my creation but Robert

          3  Lederman actually had, this is a great analogy. The

          4  analogy is that if you have a priority system for

          5  cars and parking spots, that's exactly what would

          6  happen.  Number 1 car will come in and move out

          7  number 2, number 2 car will then get up move around

          8  and go to number 3 and the police will be spending,

          9  you know, 24 hours a day.  By the time they get to

         10  number 2,000 and finally get him situated, it's

         11  going to start all over again. It'll never work.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON REED: So you want to

         13  leave it just like it is?

         14                 MR. MC CARTHY: Until something better

         15  comes along and I understand that you want to hear

         16  solutions from us but it's my belief that that's why

         17  this Committee was created.  The Consumer Affairs

         18  Committee is supposed to create the ideas and

         19  implement them.  It's not, it shouldn't be the

         20  burden of the people to be able to come up with

         21  these ideas.  The burden should be on the Committee

         22  itself.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON REED: You might see it as

         24  a burden and others might see it as an opportunity.

         25                 MR. MC CARTHY: Well, you know,
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          2  everybody's willing to come up with this but I've

          3  seen you chastise person after person because we

          4  didn't have the solutions.  That's not our job.  The

          5  solutions should come from the Committee itself.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Well, we've made

          7  recommendations. You told me you don't like them and

          8  you tell me why you don't like them and I'm asking

          9  you to tell me what else we should put in place.

         10  Now, you're suggesting that that's not you're

         11  responsibility but a lot of people have testified

         12  and come forward with very positive ideas.  We're

         13  going to try to wrap those into, perhaps, the

         14  newest, the next version of the bill, sort of, take

         15  into consideration what people think and you'll have

         16  an opportunity to tell us what you think about that.

         17                 MR. MC CARTHY: Well, this was two

         18  years ago you started this stuff because --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON REED: I've heard, I've

         20  been hearing from your small group for two years.

         21                 MR. MC CARTHY: -- We've never

         22  officially been -- no, no, not from us, we're

         23  sanctioned by the Department of Labor. We've never

         24  been invited to a meeting.  I was invited by another

         25  vendor.  We demanded a meeting with you at one time
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          2  and you were gracious enough to oblige us with that

          3  but we've never been invited to a meeting and asked

          4  our opinions about any part of this legislation.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON REED: I know that you,

          6  personally, have been in my office three times.

          7                 MR. MC CARTHY: I was invited by a

          8  food vendor.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON REED: You've been in my

         10  office three times.

         11                 MR. MC CARTHY: Yes.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Okay.  I want to

         13  thank everybody that's come and we will certainly

         14  look forward to hearing from you in the future.

         15  Thank you.  This hearing is adjourned.

         16

         17  Written Testimony of:

         18  Eugene B. Nathanson, Attorney at Law representing

         19  Soho International Artists' Cooperative Union

         20  Council Member Philip Reed

         21  Chair, Consumer Affairs Committee

         22  250 Broadway

         23  New York, NY

         24  Dear Council Member Reed:

         25                 I write on behalf of my clients, the
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          2  Soho International Artists' Cooperative Union, to

          3  propose that street artist vending zones be included

          4  in any new regulations of street vending in New York

          5  City.  These artist zones would be areas limited to

          6  First Amendment vendors, as defined in Intro 621,

          7  section 20- 452(c), selling their own original work.

          8                 A very similar program has operated

          9  successfully and without challenge in San Francisco

         10  for over twenty- five years.  A copy of the

         11  regulations governing that plan is attached.  Under

         12  the San Francisco Street Artist Ordinance, artists

         13  and craftspeople are certified as street artists by

         14  an Advisory Committee of Street Artists and Crafts

         15  Examiners, based on an examination of the artist's

         16  work and, if needed, workspace, solely to verify

         17  that the art of craft item for which the applicant

         18  seeks certification is his or her own creation.

         19  Upon certification, the artists is eligible to sell

         20  his or her work in specified areas.  No other person

         21  can vend in those areas.  The artist zones are

         22  designated by the San Francisco Board of

         23  Supervisors.  New York need not duplicate the San

         24  Francisco, we present it as an example of an

         25  original- artist- only zone to show that such a zone
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          2  can be successful.  A similar zone has been created

          3  in Santa Fe, although the Santa Fe zone is subject

          4  to minimal regulation.

          5                 I have spoke with the attorney in the

          6  San Francisco municipal attorney's office who works

          7  directly with the agency supervising it's Street

          8  Artists program.  She has told me that the program

          9  has not been challenged, although at least one

         10  artist brought a challenge to restrictions on

         11  vending outside the artist zones; that artist vended

         12  without using any street furniture and the City

         13  agreed that he should be as unrestricted as a

         14  pamphleteer or leafleteer.  More to the point, the

         15  Second Circuit, when it rejected New York's vending

         16  regulation in Bery v. City of New York, 97 F.3d 689,

         17  698 at n.8 (2d Cir. 1996), suggested that "[t]he

         18  system employed by San Francisco might provide a

         19  model...."

         20                 Municipalities' vending regulations

         21  can be successfully challenged when vending of

         22  certain forms of First Amendment speech is

         23  restricted while other vending is permitting. This

         24  occurred in New Orleans, which sought to limit an

         25  artists' zone to paintings, drawings or sketches.
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          2  The plan fell afoul of the First Amendment for

          3  excluding photographs, which were also protected

          4  speech.  Trebert v. City of New Orleans, 2005 U.S.

          5  Dis. LEXIS 1560 (E.D. La. Feb. 2 2005).  A similar

          6  problem with New York's Code led to the Bery

          7  decision, invalidating New York's distinction

          8  between written and visual First Amendment activity.

          9                 In both cases the distinction was not

         10  narrowly tailored to serve a significant government

         11  interest.  In New York, the purpose of avoiding

         12  congestions on the sidewalks was not served by

         13  restricting some First Amendment vendors; in New

         14  Orleans the purpose of preserving the ambience was

         15  not served by allowing original paintings but not

         16  original photographs.  By contrast, the public

         17  purpose of promoting artists in New York and

         18  promoting New York as an art- creation capital does

         19  support the distinction between artists selling

         20  their own work and vendors selling the work of

         21  others.

         22                 Vending in certain areas is

         23  appropriately limited to original artists, not to

         24  fight congestion, but for it's own sake, to create

         25  zones where visitors and residents can see and
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          2  purchase original art and meet and speak with the

          3  artists.  My clients vend their original works on

          4  West Broadway, in Soho, and limiting this space to

          5  original artists selling their own work would

          6  celebrate the artistic impulse that first turned

          7  Soho into an arts capital. Limiting vending to

          8  artists selling their own work in areas like Fifth

          9  Avenue near Museum Mile, or other art- related

         10  locations, would promote New York's native artists

         11  and allow those visiting those venues to see and

         12  appreciate the creation of works of art is a living

         13  process engaged in by real people.

         14                 Creating artist vending zones will

         15  meet First Amendment requirements because it is

         16  content- neutral, narrowly tailored to serve a

         17  significant governmental interest, and leaves open

         18  ample alternative channels for communication. See,

         19  Bery, 97 F.3d at 696- 67.  It is content- neutral

         20  because any First Amendment vendor (as defined in

         21  Intro 621, section 20- 452(c)) selling his or her

         22  own work may participate in the program.  The

         23  program need not be limited to the visual arts, and

         24  poets or novelists should also be allowed to vend

         25  their own work.  The only requirement is that the
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          2  work be original and sold by the original producer;

          3  the content is irrelevant.

          4                 The plan is narrowly tailored to meet

          5  a significant government interest.  A legislative

          6  purpose supporting this sort of proposal has been

          7  spelled out by Santa Fe, in it's licensing plan

          8  substantially limiting it's Plaza to artists and

          9  artisans: "The Plaza and Plaza Park is the heart of

         10  the city.  It's usage should be creative, evolving

         11  and non- institutionalized..." (Quoted in Kernberg,

         12  The Right to Bear Art; The Impact of Municipal Anti

         13  Peddling Ordinance on the First Amendment Rights of

         14  Artists, 18 COLUM- VLA J..L. & ARTS 155, 185

         15  (1993)).  This article, written by the San Francisco

         16  City Attorney with whom I spoke, provides some

         17  suggestions for a model street artist's ordinance,

         18  including a statement of intent which is also an

         19  advocacy statement for street artists zones:

         20                 The City of X declares that street

         21  artists are a vital part of the city's culture and

         22  economy.  In addition, because this city recognizes

         23  art work as a protected form of expression under the

         24  First Amendment, this law is intended to facilitate

         25  artists' ability to display, sell and share their
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          2  art work in a public forum.

          3                 The governmental purpose of promoting

          4  original artists is completely legitimate, and

          5  allowing artists special zones to sell their own

          6  work, without distinguishing among different types

          7  of original First Amendment speech, does not

          8  substantially burden more speech than necessary.

          9                 Artist vending zones leave ample room

         10  for other channels for protected communication.

         11  Only limited zones are created, in areas deemed

         12  appropriate for promoting original art work, and

         13  this leaves open virtually the entire City for First

         14  Amendment vending under the general vending

         15  regulations.  The creation of street- artist zones

         16  will have minimal effect on the communication of

         17  other speakers.  It will promote the arts and

         18  encourage New York artists and will improve the

         19  street environment.  We urge that this plan be

         20  adopted.

         21  Very truly yours,

         22  Eugene B. Nathanson

         23

         24  Written testimony of:

         25  Donald M. Halperin
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          2  Kantor, Davidoff, Wolfe, Mandelker & Kass, P.C.

          3                 Chairman Reed and Members of the

          4  Committee, my name is Donald Halperin and I am here

          5  today testifying on behalf of the New York

          6  Metropolitan Retail Association known as NYMRA, an

          7  organization consisting primarily of national chain

          8  retailers operating in the City of New York.

          9                 This proposed legislation

         10  demonstrates an obvious amount of hard work and deep

         11  thought, but NYMRA must unfortunately oppose it.

         12  While there are some positive provisions in the

         13  bill, the motivation for our opposition is the

         14  significant expansion in the number of street

         15  vendors that it authorizes, from 853 to 2,000

         16  general vending licenses, combined with no cap on

         17  disabled veteran vendors, and no limit on the number

         18  of first amendment vendors, and the expansion of the

         19  number of streets upon which vendors may legally

         20  operate.

         21                 This expansion of the number of

         22  vendors and permissible streets combined with the

         23  new complexities for enforcement that are contained

         24  within the bill, we believe, would further

         25  overburden an already overstretched police
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          2  department attempting to enforce the existing street

          3  vending laws.  The net affect would be even more

          4  crowded streets combined with the proliferation of

          5  the sale of counterfeit goods.

          6                 A walk down many streets in Manhattan

          7  today, especially during rush hour, is more like

          8  negotiating an obstacle course than strolling down a

          9  sidewalk.  It is not simply a problem of walking

         10  around tables, but of getting past the crowds that

         11  form around many of these tables at a time when it

         12  is difficult to walk down a sidewalk where there are

         13  no obstacles.  This congestion creates dangerous

         14  safety situations causing people to cross streets

         15  outside the pedestrian lanes and often walking in

         16  the streets rather than on the sidewalk.  It also

         17  may discourage shoppers from patronizing retail

         18  stores.

         19                 While street vending is not a new

         20  phenomena and does have a certain nostalgic appeal

         21  to some people, the reality today is that it creates

         22  significant problems for legally operating

         23  businesses who pay their taxes, maintain their

         24  sidewalks and otherwise comply with the law as well

         25  as maintain buildings which serve to preserve our
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          2  city's ambiance.

          3                 Unfortunately, many street vendors

          4  are also engaged in the sale of counterfeit or

          5   "knock- off" merchandise, which competes with the

          6  authentic merchandise being sold in the legitimate

          7  store- based retailers.  By expanding the number of

          8  vendors on the street and the potential for outlets

          9  for these goods, a difficult enforcement situation

         10  is being worsened, hurting not only the retailers

         11  but manufacturers of the legitimate product. For the

         12  above reasons, NYMRA opposes Int. No. 621.

         13  Submitted by: Donald M. Halperin

         14  Kantor, Davidoff, Wolfe, Mandelker & Kass, P.C.

         15  51 East 42nd Street, Floor 17, New York, New York

         16  10017

         17  Ph: 212- 682- 8383

         18

         19  Written testimony of:

         20  Nikki Henkin

         21  100- 299 East 77th Street Block Association

         22  Testimony for City Council Committee on Consumer

         23  Affairs

         24  Submitted by Nikki Henkin

         25  Hon. Philip Reed, Chair
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          2  Marcel Van Ooyen, Legislative Director

          3  Wednesday, May 4, 2005

          4  Council Chambers, City Hall

          5  RE: Intro Bill No. 621/2005- Street Vendors

          6  ZERO VISIBILITY OF ALL STREET/SIDEWALK VENDORS

          7  NECESSARY ON EAST 77th STREET BETWEEN PARK AND THIRD

          8  AVENUES FOR PUBLIC SAFETY REASONS

          9                 As a transportation hub for the mid

         10  seventies on the Upper East Side, East 77th Street

         11  is also the recipient of thousands of transient

         12  people, tourists and entire families drawn to local

         13  facilities such as the Lenox Hill Hospital, local

         14  schools, museums, Central Park and colleges as

         15  destination points.

         16                 There are 28 schools with well over

         17  10,000 students; Lenox Hill Hospital services in

         18  excess of 210,000 out- patients every year;

         19  emergency vehicles require constant access to the

         20  hospital's emergency room located on East 77th

         21  Street; approximately eight million people use the

         22  East 77th Street number 6 line each year; 77th

         23  Street and Lexington Avenue comprised of extremely

         24  narrow sidewalks which are made even narrower by the

         25  existing subway grates, tree pits, stoops and
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          2  signage displayed by local merchants.  All of these

          3  sidewalk obstructions limit the useable sidewalk

          4  surface to less than four feet and in some cases as

          5  little as one foot.

          6                 The existence of vendors on these

          7  same sidewalks with their large displays, racks and

          8  storage of merchandise reduce the limited sidewalk

          9  space available for the heavily congested pedestrian

         10  traffic which results from the hundreds of thousands

         11  of people that traverse the sidewalks on a daily

         12  basis to a totally unacceptable level.  This results

         13  in students, hospital patients, the elderly and

         14  other pedestrians being forced to navigate these

         15  heavily congested sidewalks by spilling over into

         16  the adjacent streets and often dangerous subway

         17  grates.  Combined with the heavy emergency vehicular

         18  traffic in the area, the result is potentially

         19  catastrophic and renders our sidewalks of our

         20  neighborhood unsafe.

         21                 Our narrow sidewalks do not lend

         22  themselves to a bustling open air marketplace.

         23  Sidewalk vendor displays encourage petty crimes such

         24  as pickpockets, purse- snatchers, litter and

         25  diminished Quality of Life.  These mostly
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          2  unregulated displays have become a serious threat to

          3  public health and safety because of congestion both

          4  on the sidewalks as well as on the street.

          5                 We fought long and hard to get the

          6  two blocks of East 77th Street between Park and

          7  Third Avenues restricted to all vendors (food and

          8  general).  All of Lexington Avenue is supposed to be

          9  restricted and yet we see vendors doing business

         10  directly on top of the subway grates, which should

         11  be outlawed everywhere in New York City.

         12                 Your new proposal is very

         13  disappointing in many respects.  To begin with, you

         14  take no notice of the fact that our only subway line

         15  on the East Side runs along Lexington Avenue.

         16  Because of 9/11, all vendors should be prohibited

         17  within 200 feet of ALL subway entrances and exits to

         18  provide for emergency egress in the event of an

         19  emergency at every subway.  There should be no

         20  street furniture including newspaper boxes near any

         21  of the subway exits for the same reason.  Logic

         22  dictates this should be a citywide regulation.

         23  Vendors should be prohibited from setting up near

         24  all fire hydrants and forbidden to do business from

         25  the backs of trucks and vans.  You should also set a

                                                            218

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2  limit on the number of all vendors in all of the

          3  boroughs- not just Manhattan.

          4                 We live in a different climate since

          5  9/11.  We are still at an "Orange Alert" and that

          6  should have some bearing on any regulations you

          7  consider for all of New York City.

          8                 You make a very small reference to

          9  finger printing for the purposes of securing a

         10  license for street vendors.  We feel that all

         11  people, first amendment, food and general vendors

         12  should be finger printed, have criminal background

         13  checks, immigration checks and then supplied with a

         14  hologram identification that cannot be replicated or

         15  the photo changed in any way.  We have personally

         16  witnessed our local police remove layer after layer

         17  of photos on the current identification cards.  We

         18  also feel that anyone handling food either as a

         19  vendor or in restaurants should be required to pass

         20  a complete physical examination making certain they

         21  do not have any form of Hepatitis or TB.

         22                 Since Identity Theft is a major

         23  crime, all street vendor applicants should have

         24  their Social Security numbers checked to make sure

         25  that they are not carrying stolen or fabricated
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          2  documents.

          3                 If you want to make it possible for

          4  people to work as vendors and dictate how many can

          5  be on every City block, then you must also insist

          6  they are legally entitled to work.

          7                 Years ago we suggested that the City

          8  supply attractive food carts that would enable food

          9  to be prepared at the correct temperatures to

         10  prevent health problems.  In this way the City could

         11  make additional money selling or leasing the

         12  attractive uniform carts and improve the looks of

         13  the food carts.  And the public would be guaranteed

         14  that the hot dog they buy has been cooked at the

         15  proper temperature.  We understand the vendors will

         16  not like most of these suggestions, but they must

         17  understand that we have a right to walk unimpeded on

         18  our sidewalks and are entitled to know that the

         19  person making and serving us food is healthy, a

         20  legal resident and following all regulations.

         21                 Another area you have chosen to

         22  ignore is knock- off merchandise.  If you persist in

         23  drafting new regulations, why haven't you included a

         24  total ban on all fake merchandise?

         25                 Vendors create an impenetrable
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          2  barrier to pedestrian and vehicular traffic.  Their

          3  cumbersome displays create physical hazards and

          4  public chaos and remain a public nuisance.  Your

          5  bill mentions increasing the numbers of licenses

          6  given out from 853 to 2,000.  Does that mean you

          7  would allow 400 vendors in each of the five boroughs

          8  that make up NYC?  The Department of Consumer

          9  Affairs has been unable to enforce the existing

         10  vendors and our police department's time is better

         11  spent looking for and apprehending terrorists and

         12  other criminals.

         13                 We want to keep the existing vendor

         14  prohibition on East 77th Street and strongly urge

         15  you to look at your legislation with a more open

         16  approach to the real world we all live in today.

         17  While we appreciate that many of the vendors are

         18  desirous of employment, we hope they will listen to

         19  our suggestions as they relate to everyone living

         20  and working in New York City.

         21                 As far back as 1906 peddlers and

         22  street vendors were a problem the City attempted to

         23  deal with by limiting only four stands to any given

         24  block.  (See attached documentation.) Here you are

         25  99 years later with a much larger population, more
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          2  cars and vehicles offering 6 vendor stands per

          3  block.  Have the existing sidewalks been widened

          4  without our knowledge?  During the Depression era,

          5  the WPA advocated people selling apples.  Stores

          6  such as Odd Lot sprang up from former street

          7  peddlers and are successful businesses.  It is time

          8  to do something positive and constructive for

          9  everyone, vendors, residents and merchants alike.

         10                 Thank you for your time and

         11  indulgence and we sincerely hope you will keep our

         12  street prohibition of vendors on East 77th Street

         13  and listen to our suggestions as they relate to

         14  safety citywide, particularly around every subway

         15  stop throughout all of New York City.

         16  Submitted by Nikki Henkin, May 4, 2005

         17

         18  Written testimony of: Christine Donovan

         19  Testimony City Council Committee on Consumer Affairs

         20  Re: Intro 621

         21  Honorable Chairman Philip Reed, Members of the

         22  Committee on Consumer Affairs, Council Members

         23  Barron, Liu and Martinez.

         24                 Thank you for holding this hearing on

         25  Street Vendors.
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          2                 I support Intro. 621 to create a

          3  uniform code of regulation, operation and

          4  maintenance of Street Vendors.

          5                 Our streets are challenged by vans

          6  and double- parked trucks delivering goods to

          7  vendors.  And, at the end of each day, clogged by

          8  the same trucks and vans trying to vacate the same

          9  spaces.

         10                 Our sidewalks and intersections are

         11  challenged.  So are pedestrians.  By newsboxes

         12  illegally placed in bus stops, next to fire

         13  hydrants, over subway grates, manholes, crosswalks,

         14  etc. I have testified numerous times and surveyed

         15  many more times and reported the infractions of

         16  Local Law 23.  Also, bicycles violating Local Law

         17  116/136.  I hope Intro 621 is enacted and more

         18  rigorously enforced than the above.

         19                 Street Vendors add to the challenge

         20  and narrow sidewalk pedestrian space, often already

         21  crowded with elderly persons with aides and

         22  precarious on uneven sidewalks, infants and young

         23  children in strollers wheeled by nannies, often side

         24  by side. Stores with open trap doors add to the

         25  challenge.  Cafes that have sidewalk dining.  There
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          2  is no room to walk.

          3                 In addition to major congestion

          4  issues, I have questions about sanitation, legality

          5  of goods and license fees and taxes paid:

          6                 Example:

          7                 Trash- boxes left piled at an

          8  intersection, food debris discarded.

          9                 Food and non- food products- origin

         10  of goods, handling of goods, disease control, safety

         11  measures required by vendors.

         12                 I support major monitoring of

         13  licenses, fees and taxes on sales proposed in Intro

         14  621.  Also, strict location allocations.

         15                 Thank you for your consideration of

         16  my comments. And, for taking on the challenge of

         17  regulating Street Vendors.

         18  Sincerely,

         19  Christine Donovan

         20  229 East 79 Street

         21  New York, NY 10021

         22

         23  Written testimony of: Kit Hodge

         24  Campaigns Director for Transportation Alternatives,

         25  New York City's Advocates for Walking, Bicycling and
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          2  Sensible Transportation

          3                 Good morning.  My name is Kit Hodge,

          4  and I am the Campaigns Director for Transportation

          5  Alternatives, New York City's advocates for walking,

          6  bicycling and sensible transportation. Thank you for

          7  the opportunity to speak today.

          8                 I am here today to talk about using

          9  vendor regulations to improve walking conditions,

         10  retail activity and overall safety and quality of

         11  life in New York City.

         12                 As we all know, the proliferation of

         13  street vendors on sidewalks in crowded areas of our

         14  city is a problem.  Despite a number of efforts, we

         15  as a city have yet to find the right balance of

         16  space allocation on our streets and sidewalks.

         17  Though Introduction 621 appears to be a well

         18  intentioned attempt to improve the situation,

         19  Transportation Alternatives cannot support the bill

         20  in its current form.

         21                 Vendors are attracted to foot traffic

         22  because pedestrians in New York City are walking

         23  dollars.  Ground floor retail businesses, from

         24  bodegas to Starbucks, gravitate toward areas with

         25  high levels of foot traffic because they know that
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          2  they will make the most money there from the flow of

          3  walk in traffic. Not surprisingly, vendors operate

          4  on the same principle.  The presence of local retail

          5  stores and vendors are usually a sign of a healthy,

          6  thriving street.  New York City is a walking city,

          7  and pedestrians are the lifeblood of our thriving

          8  shopping districts and the eyes on the street that

          9  help keep our neighborhoods safe. Vendors, many of

         10  whom are recent immigrants, are vital parts of our

         11  thriving streets and should be treated with dignity

         12  and respect.

         13                 Unfortunately, our current solution

         14  of making pedestrians and vendors compete for space

         15  on our inadequate sidewalks has only led to conflict

         16  and retail business drain.  On major streets all

         17  over the city, overcrowded sidewalks reduce walking

         18  to a miserable stop- and- go shuffle.  Along with

         19  personal discomfort, pedestrian traffic causes

         20  travel delays and forces people into the street,

         21  leading to more conflicts with cars, injury and even

         22  death.  Congested sidewalks also punish tax- paying

         23  businesses; pedestrians are less likely to stop into

         24  a store if they have to push through a crowd of

         25  people to get there. Obviously, the problem warrants
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          2  serious attention, especially when you consider that

          3  upwards of fifteen to twenty thousand pedestrians

          4  per hour travel along on some midtown streets, and

          5  that number is only expected to increase.

          6                 While Introduction 621's purported

          7  goal of easing sidewalk congestion is a good one,

          8  the bill does nothing to address the real problem.

          9  Instead of making pedestrians compete with vendors,

         10  we should increase the space for this good traffic

         11  by decreasing the space for the traffic that clogs

         12  up our streets. Drivers, many of whom are cutting

         13  through the area, are allocated far more space, on

         14  average three to six times more, than pedestrians.

         15  Almost all of these drivers are simply using the

         16  street to get elsewhere, including outside of the

         17  city, often evading routes that require them to pay

         18  their fair share for their passage.

         19                 Rather than passing Introduction 621,

         20  the Council should draft and pass an alternative

         21  bill enforces a "pedestrian first" street management

         22  policy that will simultaneously improve pedestrian

         23  conditions, vendor opportunity, retail activity and

         24  quality of life on our thriving streets.

         25                 In practice, such a policy would
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          2  entail but not be limited to:

          3                 Minimum sidewalk widths for given

          4  volume of pedestrians based on pedestrian "level of

          5  service: Methodology.

          6                 Pedestrian- only hours on select

          7  commercial streets; vehicle access would be

          8  permitted in the morning or overnight.

          9                 A rational parking policy that would

         10  encourage high parking turnover, less through

         11  traffic.  A sensible parking policy would allow the

         12  city to reclaim street space for temporary or

         13  permanent use by vendors.  For example, instituting

         14  angled parking (back- in only) would preserve

         15  current volumes of parking spaces while also freeing

         16  up space for vending on the street; designated

         17  vendor spaces would be protected by bollards.

         18

         19  Written testimony of: Renee Giordano

         20  Testimony for NYC Council Consumer Affairs Committee

         21  Hearing RE Intro 621

         22  May 4th, 2005  Chair: Councilman Phil Reed

         23                 I would like to thank Councilman Phil

         24  Reed and the entire committee for allowing me to

         25  testify today on the issue of Intro 621.  I am Renee
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          2  Giordano, I am Executive Director of the Sunset Park

          3  Business Improvement District, but more importantly,

          4  I have been a resident of Sunset Park for over 30

          5  years.  I have raised five children here and own my

          6  own home.  My husband and I were once small business

          7  owners on Fifth Avenue, running a flower shop

          8  between 44th and 45th Streets, and my husband had a

          9  general vendor license for a while in 1976, when he

         10  was laid off from his job.  My parents and my entire

         11  family are immigrants, which makes me 1st generation

         12  American, as is my husband.

         13                 I think we all agree that present

         14  regulations regarding vending are cumbersome and

         15  unenforceable.  The Council should be commended for

         16  trying to take on this issue, which through time has

         17  seemed unapproachable.  But my husband always says

         18  that if you are going to accept the responsibility

         19  to attempt to fix something, you shouldn't leave it

         20  in a worse state than when you started.  Intro 621

         21  does not "fix" the current regulations; it only

         22  replaces them with an even more burdensome and less

         23  enforceable set of laws.

         24                 The commercial strip in my community

         25  is comprised of over 570 mostly small Mom & Pop
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          2  shops, who have stayed here through hard economic

          3  times.  About 90 percent of these merchants are

          4  immigrants, who work long hours to make ends meet.

          5  Some have been located in the same storefront for 20

          6  or 30 years.  They have been joined through the

          7  years by successive waves of newer immigrants, who

          8  have helped to continue to breathe life into our

          9  avenue.  Those of us who value the immigrant

         10  experience know that immigration brings new vitality

         11  to economies that could grow old and stagnate. Our

         12  merchants are often involved in community events and

         13  support projects in our local schools, churches and

         14  CBOs.  They are not just business owners, they are

         15  our friends.

         16                 Intro 621 would create a situation in

         17  which many of these businesses could not survive.

         18  Opening up all the streets to vending, including

         19  residential blocks, is unfair to the hardworking

         20  small store owner, as well as the resident or

         21  homeowner who hadn't plan on living on a commercial

         22  strip.

         23                 Both the business and residential

         24  communities, together with our elected officials,

         25  have worked diligently over the years to enhance the
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          2  economic base and create a better quality of life

          3  for the neighborhood.  Regulations and bills such as

          4  Intro 621 send a bad message to these hardworking

          5  people.  During your last hearing, one of our

          6  dedicated members had some very harsh words to say.

          7  This was the reaction of a frustrated business

          8  owner, who for years has asked for help from the

          9  City and the City Council and is now faced with

         10  Intro 621.  His frustration lies in the fact that

         11  while he and his fellow merchants diligently collect

         12  sales tax for the city and state, pay insurance to

         13  protect consumers and employees, fulfill the

         14  mandates of the city health codes, pay real estate

         15  tax or rent, pay salaries to workers, pay income

         16  tax, sweep sidewalks yet get burdened with

         17  sanitation violations.  These business owners would

         18  now find themselves in competition with someone who

         19  can easily avoid all these consumer protections.

         20  Our small business owners are not against

         21  immigrants, but against unfair competition.  This

         22  bill takes an illegal act and legalizes it, stomping

         23  on fundamental principles of business, in effect

         24  punishing people who played by the rules.

         25                 Small store owners on a commercial
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          2  strip provide the backbone of a community.  They

          3  need protection and so does the resident who hasn't

          4  abandoned the neighborhood or the local business,

          5  but has set down roots to make a home for his/her

          6  family, thereby keeping New York City strong.

          7                 Therefore as a resident and concerned

          8  citizen of New York City, I ask the committee to

          9  drop Intro 621.  This bill is fundamentally flawed

         10  and cannot be made whole through tweaking or fine-

         11  tuning.  We must begin the process anew and this

         12  time include from the very beginning vendors,

         13  merchants, residents and all other parties who will

         14  be impacted.

         15  Respectfully submitted by:

         16  Renee Giordano

         17  476 51st Street

         18  Brooklyn, NY 11220

         19  718- 439- 7767

         20

         21  Written testimony of: Therese Creidy

         22  Phil Reed

         23  Chair Consumer Affairs Committee

         24  City Council of New York

         25  250 Broadway
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          2  New York, NY 10007

          3  Re: Int. 621

          4  Dear Council Member Reed:

          5                 My husband and I opened our men's

          6  clothing store in 1962 in the Sunset Park section of

          7  Brooklyn.  I spoke no English and we had little

          8  money.  We struggled for many years to pay the bills

          9  and put food on the table.  Many times we thought

         10  that we would never make it.  We worked hard and my

         11  family and I continue to work hard to keep the

         12  business going.  We collect sales tax, we pay

         13  property taxes and we pay income tax.  When business

         14  allows us, we employ people from the neighborhood.

         15  We have made an investment in our community and we

         16  are fixtures in this neighborhood.  Vendors make no

         17  commitment to our community, they make no investment

         18  here, and do not offer any opportunity to our

         19  unemployed youth.

         20                 The bill which proposes to amend the

         21  administrative code of the City of New York in

         22  relation to vendors will impact us as a small

         23  business and as a result, impact our community.

         24  What this bill proposes to do is put additional

         25  pressure on the established businesses to compete
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          2  with those who have no overhead expenses, who are

          3  not subject to sanitation rules and do not have to

          4  pay ever- increasing real estate taxes and rents.

          5                 Introductory Bill 621 will also put

          6  additional pressure on the already overworked and

          7  understaffed police department's enforcement

          8  divisions.  For example, under the proposed "first

          9  come" rule, police are going to have a hard time

         10  determining which vendor secured his spot first,

         11  especially on a prized block with high volume

         12  traffic.  Currently, police in our neighborhood are

         13  having a hard time dealing with illegal vendors

         14  because they do not have the necessary resources.

         15  More vendors with difficult to enforce guidelines,

         16  combined with lack of police personnel, is a recipe

         17  for disaster.

         18                 In closing, I respectfully submit

         19  that we continue to feed the entrepreneurial spirit

         20  which made this country great, but that we do so in

         21  a way that encourages investment in the

         22  neighborhoods and nurtures communities.

         23  Sincerely,

         24  Therese Creidy

         25  Voter Taxpayer Proprietor
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          2

          3  Written testimony of: The Santangelo Family

          4  Testimony for NYC Council Consumer Affairs Committee

          5  Hearing Re Intro 621

          6  May 4th, 2005 Chair: Councilman Phil Reed

          7                 I would like to thank Councilman Reed

          8  and the Committee for the chance to testify on this

          9  issue.  My name is Jimmy Santangelo.  My parents own

         10  a small pizza shop called Scotti's Pizza on 5th

         11  Avenue in Sunset Park Brooklyn.  My whole family

         12  works in the shop and we are very involved in the

         13  community. We donate to local organizations and take

         14  part in neighborhood events.  We are a Safe Haven

         15  for children and the elderly through the 72nd

         16  Precinct and the Brooklyn District Attorney's

         17  office.  We received the Mom and Pop award from the

         18  Brooklyn Borough President because of our dedication

         19  to our customers.

         20                 My father came to America 40 years

         21  ago and opened up this pizzeria and we have remained

         22  here for all these years.

         23                 This bill that was just introduced

         24  recommends that all streets in the City should be

         25  opened up to vending.  This could eventually destroy
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          2  my business and other businesses on my avenue. We

          3  have a 3- day restriction on our block now and there

          4  is little enforcement.  Opening all the streets

          5  would ruin our avenue because the police would have

          6  even a harder time to enforce the new rules.

          7                 As a small business owner, I ask you

          8  to please get rid of this bill.  The current laws

          9  already are not being enforced, but this new bill

         10  wouldn't change anything, it would only make it

         11  worse.

         12                 Thank you again and I trust you will

         13  make the right decision.

         14  Respectfully submitted by:

         15  The Santangelo Family

         16  Scott's Pizzeria

         17  5616 5th Avenue

         18  Brooklyn, NY 11220

         19  718- 439- 6993

         20

         21  Written testimony of: Johnny Miniaci

         22  Testimony for NYC Council Consumer Affairs Committee

         23  Hearing Re Intro 621

         24  May 4th, 2005 Chair: Councilman Phil Reed

         25                 I would like to thank Councilman Reed
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          2  and the Committee for the chance to testify on this

          3  issue.  My name is Johnny Miniaci.  I own a small

          4  pizza shop called Johnny's Pizzeria on 5th Avenue in

          5  Sunset Park Brooklyn.  I am very involved in the

          6  community often donating to local organizations and

          7  taking part in neighborhood events.  I have been in

          8  business for 37 years at he same location and

          9  received the Mom and Pop award from the Brooklyn

         10  Borough President because of my dedication to our

         11  customers.

         12                 Over the years, there were some very

         13  hard times when I could hardly make ends meet.  But

         14  I stuck it out, paid my bills, worked hard, and kept

         15  my business running.

         16                 As I understand, the bill that was

         17  just introduced recommends that all streets in the

         18  City should be opened up to street vending.  This

         19  would be a disaster for my business and my

         20  neighborhood.  It would make a situation where new

         21  businesses wouldn't want to open up in vacant

         22  stores.  We have a 3- day restriction on our block

         23  now and there is little enforcement.  If all the

         24  streets were available, even residential blocks, it

         25  would create a nightmare to enforce.
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          2                 I work very hard, sometimes 12 hours

          3  a day, to stay in business and give my customers the

          4  kind of foods and service they deserve.  I have to

          5  ask you as a small business owner, please get rid of

          6  this bill.  I know that the current laws are not

          7  working and are hard to enforce, but this new bill

          8  would only make it worse.

          9                 Thank you again and I trust you will

         10  make the right decision.

         11  Respectfully submitted by:

         12  Johnny Miniaci

         13  Johnny's Pizzeria

         14  5806 5th Avenue

         15  Brooklyn, NY 11220

         16  718- 492- 9735

         17

         18  Written testimony of: Rosendo Campos

         19  Testimony for NYC Council Consumer Affairs Committee

         20  Hearing Re Intro 621

         21  May 4th, 2005 Chair: Councilman Phil Reed

         22                 I would like to thank Councilman Reed

         23  and the Committee for the chance to testify on this

         24  issue.  My name is Rosendo Campos.  I came to this

         25  country from Mexico in 1979 and worked in a
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          2  restaurant, doing any job possible going from

          3  dishwasher to counterman, to grillman to waiter.  I

          4  then went to school at night and started working

          5  days in a flower shop for 12 years.  Eight years, I

          6  finally saved enough to open my own store in Sunset

          7  Park.

          8                 I heard that a bill was just

          9  introduced that recommends that all streets in the

         10  City should be opened up to vending.  This would be

         11  terrible for my business.  Right now there are

         12  restrictions which aren't being enforced.  Opening

         13  all the streets would make it worse.

         14                 I work hard, seven days a week, with

         15  no vacations. My wife works in the store too.  I

         16  have to pay rent and lots of bills for my two

         17  children.  I need your help.  I have to ask you as a

         18  small business owner, to please get rid of this

         19  bill.  The laws we have now already are not being

         20  enforced because it is hard to do so, but this bill

         21  would make it even harder.

         22                 Thank you again and I trust you will

         23  make the right decision.

         24  Respectfully submitted by: Rosendo Campos

         25  Flowers by Mr. C
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          2  5401 5th Avenue

          3  Brooklyn, NY 11220

          4

          5  Written testimony of: Cheryl Reilly

          6  To Whom It May Concern:

          7                 In regard to the City Council's

          8  proposed legislation on sidewalk vendors, I believe

          9  the presence of vendors on our streets is not good

         10  for the store merchants or pedestrians who are

         11  trying to shop on already crowded streets and

         12  sidewalks.  The bill needs to be reconsidered and

         13  politicians need to listen to the people who shop in

         14  these areas and vote to keep our neighborhoods free

         15  from vendors.

         16  Thank you.

         17  Cheryl Reilly

         18  541 16th Street

         19  Brooklyn, NY 11215

         20

         21  Written testimony of: J.D. Reyes

         22  Dear Sirs:

         23                 I oppose opening up our sidewalks to

         24  unlimited vendors.  It's bad enough to try to get

         25  around in the City now without having to move to by
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          2  pass more obstructions.

          3                 Not only is the problem bad for foot

          4  traffic but there is also the problem of illegal

          5  goods being sold, this hurts both the economy and

          6  store owners who pay both taxes and rent.

          7  J.D. Reyes

          8  7009 Ridge Blvd

          9  Brooklyn, NY 11209

         10

         11  Written testimony of: Catherine Walsh

         12  To Whom It May Concern:

         13                 This is in regard to the City

         14  Council's proposed legislation on sidewalk vendors.

         15  I feel the presence of these vendors will be very

         16  bad for local merchants who currently pay rent.  I

         17  think this bill will be very bad for our economic

         18  growth because it will effect businesses retail.  I

         19  also felt hat there will be more overcrowding on our

         20  sidewalks which we do not need. Please reconsider

         21  this bill.

         22  Thank you.

         23  Catherine Walsh

         24  511 58th Street

         25  Brooklyn, NY 11220
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          2

          3  Written testimony of: Robert Lederman

          4  President of A.R.T.I.S.T (Artists' Response to

          5  Illegal State Tactics)

          6                 Intro # 621 proposes limiting First

          7  Amendment vendors to one per block and requires them

          8  to obtain a license from the NYC government before

          9  exercising freedom of speech.  We reject any effort

         10  to impose a free speech license on artists.

         11                 Intro # 621 reduces someone selling a

         12  newspaper, book or a work of art to the same legal

         13  footing as someone selling a package of batteries or

         14  a hot dog.  This proposed law is an insult to 226

         15  years of US legal precedents on free speech.

         16                 While it pretends to be about

         17   "helping vendors" Intro 621 is nothing other than a

         18  naked attempt to circumvent First Amendment vending

         19  protections won over the past decade by A.R.T.I.S.T.

         20    Not just vendors but all New Yorkers will lose

         21  their right to speak freely on public property if

         22  Intro #621 is allowed to pass into law.

         23                 These free speech protections were

         24  based on the written matter exemption in NYC vending

         25  law.  IN 1982 the NY City Council passed local law
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          2  #33 exempting written matter vendors from the

          3  licensing restrictions based on the free speech

          4  guarantees in both the Federal and NY State

          5  Constitutions.

          6                 Subsequent Federal Court decisions in

          7  cases brought by members of A.R.T.I.S.T. Extended

          8  these protections to anyone creating, displaying or

          9  selling art on public property.  Intro #621

         10  completely eliminates the written matter exemption

         11  section from the NYC vending laws.

         12                 A license requirement for free speech

         13  means there is no free speech.  The purpose of such

         14  a license is not reasonable regulation.  It's

         15  purpose is to enable City officials to deny access

         16  to public property that First Amendment vendors and

         17  the public now enjoy.

         18                 Free speech is a right.  It means you

         19  need no one's permission in order to speak.  It was

         20  intended first and foremost to protect the American

         21  people from their own government officials. It is

         22  needed now more than ever.

         23                 A right cannot be taken away.  Under

         24  the current vending law, if a First Amendment vendor

         25  violates any section of the vending regulations they
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          2  can be summonsed and/or confiscated. However,

          3  regardless of the number of such summonses, a First

          4  Amendment vendor can never lose their right to vend

          5  on the street or in a Park.  Under Intro #621, four

          6  convictions on summonses would mean you lose your

          7  license -- and thus your right to free speech.

          8                 Under the current vending law based

          9  on Bery/Lederman et al v City of NY an artist or

         10  other First Amendment vendor has exactly the same

         11  rights as someone selling a newspaper or political

         12  leaflet.  If passed into law, Intro #621 would mean

         13  a license requirement to sell a newspaper or even

         14  give away a free leaflet.

         15                 Intro #621 grossly violates the NY

         16  State Constitution, which has even more protection

         17  for free speech than the US Constitution.

         18                 Article 1 Section 8 New York

         19  Constitution

         20  S 8. Every citizen may freely speak, write and

         21  publish his or her sentiments on all subjects, being

         22  responsible for the abuse of that right; and no law

         23  shall be passed to restrain or abridge the liberty

         24  of speech or of the press.

         25                 What part of, "...no law shall be
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          2  passed to restrain or abridge the liberty of

          3  speech..." Is Councilmember Reed's proposed license

          4  for free speech unable to comprehend?

          5                 Intro #621 claims it is intended to

          6  make enforcement of vending laws easier for the

          7  police.  In reality, it makes enforcement almost

          8  impossible and would, by it's priority system of

          9  unfairly and arbitrarily assigning vending

         10  locations, lead to thousands of violent

         11  confrontations between vendors each and every day.

         12  We believe this is deliberate and is intended to

         13  help justify the City eventually imposing an even

         14  worse system where all vending spots would be sold

         15  to the highest bidder.  Such total privatization of

         16  public space is a human rights crime.

         17                 We wholeheartedly reject Intro # 621

         18  and ask the NY City Council to do so as well.  Free

         19  speech is the most fundamental right held by the

         20  American people.  This law is a travesty and should

         21  be roundly condemned by all who value their rights.

         22                 (Hearing concluded at 5:14 p.m.)

         23
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          1

          2              CERTIFICATION

          3

          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, DENISE ANDERSON, do hereby certify

         10  that the foregoing is a true and accurate transcript

         11  of the within proceeding.

         12                 I further certify that I am not

         13  related to any of the parties to this action by

         14  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         15  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         16                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         17  set my hand this 4th day of May 2005.

         18

         19

         20

         21

         22

         23

         24

                                   ---------------------

         25                          DENISE ANDERSON

                                                            246

          1

          2             C E R T I F I C A T I O N

          3

          4

          5

          6

          7

          8

          9            I, DENISE ANDERSON, do hereby certify the

         10  aforesaid to be a true and accurate copy of the

         11  transcription of the audio tapes of this hearing.

         12

         13

         14

         15

         16

         17

         18

         19

         20

         21

         22                 -----------------------

                              DENISE ANDERSON

         23

         24

         25

